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“And we know that in all things God works for the good of
those who love Him, who have been called according to His
purpose.”

Romans 828
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MEHE

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
wEE T EREET  E¥EET E¥EET B%EER
Consolidated income statement A%
for the year ended 31 March A3 31 HILEE
Revenues A 2,370.2 2,705.6 3,330.9 3,647.2 3,891.6
Profit for the year A B A 25.2 131.5 250.9 233.5 172.2
Interim dividend paid Bk HRE 9.5 11.4 333 37.7 37.7
Final dividend proposed BRAHIR S 9.5 228 42.8 33.5 38.7
Special dividend proposed BEIRFFIIRE - - 9.5 5.2 -
Consolidated balance sheet HREEARE
as at 31 March 3H31HESR
Assets BE 1,754.0 1,884.0 2,330.5 2,761.5 2,965.8
Less: Liabilities and B BfER
non-controlling interests Rl g 906.2 902.5 1,157.7 1,364.5 1,507.5
Shareholders’ funds R R E 4 847.8 981.5 1,172.8 1,397.0 1,458.3
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$
T T ST T BET
Per share data BCER
Farnings (restated) A (FEF) 0.024 0.126 0.239 0.223 0.164
Interim dividend paid ERPHRE 0.010 0.012 0.035 0.036 0.036
Final dividend proposed BERA RS 0.010 0.024 0.045 0.032 0.037
Special dividend proposed BEIRFFIIRE - - 0.010 0.005 -
Net assets (restated) B (EF) 0.810 0.938 1.121 1.335 1.394

Note: Earnings per share and net assets per share of 2010-2012 are restated to take up the effect of the bonus issue of shares during the
year ended 31 March 2013.

BEE : 2010 4F 2 2012 4EAY A BB R B 4 I V(B9 48 8 81 - AR AR 2013 4E 3 A 31 H AR FEAL G170 2 2 o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

HIGHLIGHTS BE

Profit Attributable to Shareholders of X B EAE RS A HKS$171.7 16 8
HK$171.7 million

Group Turnover up 6.7% REEEXEFET6.7%
Greater China Turnover up 12.5% R HEESEH 71 12.5%
EBIT up 17.2 % EBIT - F+17.2%
Improved Operational Efficiencies e ES e

Improved Balance Sheet HE B ARG

B () A RA A 2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

Joseph C. C. Wong ZE £
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

R RATHAR

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the midst of weaker consumer demand in Mainland China and
South East Asia (“SEA”), the Group faced a further challenging
year. In general, our business units in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan (“Greater China”) posted satisfactory
results under these very difficult conditions. Nevertheless, overall
performance was weighed down by our SEA operations.

However, the implementation of effective marketing strategies
contributed to the Group's top line growth of 6.7% and a turnover
of HK$3,891.6 million was recorded (2013: HK$3,647.2 million),
as gross profit margin eased down to 61.1% (2013: 62.7%).

Our watch and optical businesses in Greater China reported a
turnover of HK$2,858.8 million (2013: HK$2,542.2 million);
representing a y-o-y increase of 12.5%.

For the year under review, the Group posted a Profit Attributable
to Shareholders of HK$171.7 million (2013: HK$232.9 million).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

Nevertheless, a Profit Attributable to Shareholders of HK$195.5
million (2013: HK$ 196.8 million) was reported after excluding
the following items:

J a nil revaluation gain on investment property (2013: gain of
HK$30 million);

. a non-cash impact from convertible bonds on a full year
basis of HK$20.2 million compared to HK$3.6 million last
year on a three month basis; and

e an exchange loss of HK$3.6 million compared to an
exchange gain last year (2013: HK$9.7 million).

Our Greater China operations was a key contributor to Group
performance returning an earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT")
growth of 17.2% to HK$323.0 million (2013: HK$275.5 million).

During FY13/14, we have worked to raise levels of financial
discipline and productivity within the Group. The drive for
accountability, the shift to a matrix focused management and a
host of other initiatives, including, tighter cost controls on shop fit
out to lower CAPEX spending, tighter stock management control,
redefined shop opening strategies, redefined KPI reward systems
and centralised product buying have brought about improved
efficiencies that have largely contributed to the above set of Group
results.

As a percentage of Group turnover, key operating expenses were
well controlled and increases were moderate:

. rental 2014: 17.6% vs 2013: 17.4%;

. store staff costs 2014: 11.3% vs 2013: 11.7%; and

J marketing and advertising expenses 2014: 4.1% vs 2013:
4.2%.

During the year, we have also achieved improvements in some
key areas as highlighted below:

. Group stock turn has improved to 285 days (2013: 292
days);

J Group stock provision charges of HK$0.3 million (2013:
HK$23.1 million);

. Net cash inflow from operating activities of HK$271.4
million (2013: HK$83.0 million); and

J Lower Group gearing ratio of 28.0% (2013: 30.3%).

SR - SRR 51 45 T IR 25 4% il g 5 SRR A\ ik 1) 2
HK$195.5 10 # (2013 : HK$196.8 17 ) -

. $Hﬁﬂ$rﬂx7ﬁ&f§%¥@m&m 2013 :
HK$30 fF HyHa{E)

o MBS AEEFTEZBELES
HK$20.21A 8 > Z4F A 3% =0 H 51 H 2 g2
FHK$3 .61 8 5 K

. FEE SO 58 HK $3.6 1A 8 » 2247 FIl Bk 75 BE S i
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.037 (2013: HK$0.032) per share. Together
with the interim dividend payment of HK$0.036, this represents a
payout of 44.5% for FY13/14 (2013: 32.8%).

WATCH RETAIL BUSINESS - “CITY CHAIN”

In FY13/14, our watch retail business saw turnover growth of 8.6%
to HK$2,180.2 million (2013: HK$2,008.4 million), representing
56% of Group sales achieved from a reduced number of stores.

EBIT was up 1.2% to HK$215.4 million (2013: HK$212.9 million)
but gross profit margin fell to 61.1% from 63.2% in the previous
fiscal year.

As at 31 March 2014, “CITY CHAIN” has 392 stores (2013:
400 stores). Breakdown by geographical region is presented as
follows:-

KERE

RO R AR AR AL S > R HK$0.037
(2013 : HK$0.032) - # [a] * #] B B & &
HK$0.036 > B2 13/14 M EUEE IR E LR 5
44.5% (2013 : 32.8%) ©

FHEEXEK — [ IR/

1314 B EEN FREEELE
JE R ECE B S WD N BRI E E R 8.6% E
HK$2,180.2 1A (2013 : HK$2,008.4 16 #) > 15
AL ER56% ©

B R B & BE AT i FI(TEBIT)H | FF1.2% %
HK$215.440 # (2013 © HK$212.946#) > (HEF]
Kl F—MEEER63.2% FREE61.1% °

A 201443 A 31 H » [ W5 [ 8 | 45392 1 ) &l
(2013 : 400 ) o HEIgnManT -

2014 2013 Change
Hong Kong & Macau s SR 110 113 3
Mainland China EiCpN 7S 96 88 +8
Southeast Asia RO 186 199 -13
Total A 392 400 -8

Hong Kong and Macau — “CITY CHAIN”

In FY13/14, this segment continued to see turnover growth with a
y-0-y 15.2% increase to HK$1,477.0 million (2013: HK$1,281.6
million) whilst EBIT grew 12.4% to HK$279.5 million (2013:
HK$248.6 million).

However, top line momentum was slower in the second half
year (“2H”) as the Hong Kong economy began to feel the double
impact from the Mainland’s anti-corruption drive and the slow
down in Mainland Chinese tourist spending.

Various initiatives were therefore put into place to accelerate
turnover growth, and, to improve same store productivity.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

In FY14/15, we are likely to see some pressure on top line growth
in Hong Kong due to the underlying fragile retail sentiment. But
with appropriate strategies and measures in place, unless external
conditions worsen further, we expect this business segment to
continue growing moderately and to be a major contributor to the
Group’s business in FY14/15.

Very recently our “Solvil et Titus” advertising campaign, “The
Time Tree” was awarded with the “Best of the Best Award” at
the TVB Most Popular TV Commercial Awards 2014. This is
the second consecutive year we have been bestowed with this
award. The “Best of the Best Award” is garnered by votes from the
advertising industry and the general public. This award is a great
honour and affirms the marketing efforts the Group has made.

Mainland China — “CITY CHAIN”

For FY13/14, turnover from our watch retail operations on the
Mainland; given reduced shop months; rose 13.7% to HK$187.5
million (2013: HK$ 164.9 million); with the 2H growing by 18.4%
compared to the 2H of FY12/13.

Losses narrowed by nearly 17.2% to HK$46.8 million (2013:
HK$56.5 million) due to measures including aligning staff
remuneration to sales, increased training, renegotiating rentals,
closing non-performing stores and costs consolidation.

In line with our current store opening strategy to expand into
second and third tier cities where costs are lower, 9 stores were
opened in Chongging and Chengdu and 17 non-performing stores
were closed in Beijing and Shanghai.

We expect to see further improvements in same store productivity
in FY14/15 and our operations in Guangdong Province are already
starting to see break even results at store level.

Our “Solvil et Titus” on-line store, http://titus.tmall.com/, was
launched during the year with satisfactory results. To further tap
into the very fast growing e-commerce market, our “City Chain”
on-line store, http://citychain.tmall.com/, was also launched on
Tmall in May this year.

Regrettably, our objective to break even by FY14/15 is no longer
realistic. The target was set in Q1 FY12/13 when the Mainland
economy was growing strongly. Since then the economy has
deteriorated continuously, impacting on our efforts to achieve
this.
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T 36 SRR JBE ) o {EL7E BRIBUB B SR S 4
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AR R AN = > AR 14/15 BE B BE AR AR A
SR i 2 R AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

Nevertheless, we remain fully committed to achieve break
even results in the near term. We are confident that from the
improvements in efficiencies we have seen so far, we can expect
a consistent narrowing of losses in the next fiscal year.

South East Asia — “CITY CHAIN”

In FY13/14, the performance of our “CITY CHAIN” operations in
SEA was badly affected by bleak retail sentiment as turnover fell
8.2% to HK$515.7 million (2013: HK$561.9 million) and losses
of HK$17.3 million were reported against an EBIT of HK$20.8
million last year.

Our operations in Malaysia reported a decline in EBIT due to
slower first half year (“TH") sales but there was a pickup in sales
in the 2H which has continued into Q1 FY14/15.

Due to the long drawn out political situation in Thailand, our
business there reported a fall in turnover and break even results.
Cost containment measures are in place to ensure that at least
break even is maintained in the next fiscal year.

Suffering from a high cost structure and a shortage of labour,
losses from our operations in Singapore almost doubled during
the year. Aggressive cost and shop consolidation measures will be
undertaken in FY14/15 to stem losses until break even is achieved.

SR - S o] 0 sy e A8 A B0 o 00 7R 7 B0l
SOV o SRR BUR C ISR i > A
R IR T — R BB B e A -

REZ— AR/

W 13/14 BHECAE T AR R Y [IREHEE | SE R B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

OPTICAL RETAIL BUSINESS - “OPTICAL 88”

Turnover at “OPTICAL 88” rose 3.9% to HK$1,206.1 million
(2013: HK$1,160.9 million) but EBIT was dragged down by losses
from our Mainland operations, falling 8.3% to HK$54.3 million
(2013: HK$59.2 million).

As at 31 March 2014, “OPTICAL 88” has 234 stores (2013:
227 stores). Breakdown by geographical region is presented as
follows:-

RIBEEXE —[RIZ88]

[HR &388) 4 2% I 713.9% £ HK$1,206.114
(2013 : HK$1,160.91F & ) » {HEBITZ
KEEEFEERIE SR - FFE8.3% EHK$54.314 &
(2013 : HK$59.2 /A #5) °

A20144E3 431 H > [ IR $588) 4234 JE 4
(2013 : 227 ) o HEgnManT

2014 2013 Change
Hong Kong & Macau s SR 95 93 +2
Mainland China EEpN 7S 48 40 +8
Southeast Asia RO 91 94 -3
Total A 234 227 +7

Hong Kong and Macau — “OPTICAL 88”

In FY13/14, our Hong Kong and Macau operations saw turnover
increase by 7% to HK$804.5 million (2013: HK$752.1 million) as
EBIT rose 21.8% to HK$79.8 million (2013: HK$65.5 million).

Our optical retail business being less dependent on Mainland
tourist spending was less affected by the Mainland slowdown.

Several factors contributed to these positive results. Store rental
growth was well controlled; and measures implemented to
improve operational efficiencies led to an EBIT growth outpacing
turnover growth.

With this positive momentum being carried into Q1 FY14/15, we
are confident we will see a good performance next year.

Mainland China — “OPTICAL 88”

Our “OPTICAL 88” operations on the Mainland reported a rise
in turnover of 14.8%, with the opening of several new stores in
Chengdu, but losses widened to HK$30.7 million (2013: HK$24.1
million).

Restructuring of our Mainland operations commenced in Q3
FY13/14, with the appointment in November 2013 of a China
CEO, solely responsible for managing our China “OPTICAL 88”
business.

EEREF— [R5 88

A 13/14 WFBUAF > AN 48 [0 35 s T B P 265 1Y)
ZEREBATIN 7% 2 HK$804.51A 5 (2013 © HK$752.1
{E#) o EBITHEINN21.8% F HK$79.81A & (2013 :
HK$65.5 10 #) o

A I 1) MR 5 2 A S W 0 B PR b R R T
QU RS 3563 % IN (S

AT R R E AR A - IHE SR
PR B 2o DA T P B M R A A S EB I T
R L R A SR R

VIR SRR 141 5 I BUERESE — % - 4R
A 15 D ARAFE A 5 A BRABR A R 3

Hh B A BE — [ R 1% 88/

SR [ AR 8% 88 1A Hh ZEHS BE 2 B A AR B 24 1
SR A B kA A L TH14.8% o HE TR IE K
2 HK$30.7 16 (2013 : HK$24.1 1) -

BEE R 2013411 H BT HEE AR [R5 88
T AT BRI ERS AR 13/14 Bt
EUAE RS = 2 B -

B () A RA A
2014 4F4FHR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

After the restructuring, measures introduced earlier in the year to
improve performance were accelerated and brought into sharper
focus.

Therefore, we have seen a better performance in turnover in Q4
FY13/14 compared to Q3 FY13/14. As this positive momentum
has continued into Q1 FY14/15, we expect to see a good
improvement in performance next year.

South East Asia — “OPTICAL 88”

Our optical retail business in SEA was likewise affected by the
poor external conditions with turnover down 6.3% to HK$300.5
million (2013: HK$320.8 million) and EBIT falling to HK$5.2
million (2013: HK$ 17.8 million). During the year, similar
measures for “CITY CHAIN” in SEA were by and large adopted.

Our Malaysian operations posted faster EBIT growth in the 2H
compared to the TH, with a full year EBIT of HK$4.2 million, a
y-0-y improvement of 62%.

Our Thai operations reported an EBIT of HK$13.8 million, albeit
a 30% decline, despite the unrest in Thailand. To prevent further
deterioration in FY14/15, measures similar to those implemented
for our watch retail operations have been adopted.

However, the progress made in the 2H in Malaysia, and the
efforts by our Thai unit to maintain profitability, despite adverse
circumstances, were offset by the loss reported in Singapore.

To stabilise the situation in Singapore; which likewise suffers
from a high cost structure and a shortage of qualified staff; further
aggressive cost and shop consolidation will be carried out in
FY14/15 until break even is achieved.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

OPTICAL RETAIL BUSINESS - “eGG”
Hong Kong - “eGG”

In Hong Kong, turnover at our “eGG” optical business nearly
doubled to HK$46.9 million (2013: HK$24.0 million) as full year
losses narrowed to HK$7.3 million (2013: HK$12.3 million). Store
expansion was according to plan and there are presently 12 stores
in Hong Kong. In Q1 FY14/15, our Hong Kong stores have turned
profitable, and unless retail sentiment worsens considerably, we
expect the momentum to continue.

Mainland China - “eGG”

Our Mainland “eGG” operations recorded an initial loss of
HK$16.0 million in FY13/14 due to the opening of new shops.

With rising affluence on the Mainland, fast fashion optical
retailing has grown rapidly and is widely embraced by the average
consumer. As such, our “eGG optical boutique” business model
targeting the fashion conscious crowd captures this growing trend.
Our first “eGG” store was opened in December 2012.

During the year under review, the slowdown on the Mainland
created an oversupply of retail space. In view of this, a prudent
outlook was adopted and we revised our store opening strategy,
subsequently scaling back expansion to the current 18 stores.

Competition was also intense but despite this, our “eGG”
operations performed close to expectation as our distinctive brand
image, product and service quality differentiated us from others.

In the next year, we will work at improving gross profit margin,
strengthening supply chain management and existing work
processes, including reducing CAPEX spending.

Further, to complement our “brick and mortar” stores, our “eGG”
online store, http://eggyj.tmall.com/, was launched on Tmall in
January 2014 and response has been within expectation.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT AND WHOLESALE TRADING

This business division comprises of the Group’s watch Supply
Chain Management Unit and its Wholesale Business Unit.

Our Supply Chain Management Unit is responsible for design,
procurement and other ancillary services for the Group’s watch
house brands.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

The latter, our Wholesale Business Unit engages in watch and
optical wholesale trading and, includes, the Thong Sia Group, the
sole distributor for “SEIKO” and “ALBA” watches and clocks in
Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia and a subsidiary that is the
exclusive distributor for “Suunto” watches in Hong Kong.

During the fiscal year, turnover from this business division edged
down 2.1% to HK$443.3 million (2013: HK$452.7 million) as the
adverse external environment in SEA led to a fall in orders from
third party retailers. An EBIT of HK$94.0 million was recorded
(2013: HK$96.8 million) down 2.9%.

Losses from our PRC Wholesale Unit narrowed by 32%, and, we
expect to see further improvement in FY14/15.

THE FUTURE

It is evident from the above set of results that we are moving in
the right direction and the positive changes realised so far will
underpin the Group’s objective to achieve long term sustainable
growth for its shareholders. However, more needs to be
accomplished in this respect.

In the more immediate term, owing to the weak global economy
and a deepening slowdown on the Mainland, we expect an even
more challenging year ahead. Nevertheless, so far in Q1 FY14/15,
our Greater China operations, including, Hong Kong and Macau
continue to report top line growth at sustained gross profit
margins.

As we shall continue to drive productivity and financial discipline,
we remain cautiously optimistic that, unless external conditions
worsen significantly, the Group is expected to return an improved
performance next year.

BACKGROUND

The Group was founded in Hong Kong in 1963 and is principally
engaged in watch and optical retail and wholesale trading. Our
portfolio includes “CITY CHAIN” and “OPTICAL 88", both
leading multi-brand retailers in the mid-range priced watch and
optical markets and “eGG optical boutique”, a single brand
optical retailer. Together, these three chains operate over 600
stores in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and Southeast Asia.

“CITY CHAIN" and “OPTICAL 88" carry more than 100 brands,
including well known international names and the Group’s house
brands, “Solvil et Titus”, “CYMA”, “ellesse” and “PRONTO”
therefore offering a diverse mix of stylish, quality and affordable
lifestyle products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Our wholesale business includes the distribution of “SEIKO”
watches and clocks in Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia;
“Suunto” watches in Hong Kong; and “CYMA” watches in Asia.

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

The Group’s business is premised on a successful business model
that gives us a unique market position and allows us to generate
value over the long term.

. We are a brand owner, wholesaler and retailer, covering all
aspects of the value chain to fully maximise returns

J We have strong bargaining power due to our extensive retail
networks and ownership of several popular brands

e We target the middle income class with our mid-priced
products

J We offer multi-brands, both house brands and foreign
brands to form a diversified revenue base with high gross
profit margins for house brands

FINANCE

The Group’s gearing ratio at balance sheet date was 28% (2013:
30%), which was calculated based on the Group’s net debt of
HK$408 million (2013: HK$423 million) and shareholders’ funds
of HK$1,458 million (2013: HK$1,397 million). The Group’s net
debt was calculated based on the Group’s borrowings of HK$535
million (2013: HK$495 million) and convertible bonds of HK$331
million (2013: HK$316 million) less the Group’s bank balances
and cash of HK$458 million (2013: HK$388 million). Of the
Group's borrowings at balance sheet date, HK$464 million (2013:
HK$351 million) were repayable within 12 months.

Of the Group’s borrowings, 5% (2013: 9%) were denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group’s bank borrowings denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars were on a floating rate basis determined with
reference to either bank prime lending rates or short term inter-
bank offer rates.

The Group does not engage in speculative derivative trading.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group does not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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On 29 November 2012, the Company issued unlisted and
unsecured convertible bonds with a principal amount of
HK$371,022,600 to Sapphire Illuminatus Holdings Limited
(“Sapphire”), an independent third party.

The new funding through the issue of the Bonds combined with
the Company’s leading position and strong management team as
well as Sapphire’s in-depth retail industry experience will assist
the Group to strengthen its position in the Greater China region
and bring unparalleled experiences and expertise in expanding
the Group’s presence in Mainland China in order to achieve
profitable long term growth.

The proceeds from the issue of the Bonds is intended to be used for
further expansion of the Group’s “CITY CHAIN” and “OPTICAL
88" store networks, promotion of in-house brands, potential
business expansion opportunities, and/or other general corporate
purposes.

STAFF

The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on a regular
basis and remuneration packages are in line with market practices
in the relevant countries where the Group operates. As of 31
March 2014, the Group had 3,812 (2013: 3,603) employees. The
Group offers KPI related bonuses to eligible employees based on
the performance of the Group and the individual employee. The
Group also provides related training programmes to improve the
quality, competence and skills of its employees.

| express my most sincere thanks and gratitude to colleagues and
staff members for their commitment, hard work and loyalty to the
Group during the year.

On behalf of the Board

Joseph C. C. Wong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

The directors of the Company (the “Board”) submit their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 34.

Interim dividend of HK$0.036 (2013: HK$0.036) per ordinary
share totalling HK$37,673,000 was paid during the year.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.037 (2013: HK$0.032) and a special dividend of HK$Nil
(2013: HK$0.005) per ordinary share totalling HK$38,719,000
and HK$Nil respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations of
HK$10,256,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are
shown in note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in notes 26 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 March 2014, the distributable reserves of the Company

available for distribution as dividends to shareholders amounted
to HK$78,383,000 (2013: HK$175,488,000).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws in Bermuda.

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Joseph C. C. Wong
Vincent Lau Tak Bui
Anthony Chu Kai Wah
Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
Sakorn Kanjanapas
Mary Ma Xuezheng
Alex Wong Yu Tsang
Nelson Wu Chun Sang

(resignation effective from 2 July 2013)
(appointment effective from 2 July 2013)

(independent non-executive)
Lawrence Wu Chi Man  (independent non-executive)
Agnes Kwong Yi Hang  (independent non-executive)

In accordance with Bye-law 110(A), Professor Lawrence Wu Chi
Man, Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

All directors have formal letters of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions of their appointment.

During the year, Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong, Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui
and Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin were each eligible to an annual
bonus determinable under the terms of a KPI based executive
bonus scheme with respect to their management of the Group.
Provision for the bonuses in respect of the directors eligible under
the executive bonus scheme for the year ended 31 March 2014
amounted to HK$12,293,000 (2013: HK$17,708,000).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014

BRARE

A w2 ) A B0 A A T 8 ST R B RE R L
T HAE I ]I M SR R R

RN R B H R E R

BRI

BT

REEHE (BRI - A20134E7 A2 HEAER)
BB (JERAT > H20134E7 A2 HEAR)
L

BB

HEE  OBSLIFATEGES)

HEC UBSLIFATEEES)

W57 UBSLIRATHEES)

IR RIS 110(A) i > WIRRSCEAR  BITEM
S B BRI S0 A I it B AR 4 (B
ARG ) B AR o MR A A AR S e 2
-

A5 T M S SR R T L AR A FUR AR AR R A
A (78 B ERR AN T 4% LR B RS 5 4 o

EWEFIYFEXRERE > WIIHBEN T2
AR o

AR A e A - BIFEMR e A R B AR ER AR
O A A AR R JRR T A AR AR T B S A Ak
R | AT BTEALFT B BB e &R
FREEIEAL o B E 2014453 A 31 HIE4FE > wiAT
WA B4 GBI G EMAERMMEL ZITHAA
E &L 18 i 5 9 512,293,000 78 (2013 4F = #E W
17,708,000 7T) ©



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

Apart from the foregoing, no other contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s businesses to which the Company, its
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

On 9 March 2005, a new share option scheme, replacing the
previous scheme which was approved by the shareholders on
25 June 1997, for the employees, officers and directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
approved and adopted by the shareholders pursuant to which the
Board was authorised to grant options to the employees, officers
and directors of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe
for shares of the Company for a fixed period. The option period
refers to a period which the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine and specify, save that (a) for ease of administration,
in the absence of a separate Board resolution at the time of
grant specifying otherwise, such period should be seven years
from the commencement date of the share option and (b) in any
event such period shall expire not later than 10 years from the
commencement date of the share option. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
must not in aggregate exceed 95,134,002 shares. The limit on
the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No options may be
granted under any schemes of the Company if this will result in
the limit being exceeded. An offer of the grant of options must
be accepted within 28 days from the commencement date of
the relevant option period. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to attract and retain the best quality personnel for the
development of the Company’s business; to provide additional
incentives to the employees, officers and directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries and to promote the long term financial success
of the Company by aligning the interests of Option Holder (any
employee or a director of the Company or any subsidiary who
accepts an offer of the grant of an Option in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme or their legal personal
representatives) to shareholders. The consideration payable on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1. The
subscription price is determined by the Board at the time of grant
of the relevant option and shall not be less than whichever is
the higher of the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) on the commencement date of the share
option, which must be a business day; the average closing prices
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
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commencement date of the share option; and the nominal value
of a share. No option had been granted during the year and there
was no option outstanding as at 31 March 2014.

As at 31 March 2014, the total number of ordinary shares available
for issue in the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme was
95,134,002.

With the exception of the Share Option Scheme of the Company,
at no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or
its holding company a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the
directors, and the Company’s chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:

(@)  The Company — Ordinary shares

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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Approximate

Number of shares percentage of

REE issued share
Corporate/ capital
Personal Family trust interest Other HE&T
Name of Director interest interest =B interest Total Bz
EENSR B ARER REER ErtER HithigEz Hy SN EI
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 603,066,892 11,000 2,489,100 ~ 605,566,992 57.87
B SEAE (Note 1) (Note 2)
(Htzt1) (K17t 2)
Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui 10,024,920 - - - 10,024,920 0.96
BT SEA
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin - - - - - -
B AR B R
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 67,221,078 - 2,489,100 - 69,710,178 6.66
AT e (Note 2)
(Bt7E2)
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Short

These interests include Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong’s interest in the
67,221,078 shares of the Company (which are beneficially owned
by Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas) under unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives arising from options granted by Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas
to Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong to purchase such shares within a period
of 3 years from 27 August 2012.

Yee Hing Company Limited, directly and indirectly through
its subsidiary including Active Lights Company Limited, held
2,489,100 shares of the Company as at 31 March 2014. 55% of the
total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing Company Limited is held by
Klayze Holdings Limited, which is the trustee of a discretionary trust
(the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas
are the beneficiaries of the Trust and were therefore deemed to be
interested in 2,489,100 shares of the Company through the Trust's
interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas has a short position in 67,221,078

shares of the Company under unlisted physically settled equity

derivatives arising from options granted by Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas

to Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong to purchase such shares within a period

of 3 years from 27 August 2012.

(b)

Subsidiaries

(1) A RERR LG T A o AR AT 67,221,078 [
By (A AL L B AR ) RS > W2
T AT G e A2 R 20124E8 H 27
H R 5] 3 47 10 P 8 0 e 2 B A A e s A A 9 1
T EE A o e 2 i e T HLIE R sy o

(2)  JA20144E3 H31H » FBUA R w) B 3k i 2
78 38 LR B 22 B Active Lights Company Limited
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Approximate

percentage

of the total

preference

shares in issue

as at

31 March

2014

Number of shares 20145

R EE 3A31H

Personal Family Corporate HE2BE

interests interest interests Total BITEER

AR REER EEER wE BHABEIT

(i) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares'
City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited — B55/8’

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 200 - 208,800 209,000 99.52
BRI S

Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 200 - 208,800 209,000 99.52
wHLEAE
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Approximate
percentage
of the total
preference

shares in issue
as at
31 March
2014
Number of shares 2014 F
BRHEE 3A31H
Personal Family Corporate HEHE
interests interest interests Total BITEER
BARER XEmER EERES e BHBEDL
(i)  Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares?
Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — 45/ 2
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 600 - - 600 16.67
Rl
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 600 - - 600 16.67
HANLEA:
(iii)  Optical 88 (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares®
Optical 88 (Thailand) Company Limited — {8 /i3
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 5,000 - 225,000 230,000 90.20
AN EA
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 5,000 - 225,000 230,000 90.20
HANLEA:
(iv)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited — Preference shares*
Stelux (Thailand) Limited — ##5¢/& *
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 5,100 - - 5,100 100
HAINEEA
Notes: B EE -
(1) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the (1) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited Z742
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right HIA B A B o B B S A SR AR Y
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. The I 7 RS, > AR MR 2 AT o A 2 ) o A
corporate interests of each of Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn WSt s AL A A A DA B 4 S RE AR 3 A 1Y
Kanjanapas in 208,800 preference shares duplicate with each 208,800 MMM HARE M -
other.
(2)  Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the (2)  Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited % 4<%
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right Al B A R o B B S I A B AR Y
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. I IS, o BN R 3 BB LA A ) o
1 9 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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3) Optical 88 (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. The
corporate interests of each of Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn
Kanjanapas in 225,000 preference shares duplicate with each
other.

(4)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited is a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Joseph
C. C. Wong is entitled to approximately 8.6% of the voting power of
such subsidiary and an annual fixed dividend by virtue of the 5,100
preference shares held by him but not to any other profit sharing.

Save as disclosed above, no directors, chief executive of the
Company or their associates have any interest or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT
TO THE SFO

As at 31 March 2014, the following persons had interests in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of

(3)  Optical 88 (Thailand) Company Limited £ 4</A
FA B A T o IR e A PR AR
I8 7 FBER o AL EAE 23 AT AT LA ) o B 40
Jed: R RIL G & B AR T 4% i 2 B A Y
225,000 S 2 AR -

(4)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited £57<%y ] 1) & A 7 o
N B e A A A% B A\ T REAE Y 5,100 MRS
T =2 A 5 o g 2 T KA 8.6% 13 S B A A1 11 [
FELE > AFI JERE A3 T o] HoAth 2 ) -

bR ESCRTHER AL AREAS A AR IR RS TR B
A9 265 352 fh I B A 65 e ik 9 i ok AR 2% ) B
ST ARE b 4 R AT R IR Ay (Y AR R ST
PR » AN FAEE - e T B BB
£ gt B8 N o ABE 0 A A 2 ) A T R M ik (3
it 75 B BRI 2R XV AR IR E 38) 19 JB 4 A B e
1 v A AT AT 2 R

REEZRAEROIATURE 2 RRES

MR B 6 W B G565 336 16 1M B A7 2 B we A
ok > DU AR 20144F3 A 31 HINARRA |2 I
1y S AR B B0y TR A R AR SR -

the SFO:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of shares

AN Al Z et R Z A7 T

Approximate
percentage of

R EE issued share

Corporate/ capital

Personal Family  trust interest Other RE BT

Name of Director interest interest E=E interest Total Rz

EEnE BARERE REER fErtiER HipfEs weE BAEIE

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 603,066,892 11,000 2,489,100 - 605,566,992 57.87
HAIE (Note 1) (Note 2)
(7t 1) (Wit 2)

Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 67,221,078 - 2,489,100 - 69,710,178 6.66
#HANTEE (Note 2)
(Mt 2)

Boyu Capital Holdings Ltd. - - 190,268,000 - 190,268,000 18.18
(Note 3)
(it 3)

NTAsian Discovery Master Fund 54,250,000 - - - 54,250,000 5.18

B () A RA A
2014 4F4FHR
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These interests include Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong’s interest in the
67,221,078 shares of the Company (which are benefically owned
by Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas) under unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives arising from options granted by Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas
to Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong to purchase such shares within a period
of 3 years from 27 August 2012.

Yee Hing Company Limited, directly and indirectly through
its subsidiary including Active Lights Company Limited, held
2,489,100 shares of the Company as at 31 March 2014. 55% of the
total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing Company Limited is held by
Klayze Holdings Limited, which is the trustee of a discretionary trust
(the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas
are the beneficiaries of the Trust and were therefore deemed to be
interested in 2,489,100 shares of the Company through the Trust's
interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

The Company has issued convertible bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$371,022,600 to Sapphire Illuminatus
Holdings Limited (the “Convertible Bonds”), all of which were
outstanding as at 31 March 2014. The Convertible Bonds are
convertible into shares of the Company at the initial conversion
price of HK$1.95 per new share. Assuming the exercise in full
of the conversion right attaching to the Convertible Bonds at the
initial conversion price, a total of 190,268,000 new shares of the
Company will be issued. Sapphire Illuminatus Holdings Limited is
wholly-owned by Boyu Capital Fund I, L.P., which is wholly-owned
by Boyu Capital General Partner I, L.P., which is wholly-owned by
Boyu Capital General Partner I, Ltd., which is in turn wholly-owned
by Boyu Capital Holdings Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of any person

(other than a director or chief executive of the Company or his/

her respective associate(s)), who had an interest or short position

in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at
31 March 2014.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

STELUX

Holdings International Limited
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52 SR R AL RS EO A G S AR A AR A ] 67,221,078 [

ey (MBI Se B R A ) 2 eSS > 3%y

T E AN G e A2 R 20124E8 H 27
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2014453 A 31 H » FEBAT PR 7 B 4 ol
B ILKE 2 7 Active Lights Company Limited
R A3 7] 2,489,100 B © Klayze Holdings
Limited AYE 2 —JHII IS (5 5T ({560 ) 2 ZEC A&
T FREA FEBA FRA 7l 23 L3 T 55% HE
o WAl oA RO AL A PR R A
WOHAR R A RE S B PR R 2 HE 45 1
AN T 2,489,100 BEREHER -

A % ®l [ Sapphire [lluminatus Holdings
Limited ([Sapphire ) #4745 & A G A0HT /5 s
371,022,600 JGH) AT 7 - % 2014 4F3 A
31 H Sapphire i RATHERZ MR o AR ST A
TRIEVIA SEARME B s W 1.95 TC IR A AW Z ik
B o EAERIA S ARAE 2R BT (] B R A 2
HRHE - 23 R T 58 %0190,268,000 BT
53 > Sapphire H Boyu Capital Fund I, L.P 42 &%
F > 1M Boyu Capital Fund I, L.P Hi Boyu Capital
General Partner |, L.P. 247 » MiBoyu Capital
General Partner |, L.P. H Boyu Capital General
Partner I, Ltd. 22 &#E4 - 1MiBoyu Capital General
Partner I, Ltd. XJ& 1 Boyu Capital Holdings Ltd.
DEHEA -
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier

— five largest suppliers combined
Sales

— the largest customer

— five largest customers combined

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the directors of the Company, at least
25% of issued share capital of the Company was held by public
members as at the date of this report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmations of independence from
its independent non-executive directors, who have confirmed
their independence as of 1 April 2013 up to and including 31
March 2014. The Company considers its independent non-
executive directors to be independent.

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 2005 and by the
forthcoming AGM will have served for 9 years. Professor Wu
has confirmed his independence as regards each of the factors
referred to in Rule 3.13(1) to (8) of the Listing Rules; he does not
have any past or present financial or other interest in the business
of the Company or its subsidiaries or any connection with any
connected person (as defined under the Listing Rules); and there
are no other factors that may affect his independence. Therefore,
the Board believes that Professor Wu is independent and proposes
his re-election as an independent non-executive director of the
Company at the forthcoming AGM.

TEEFRHER

7 G2 0 T R i R A AR A JRE R R B
BE AT

PRI
— I KA 24%
— HRALRER & 5] 48%
FH AR
—REF 1%
—hHREF&H 2%

A ERINMEAEE - WEZHBNLHEAR
A CEEAT IROA 5% DL b 22 JRHRN fi i aft T i
O i B A A

BEAH

AR > AR WSl S T AT A AT A B R R
HR o BB I PR ATEL R ) o

RADBIERE

WAL T ]2 B 2 B AR A Y F B S
H AASER A H AR T AT A 22 25%
HARNLARA -

BYFTHRESNE L ERR

AN ) E B ST JE AT I R A 2013 4 4
A1HZE20144E3 A 31 H (B3 H) H1R A9 &7
PERGTERR AN A58 A M S FE AT B = 4 HL s ST
M o

) R SCHARIR 2005 AR HEZR AT I3 A3 w7 IR AT
R i RO AR R B AR 9 4F - I
et BT IER 3.13(1) 2 (8) IR B di 4% X 2R Tl
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following continuing connected transactions are based on
normal commercial terms agreed after arms’ length negotiations
between the parties and are in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company. The continuing connected transactions
are subject to the annual review, reporting and announcement
requirements respectively under Rules 14A.37 to 14A.41, and
Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and exempt
from independent shareholders’ approval.

Continuing Connected Transactions of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 March 2014

The following continuing connected transactions under the heading
above have been reviewed by the directors (including the independent
non-executive directors) of the Company. The independent non-
executive directors of the Company have confirmed that during the
year all these transactions were entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) either (i) on normal commercial terms or (ii) where there was
no available comparison on terms no less favourable to or
from the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

(c)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company’s auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group below
in accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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Summary of the continuing connected transactions:

FRAE B 2 oy B
Income/
Connected persons Nature of transactions (expenses) Annual Caps Notes
BEAL XH5MHE WA (XH) FELR BfeE
HK$'000 HK$’000
AT AT
International Optical Manufacturing Manufacture and supply (2,556) (6,650)  (i)&(vii)
Company Limited and its subsidiaries of optical products and
(“10M”) purchase of optical
P IR S S 2 AT R ) L g 2 ) products
riom ) B R A I AR 6 2 i
e 6 L MR 5 7 i
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited Leasing of properties (11,069) (11,069) (ii)&(vii)
(“MPIL”) as Landlord Y
W SE BB A IR A (THIEE])
MPIL as Landlord Leasing of properties (288) (346) (iii)&(vii)
W > PR B
MPIL as Landlord Leasing of properties (128) (510) (iv)&(vii)
Wi > MRk E HEY
Active Lights Company Limited (“ALCL") Leasing of properties (1,871) (1,871)  (V)&(vii)
and Thong Sia Company Limited HEY
(“TSCL”), each of them as Landlord
Active Lights Company Limited (TALCLJ)
S Thong Sia Company Limited
(ITSCLI) > e AfE T
MPIL as Principal Provision of management 2,340 2,340  (vi)&(vii)

R RR (R ESIIN

and property agency
liaison services

PRULAE B R A
Wi 4% MR 55

B () A RA A
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The Group announced on 22 March 2013 (“Announcement”),
that on 21 March 2013, the Group, through certain of its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, entered into the Manufacturing and Supply
Agreements 2013 with IOM with effect from 1 April 2013 to 31
March 2016 to renew the Manufacturing and Supply Agreements.
All definitions in this note have the same meaning as referred to in
the Announcement.

The Group has continued to engage IOM to design, manufacture
and supply house-brand and licensed-brand optical products to the
Group typically for cash with payment terms ranging from 30 days
to 90 days, upon receipt of invoice. The terms of purchases have
been determined on an individual purchase order basis based on
prevailing industry conditions and the purchases have been made
on normal commercial terms.

The annual cap for the year ended 31 March 2014 was set at
HK$5,700,000 based on the Group’s past experience and best
estimation of the maximum amount of future purchases.

In order for the Group to continue to make purchases of optical
products for the Group's retail operations from the IOM Group after
the expiry of the Renewal Retail Purchase Agreement on 31 March
2013, on 21 March 2013, the Group and IOM Group, through
their respective subsidiaries, entered into a Further Renewal Retail
Purchase Agreement with effect from 1 April 2013 to 31 March
2016.

The annual cap for the year ended 31 March 2014 was set at
HK$950,000 based on the Group’s past experience and best
estimation of the maximum amount of future purchases.

Based on the above, the maximum aggregate annual values of
purchases of optical products by the Group from the IOM Group
under the Manufacturing and Supply Agreements 2013 and the
Further Renewal Retail Purchase Agreement in aggregate for the
year ended 31 March 2014 were set at HK$6,650,000.

The Group is satisfied with the business relationship with IOM
over the previous years, and IOM’s market knowledge and trend
perception in certain major markets, as evidenced by its success
in being a supplier to various internationally renowned brands of
optical products.

The directors (including all independent non-executive directors)
of the Company are of the view that the Manufacturing and
Supply Agreements 2013 and the Further Renewal Retail Purchase
Agreement were entered into in the usual and ordinary course of
business of the Group on normal commercial terms which were
agreed after arm’s length negotiations between the parties, and that
the terms of the above-mentioned agreements and the maximum
aggregate annual values of purchases of optical products by the
Group from IOM Group are fair and reasonable and are in the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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(i)

The Group announced on 10 December 2012 (“Announcement”),
that on 10 December 2012, Stelux Holdings Limited (“SHL”),
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited (“TSWCL”) and Thong Sia
Optics (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“TSOHK”), wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, each individually as tenant, entered
into the Stelux House Renewal Tenancy Agreements 2013 with
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited (“MPIL”) in respect of the
following properties:

Premises A: whole of 27th floor and portion of 28th floor
(including 12 carparking spaces) at Stelux House

Premises B: whole of 21st floor (including 3 carparking
spaces) at Stelux House

Premises C: office unit numbers 502, 503, 505 and 506 on the
5th floor at Stelux House

Premises D: office unit numbers 1901, 1902 and 1903 with
two storerooms numbers 1A and 1B on the 19th
floor at Stelux House

Premises E: office unit numbers 1702 and 1703 on the 17th
floor at Stelux House

Premises F: storeroom no. 6A on 18th floor at Stelux House

Premises G: portion of office unit numbers 1905 and 1906
with storeroom no. 6A on 19th floor at Stelux
House

Premises H: office unit numbers 2201, 2202 and 2206 with

storeroom numbers 1A, 1B, 6A and 6B on the
22nd Floor of Stelux House

All definitions in this note have the same meaning as referred to in
the Announcement.

The lease term of the above premises is from 1 April 2013 up to and
including 31 March 2016 with no rent-free period.

The total monthly rental is HK$881,700 comprising HK$830,000
per calendar month for the office premises (Premises A, B, C, D,
E, G and H exclusive of rates, government rent and management
charges) and HK$51,700 per calendar month for the 15 carparking
spaces and a storeroom (Premises F) (inclusive of rates, government
rent and management charges), both payable monthly in advance
in cash by the tenant on the first day of each and every calendar
month.

On 21 March 2013, the renewed tenancy agreement in respect
of Premises G above was surrendered (“Surrendered Tenancy
Agreement”) and SHL (as tenant) entered into a new tenancy
agreement with MPIL (as landlord) to rent a larger portion of office
unit numbers 1905 and 1906 with storeroom no. 6A on 19th floor
and an additional 6 carparking spaces at Stelux House for the
same rental period as that for the Surrendered Tenancy Agreement
(“Tenancy Agreement”).

(if)

AREEE R 20124512 H10 H A% (T A D
R2012412 H10 H > Stelux Holdings Limited
(TSHL ) AR ) 2 4 ¥ W Jo > ) 3 it 6 AT KR
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(iii)

The monthly rental for the Tenancy Agreement is HK$70,762.90
comprising HK$51,862.90 per calendar month for the portion of
the office units with a storeroom (exclusive of rates, government
rent and management charges) and HK$18,900 per calendar month
for the 6 carparking spaces (inclusive of rates, government rent
and management charges), both payable in advance in cash by the
tenant on the first day of each and every calendar month.

SHL, as tenant, has been granted the naming right of Stelux House
and each of SHL, TSWCL and TSOHK has been granted an option
for the Premises A, B, C, D, E, H and the Tenancy Agreement, but
not an obligation, to renew the relevant tenancy agreement with the
landlord every three years for three more years for a maximum of
15 years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the then prevailing open
market rent.

The monthly rents of all the above-mentioned office premises
were determined on an arm’s length basis taking into account the
valuations conducted by an independent property valuer dated
2 November 2012, which indicate that the renewal rental rates
under the Stelux House Tenancy Renewal Agreements 2013 and
the Tenancy Agreement were favourable to the Group as compared
with the prevailing market rental values of the subject premises,
while the rental rates for carparking spaces were determined
with reference to the prevailing market rental rates. Accordingly,
the Directors considered the Stelux House Renewal Tenancy
Agreements 2013 and the Tenancy Agreement were on normal
commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Group has been using the subject office premises (including the
carparking spaces) primarily for office, administrative and storage
purposes over a long period of time. In order to avoid possible
disruption to its business due to relocation, the Group intends to
continue to lease/licence the subject office premises (including
the carparking spaces) following the expiration of the relevant
leases/licences. The directors consider it to be in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole for the Group to
continue to use the subject premises as long as the relevant rental/
licence fee and other terms are favourable to the Group so as to
avoid relocation and refurbishment costs which otherwise the
Group will have to incur.

The Group announced on 22 May 2013 (“Announcement”), that on
22 May 2013, SHL (as tenant) entered into two tenancy agreements
with MPIL (as landlord) as summarized below. All definitions in this
note have the same meaning as referred to in the Announcement.

(@) to rent office unit number 2205 on 22nd floor at Stelux
House for a term of two years ten months and nine days
commencing on 23 May 2013 and expiring on 31 March
2016 (“Tenancy Agreement A). The monthly rental of
HK$23,850 (exclusive of rates, government rent and
management charges) is payable in advance in cash by the
tenant on the first day of each and every calendar month; and

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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(b) to rent storeroom number 1B on 20th floor at Stelux House
for a term of two years eight months and nineteen days from
13 July 2013 up to and including 31 March 2016 (“Tenancy
Agreement B). The monthly rental of HK$5,000 (inclusive of
rates, government rent and management charges) is payable
in advance in cash by the tenant on the first day of each and
every calendar month

The above monthly rents were determined on an arm’s length basis
taking into account the prevailing market rental rates at Stelux
House. Accordingly, the directors considered that the terms of the
Tenancy Agreements A and B reflected normal commercial terms
and were fair and reasonable, and the entering into of Tenancy
Agreements A and B were in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

With respect to the Tenancy Agreement A, SHL was granted an
option, but not an obligation, to renew the tenancy every three years
for three more years for a maximum of 15 years commencing from
1 April 2016 at the then prevailing open market rent.

The Group announced on 28 November 2013 (“Announcement”),
that on 28 November 2013, SHL (as tenant) entered into a tenancy
agreement with MPIL (as landlord) to rent office unit number 601
and storeroom numbers 1A and 1B on 6th floor at Stelux House for a
term of two years and three months commencing on 1 January 2014
and expiring on 31 March 2016. All definitions in this note have the
same meaning as referred to in the Announcement.

The monthly rental of HK$42,500 (exclusive of rates, government
rent and management charges) is payable in advance in cash by the
tenant on the first day of each and every calendar month.

The monthly rental was determined on an arm’s length basis taking
into account the valuation on the office unit with two storerooms
conducted by an independent property valuer dated 22 November
2013. Accordingly, the directors considered that the terms of the
tenancy agreement reflected normal commercial terms and were
fair and reasonable, and the entering into of tenancy agreement was
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

In addition, SHL was granted an option, but not an obligation,
to renew the tenancy every three years for three more years for a
maximum of 15 years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the then
prevailing open market rent.

The Group announced on 10 December 2012 (“Announcement”),
that on 10 December 2012, the Group, through certain of its wholly
owned subsidiaries, each individually as tenant/licensee, entered
into the Warehouse Leasing and Licence Renewal Agreements 2013
with TSCL and ALCL, each individually as landlord/licensor, to
renew the term of the leases/licences of 4 existing warehouse spaces
in Hong Kong for terms of three years commencing on 1 April 2013
and expiring on 31 March 2016. All definitions in this note have the
same meaning as referred to in the Announcement.

(iv)
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Monthly rental totaled HK$155,920 comprising HK$146,420
per calendar month (exclusive of rates, government rent and
management charges) for 3 warehouse spaces and HK$9,500
per calendar month (inclusive of rates, government rent and
management charges) for the remaining 1 warehouse space, both
payable monthly in advance in cash by the tenants on the first day
of each and every calendar month.

The monthly rentals/licence fees were determined on an arm'’s
length basis after having taken into account the valuations on
the warehouses conducted by an independent property valuer
on 23 November 2012, which indicate that the renewal rentals/
licence fees under the Warehouse Leasing and Licence Renewal
Agreements 2013 were favourable to the Group as compared
with the prevailing market rental/licence fee values of the subject
warehouses. Accordingly, the Directors considered the Warehouse
Leasing and Licence Renewal Agreements 2013 were on normal
commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The continuing connected transactions as set out in (ii) to (v) above, in
relation to the leasing of properties from connected parties, have been
aggregated for the purpose of classification in accordance Rule 14A.25
of the Listing Rules, and the aggregate annual caps for the financial year
ended 31 March 2014 was approximately HK$14,000,000.

(vi)

The Group announced on 10 December 2012 (“Announcement”),
that on 10 December 2012, Stelux Properties Agency Limited
(“SPAL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as agent,
renewed the management and property agency liaison services
agreement (“Service Agreement 2013”) with MPIL for a term of three
years up to and including 31 March 2016 for the provision of the
following services (“Services”):

(@) contract administration with respect to contracts entered into
between MPIL and third parties from time to time;

(b)  property agency liaison and tenancy management;
(c)  management of the property manager of Stelux House; and
(d) other miscellaneous administrative services.

All definitions in this note have the same meaning as referred to in
the Announcement.

SPAL has been providing the Services with respect to Stelux
House since 1998 and has accumulated relevant knowledge and
experience. MPIL is satisfied so far with the Services provided by the
Group, whilst the remuneration received by the Group under the
Service Agreement is more than enough to cover the relevant costs
incurred by the Group in providing the Services. As such, SPAL
continued to provide the Services to MPIL following the expiration
of the preceding service agreement on 31 March 2013.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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(vii)

Monthly remuneration was set at HK$195,000 per calendar month
(in the first year up to and including 31 March 2014) payable in
advance in cash on the first day of each and every calendar month.
Parties to the Service Agreement 2013 shall negotiate and agree in
good faith to increase the remuneration on an annual basis for the
second year and the third year by not more than 10% over that in
the preceding year with reference to the actual increase in costs
(including but not limited to the related staff salaries) incurred by
the Group with respect to the provision of the Services. In the event
that no agreement is reached between the parties in negotiating
the remuneration for the next year, the remuneration shall remain
unchanged.

The monthly remuneration received by the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2014 was the same as that under the preceding
service agreement for the three years ended 31 March 2013.
The remuneration was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and with reference to the estimate of the costs
to be incurred by the Company with respect to the provision of the
Services in the financial year ended 31 March 2013. The directors
considered the terms of the Service Agreement 2013 were on
normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

With reference to the monthly remuneration under the Service
Agreement 2013, the Annual Cap Amount for this continuing
connected transaction was set at HK$2,340,000 for the financial
year ended 31 March 2014.

With respect to transactions (i) to (vi) above, each of IOM, MPIL,
TSCL and ALCL is a subsidiary of Yee Hing Company Limited (“Yee
Hing”). Yee Hing, directly and indirectly through its subsidiary, held
0.24% of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March 2014. The
Trust, of which Mr. Joseph C.C.Wong and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas,
being directors of the Company, are beneficiaries, holds 55% of
the total issued shares of Yee Hing. Therefore, each of IOM, MPIL,
TSCL and ALCL is an associate of the aforesaid directors and hence
is a connected person of the Company. Therefore, transactions (i)
to (vi) above constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company.

The above continuing connected transactions also constitute related
party transactions and are disclosed in note 34 to the financial
statements.

(vii)
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AUDITORS ZEEm

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers A A R O A8 A L a K T g R S T

who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. B > a2 SR AT 8 AR > M Y S NI T 8 2
1T o
On behalf of the Board REEHE
Joseph C. C. Wong =A%
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer TR AT
Hong Kong, 26 June 2014 B - 201446 126 H
31 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B3 B R

.

pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF STELUX HOLDINGS
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Stelux Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 131
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

ALK G T EB P PR RE T
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

Mt : +852 2289 8888 » fHE : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 June 2014

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
meWwamk
For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z 201443 A 31 H IL4F R
I EEEEE——

2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEE BETT BT
Revenues A 5 3,891,572 3,647,197
Cost of sales P AR 9 (1,512,885) (1,361,894)
Gross profit B 2,378,687 2,285,303
Other (losses)/gains, net HoAth (F548) i ds > 748 6 (4,400) 38,389
Other income HAble A 7 25,717 25,448
Selling expenses P S 9 (1,720,009) (1,639,500)
General and administrative expenses — R B ATEC 9 (384,249) (341,178)
Other operating expenses HoAEE S 9 (33,416) (50,260)
Operating profit CESE 262,330 318,202
Finance costs S A 11 (37,139) (17,670)
Share of profit of an associate JREAL B 5 2 ) i ) 20 1,267 -
Profit before income tax R BT A5 i Vi A 226,458 300,532
Income tax expense BB 12 (54,285) (67,034)
Profit for the year A A 172,173 233,498
Attributable to: DLR AL -
Equity holders of the Company E/NGIL ETX SN 171,712 232,900
Non-controlling interests ER gt 461 598
172,173 233,498
HK cents HK cents
L B
Earnings per share attributable to AN A RE SR A AN EAS
the equity holders of the Company g A A
— Basic — Sk 14 16.41 22.26
— Diluted 32 14 15.98 21.41
2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEE BT BT
Dividends il 15 76,392 76,392

The notes on pages 42 to 131 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meETHEkER
For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z 201443 A 31 H IL4F R
I EEEEE——

2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
MIsE BT FEEATIT
Profit for the year A Ay 172,173 233,498
Other comprehensive income: HA Azl ss -
Items that may be reclassified to HARH S
profit or loss EisErl: RS RE
Exchange differences M 5075 50 (34,417) 3,892
Revaluation of available-for-sale Al
financial assets HAHS B EAG 22 (286) 27
Other comprehensive income for the year,  4F N H1FL4% 2 HoAtlh
net of tax EXTem (34,703) 3,919
Total comprehensive income for the year 45 [A 2 [H i i A 4H 137,470 237,417
Attributable to: DATR REAL
Equity holders of the Company KA FRER A A 137,738 236,666
Non-controlling interests FEPEIRE (268) 751
Total comprehensive income for the year  4F A2 i i £ 44 47 137,470 237,417

The notes on pages 42 to 131 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEEAEX
As at 31 March 2014 2201443 31 H

2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 BT BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FE T E
Property, plant and equipment LUERR 1Y T 16 493,473 511,416
Investment property f'a-eyES 17 - -
Prepayment of lease premium TEASHAH B 1 18 47,256 60,079
Investment in an associate RS AT E 20 54,989 -
Intangible assets L G 21 63,197 60,497
Deferred tax assets IR ALl TE B 31 63,775 60,416
Available-for-sale financial assets AT R Y A TS 22 15,331 15,617
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JREWCRR ~ e )
FEATFIH 24 152,521 183,580
890,542 891,605
Current assets W) E
Stocks 1715 23 1,194,031 1,167,029
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEMCIRK ~ Hie
AT KA 24 423,494 314,565
Bank balances and cash SRATEE R R & 25 457,683 388,330
2,075,208 1,869,924
Total assets W AR 2,965,750 2,761,529
EQUITY iR
Capital and reserves attributable to A FIRE S A N REAG
the equity holders of the Company JBAS e At
Share capital A 26 104,647 104,647
Reserves Tt 27 1,353,691 1,292,345
Shareholders’ funds i e 1,458,338 1,396,992
Non-controlling interests IE 2 JBEAE 7 7,483 8,179
Total equity 17 2 AEAH 1,465,821 1,405,171
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAEX

As at 31 March 2014 JA20144£3 31 H
S

2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P5E BT AT T
LIABILITIES =V
Non-current liabilities FEmE AR’
Deferred tax liabilities R SR I A K 31 2,126 2,337
Borrowings R 29 70,464 143,364
Convertible bonds CIELY £ 30 331,456 316,419
404,046 462,120
Current liabilities ) A fE
Creditors and accruals AT AR 3k S I w1 28 595,839 518,147
Income tax payable JEAS TS BL 35,921 24,811
Borrowings B 29 464,123 351,280
1,095,883 894,238
Total liabilities AR 1,499,929 1,356,358
Total equity and liabilities HE A5 I A AR 2,965,750 2,761,529
Net current assets B A E R E 979,325 975,686
Total assets less current liabilities AL E RS AR 1,869,867 1,867,291

Joseph C.C. Wong Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
HAIG BAER
Chairman and Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
LR AT TTEHH R
BT 15 B 5 A

The notes on pages 42 to 131 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
BERMER

As at 31 March 2014 2201443 31 H

2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B E BT BT
ASSETS aE
Non-current asset I
Investment in a subsidiary ) AR e <y 19 - -
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EWCHRK ~ H24 K
TEAT A 24 20,511 26,114
20,511 26,114
Current assets M E
Amounts due from subsidiaries JREMAC 8 2 ) T 19 578,630 655,936
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEMRR ~ %4 %
FHHIH 24 142 265
Bank balances and cash SRATAE R B B 25 27 28
578,799 656,229
Total assets R AR 599,310 682,343
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to EN/NEIL EXS RPN
the equity holders of the Company JREAG A K fit
Share capital JEA 26 104,647 104,647
Reserves Gl 27 155,473 252,578
Total equity 2 AR 260,120 357,225

B () A RA A
2014 4F4FHR
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BALANCE SHEET
EEAER
As at 31 March 2014 JA20144£3 31 H
S

2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P5E BT T BT
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FEmE AR’
Convertible bonds AR A S 30 331,456 316,419
331,456 316,419
Current liabilities mE A E
Creditors and accruals JEEAST B K S B 2 28 2,234 3,199
Amount due to a subsidiary JREAST B o 2 ) I 19 5,500 5,500
7,734 8,699
Total liabilities A AR 339,190 325,118
Total equity and liabilities WA I A AR 599,310 682,343
Net current assets L) A 571,065 647,530
Total assets less current liabilities HUEE W E A 591,576 673,644
Joseph C.C. Wong Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
HAIE BAEE
Chairman and Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
FRERITEE TR

B IR 5 A

The notes on pages 42 to 131 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FERREER
For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z 201443 A 31 H IL4F R
I EEEEE——

Attributable to the equity holders

of the Company
RPREEEE ARG
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
BA  Hittfis RERA B FERER  ERAH
(Note 26)  (Note 27)  (Note 27)
(Wzk26)  (WHE27)  (ME27)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
WAL W wWEr W wEH BT
At 1 April 2012 2012441 H 95,134 60,505 1,017,146 1,172,785 8,656 1,181,441
Profit for the year AF gt - - 232,900 232,900 598 233,498
Other comprehensive income: A& T4 :
Exchange differences T i 2 7 - 3,739 - 3,739 153 3,892
Revaluation of available- T 6 1 A S o A
for-sale financial assets - 27 - 27 - 27
Total other comprehensive income  FiAl 4 T it 44 48 - 3,766 - 3,766 153 3,919
Total comprehensive income e ot - 3,766 232,900 236,666 751 237,417
Acquisition of additional BOME R &
non-controlling interest iilhe
shares - - 447 447 (927) (480)
Issue of convertible bonds BT
(Note 30) (W 30) - 77,090 - 77,090 - 77,09
Special dividends paid as TR AL IR A5 A 5.
bonus shares 9,513 - (9,513) - - -
Dividends paid CAmRS, - - (89,996)  (89,996) (301)  (90,297)
At 31 March 2013 #20134F3 H31H 104,647 141,361 1,150,984 1,396,992 8,179 1,405,171
At 1 April 2013 #20134F4 A1 H 104,647 141,361 1,150,984 1,396,992 8,179 1,405,171
Profit for the year N i - - 7712 171,712 461 172,173
Other comprehensive income: ~ HAb 2 s -
Exchange differences liE 58 6 3 - (33,688 - (33,688) (729)  (34,417)
Revaluation of available-for-sale A {fk tH 8 A I Y
financial assets - (286) - (286) - (286)
Total other comprehensive income  HAih 2 T it 44 - (33,974) - (33,974) (729 (34,703)
Total comprehensive income ElienE - (33974 171,712 137,738 (268) 137,470
Dividends paid ERBE - - (76392 (76,392) (428) (76,820
At 31 March 2014 #20144E3 A31H 104,647 107,387 1,246,304 1,458,338 7,483 1,465,821

The notes on pages 42 to 131 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FEREIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 201443 H 31 H IE4EE

Note 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
(i3 BT BT
Cash flows from operating activities BEEHRB S E
Cash generated from operations BEIEE B4 32 328,358 181,052
Interest paid EATFLE (8,959) (12,277)
Hong Kong profits tax paid SR (21,132) (60,413)
Overseas profits tax paid A MRS B (27,128) (26,628)
Overseas profits tax refunded £ 48 [m i S A58 235 1,229
Net cash generated from operating activities BTGB T I R 271,374 82,963
Cash flows from investing activities BER BB S
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [UNYERE S & i (118,193) (162,141)
Proceeds from sale of property, B - e R
plant and equipment G 1,723 1,028
Investment in an associate N E N R (38,368) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary e a/N| - (6,451)
Acquisition of trademark NGk (1,553) (496)
Interest received 2R E 1,123 1,020
Dividends received BB 3,175 4,509
Acquisition of additional interests in a 1) 2 FROHEE 4 s —
subsidiary from non-controlling interests WS J 2~ ] B S - (480)
Net cash used in investing activities P B r 3R AR (152,093) (163,011)
Cash flows from financing activities BT B BB
Drawdown of bank loans FRIURAT B 644,513 634,716
Repayment of bank loans BB IRAT K (602,079) (648,910)
Capital element of finance lease payments B E i A% (555) (436)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders T2 A R B, (76,392) (89,996)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B R I RE 2R R (428) (301)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds, BT TR S T 1S 20H
net of transaction cost bR 35 A - 368,754
Interest paid on convertible bonds B AT MR 5 LS (12,939) (6,850)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES (7)) /G
financing activities 11 35 4 V5 A (47,880) 256,977
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B4 R &5 EY 2 8 nF 71,401 176,929
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4] )3 & K3 4 %18 388,330 220,855
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes B 2R S i ) 2 (2,048) (9,454)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year AR B R EEY) 457,683 388,330
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents: 35 KB S (E W 45 Bk 10 73 B -
Cash and bank balances B e KRTTHE B 457,683 388,330

The notes on pages 42 to 131 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are shown in Note
36 to financial statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on
26 June 2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(@) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”).
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
that available-for-sale financial assets and certain
financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) are measured at fair value, as
appropriate.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.

—REHR

Ao A BRI BORPE R > H B
Ja 2 W) B SE S O A5 R B E 36 ©

AN F A SRR RS 2 B BRAF]
HEEM 4k 2 Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda °

AN AR A A
— LT o

2 o T A R w5

Bk A s E AN > RESE B R TI L
WEEHE o ME MR TR 20144F 6 H 26
H s e it -

TEEHHRME

A AR B33 S5 i P R ) T 2
REINWMT o B AGERES > &S
B O 2 A BB -

@ HREE

AR AR T i ) MR 7 o B s
o e Q) (T B B R B ) > 1%
JBE SRR A Y A B A
a’%i&%%ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%éﬁ%%‘%i&%@ﬂ' [
TS A R ]) > 2R S A
EFTEC ‘f&ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%&%%ﬁ
T R B B (AR T H)
PERHRE (B ILIE) -

R A A 5 o 4 U A S P
WA FTETE TER G T8
5 A B TE SR AN B8 R R A
HH BT o A B AR g R
oA - SR H T B K
AR ALY - B 4 5 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHERME (4)
(Continued)
(@ Basis of preparation (Continued) (@ wREE )

Adoption of new standards, amendments to standards

and interpretation

The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation are mandatory for the first

RANBTHER] ~ TR T K it FE

DL B HER ~ HERIMEET R RER 2013
F4 71 H B 2 BBUE B E R AR

time for the financial year beginning 1 April 2013 and AT TR -

are adopted by the Group:

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of items of FEEGTHERE 19 K R2mREEE 25

other comprehensive (7T A)
income
HKAS 19 (revised 2011)  Employee benefits FlasENE 199 BAMA
(542011 4453T)

HKAS 27 (revised 2011)  Separate financial FibGshEAE 279 BB RE

statements (182011 4EA63T)

HKAS 28 (revised 2011)  Associates and joint T GHEE 285 HEARRAEME

ventures (#2011 4463T)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)  First time adoption: Tl BB RAEN IR BUR R
Government loans B9 (BT

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)  Financial instruments: piiding s Rt A SMTHE « WEILH
Disclosures on asset e AL SIEN HERAMR
and liability offsetting

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial BRI REEN  GAMERE

statements H10%

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements FEMBREEL  HREH

FE119
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests FHMBEIREE  BEAEER fEE
in other entities 125
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement BHMHRSEN  ATHERE
F13%

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Consolidated financial FEMBHEEN  RARHRE - LR
and HKFRS 12 statements, joint #1098 L LB A
(Amendment) arrangements and FMHREEN  ERZER B

disclosure of interests in CANE NS
other entities: Transition RIS 12 5%
guidance (BRI A)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping costs in the Fs (RRIHaRE  ERIRBGEERR
production phase of aBZAE) ZRIRBA
a surface mine — R 205

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements SEECEEE 20094F£ 2011 4F

Project 2009-2011 Cycle I IE
43 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Adoption of new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation (Continued)

Except for the adoption of HKAS 1 (Amendment),
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) and HKFRS 13 which have
resulted in changes in disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements as described below, the adoption
of the above standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation have no significant impact on the results
and financial position of the Company.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) requires entities to group items
presented in “other comprehensive income” on the
basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable
to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments).

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) requires new disclosure
requirements which focus on quantitative information
about recognised financial instruments that are offset
in the balance sheet, as well as those recognised
financial instruments that are subject to master netting
or similar arrangements irrespective of whether they
are offset.

HKFRS 13 aims to improve consistency and reduce
complexity by providing a precise definition of fair
value and a single source of fair value measurement
and disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs.

2

TESHHEME )

mBEE ()

RANBTHER] ~ TR T K at FE (A

[ﬁ%ﬁé%%%ﬁéﬁﬁﬂﬂéﬁﬁﬁ(%ﬂ

A) T I A MR AR 7 5% (BT
) B A s B RIS 13 951 2L

AR R B R B B A P
b PRAm At e R~ HERIBERT M B
S A A2 B ) S A B S IR D A R

-2 K
AR 1 SR (EETA) BUEE

LI 250 [ H A A Tan i as | 2 THH 4%
2T H AR R BT R R
(B R R ) 2 HEMEIT A o

T vt DB 25 R JU 588 7 9% (U RTA) KR
FENE B AR A B B R AE
HrEAMRRTESNCHEREM LA
D K 57 38 K boh o SO 2 BERL R
O AR TR ORe G ey 1
wEILER -

A i B O RIS 13 SR R AR R
{ﬁ/\%ﬁzﬁ% THNTEFHRZ

AU LA L2 F A 45 7 1 U i
K@‘EEUZ%&ﬁfﬁﬁ”z il W — B
oo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTTBERE(H)
(Continued)
(@ Basis of preparation (Continued) (@ wREE )

1] A2 R ITT A5 5 [ T 27 R AR 19 47
HERY ~ ERINERT R it FE

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation that are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group

DLUR 2 B AN HZER 20144 H 1 H
B2 4% B bR 2 s A ) ml LA A ]
il R ) > A 4 (B NI A 2 R AR B
FHER 2 e Rl - MERIMETT K R

The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation to existing standards have
been published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2014

or later periods, but the Group has not early adopted

them:

Effective for financial year
beginning on or after

LRIRTIER e v 3

LRHERER
HKAS 19 (Amendment) Defined benefit plans 1 April 2015
EHEETHENE 1958 (BT 4) Rl 201544 A1H
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation on asset and liability offsetting 1 April 2014
BB ETHERE 325 (BT 4) B TH B R R IR RS 201454710
HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of Assets 1 April 2014
B ETHERE 365 (BaT4) Kb 201454710
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 1 April 2014
- Novation of Derivatives
BEAFHERIE 3958 (BT 4) BB TH : Rt - R TR EH 201444 1H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments Note
BB BRI 9 B MBETA it
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 April 2016
BB R AR 143 EHIERRS 20164711
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Mandatory effective date and transition disclosures 1 April 2015
BT Bt AR 7 SR AR 8 B A R 201544 A 1H
BRIt IR 9O 58 (BT A)
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKFRS 27 Investment entities 1 April 2014
(Amendment)
FBMBRSENE 109 FEMERE RN BHER 201444 1H
B2 PR A B R 27 5 (BT A)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies 1 April 2014
Fib (ARG R RZ RS —RRA 05 2014541 TH
Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements 2012 & 2013 Cycle 1 April 2015
EREE R 20124F5 2013 M2 fF 20155647101

Note: Effective date to be determined

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTBERME (4F)

(Continued)

(@ Basis of preparation (Continued) (@ wEEXE ()
New standards, amendments to standards and ﬁ%éﬂﬁiﬁ@ﬁﬂ%ﬂgﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
interpretation that are not yet effective and have not ERY ~ HERNETT R FE (4

been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

The Group is assessing the impact of these AR B B AE G AL LSRR HEHIME

new standards, amendments to standards and PR R WEBLRS BRI S

interpretation, and is not yet in a position to state Hrie R s MEHNEFT N2 B RS EAE

whether they would have a significant impact on the ] /8 S A T B S IR 0 L KR

Group's results of operations and financial position. 2 o

(b)  Subsidiaries b) HMEBRF

(i) Consolidation () FFEHRH
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured Wi JagS 2 ) 5 A 4R 3R B
entity) over which the Group has control. The il HE B I A E B (604 & ik
Group controls an entity when the Group is HE) o WAEMERE 2 HZE
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns 6 117 7 45 T 2 (] i 0 Ja g
from its involvement with the entity and has the AT s I R g o A RE
ability to affect those returns through its power 7 R R I RE T B
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated S5 1] i A B2 T B4 5%
from the date on which control is transferred to o BREE A W 2 MR H OB HE
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the HIETAEHZ HERWEE
date that control ceases. AR - 3l A R I REAS 1L 2 B

{TJJ: /T\El%“)\gﬁa °

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

(1)

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved
in stages, the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date through profit or loss.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EEEBREEE A
(Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries (Continued) b) MEBRRE )
(i) Consolidation (Continued) (i)  AEIEH ()
(1) Business combination (Continued) (1) EBEH )
Any contingent consideration to be A SR T R AT B

transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value
of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is
less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the income
statement (Note 2(g)).

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

SRACE LU B 2 -
{ERERD - PR EE A
B2 BARAUE AR AE
(B A7 (A7 5 ) 5 AR %
7 s g wh e H A 39 9
R 45 T AR B A HoA 4
T At 2 SR o B
it Z BORACUE A T E Rt
B A AR SR A E
i AR o

R A -~ ol
AT AT I P22 WA 2 < S AT
AT 515 FT A BN T 2 B
AW H 2 2 s (E
P P AL T R (L
AR - R
BYIRAEREE S
R - DR IR
I o e SE RT3 A 2 HE i
A AR T WS
NEEEFELAE
HAERIS EHA s &
e (Kt 2(g)) ©

S 3 5 S 7
M2 5 2 4 5 S B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

2)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(9]

Subsidiaries (Continued)
(i)~ Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group's investments in associates
include goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit of an associate’ in the income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d

(e)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

(ii)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuations where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified
as available for sale, are included in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EESTHBRME (4)
(Continued)
(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued) () INEIBE (AH)
(iii)  Group companies (i) ZEEE 2 A

S T T A T AE B B 2
BRI 2 B (200 ma
RS 2 B ) 2 A R B IR
W U AR S R

presentation currency are translated into the L

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the

presentation currency as follows:

HREAMKT EIEE
BB HAS R H Z o

- assets and liabilities for each balance -
sheet presented are translated at the

closing rate at the date of that balance MEIRE
sheet;
income and expenses for each income AR R LA B

statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of

equity.

PRI A > HEIT
PN FE 22 5 0 BT
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BRAL o ZEREAE LT » A
B3z Rk 22 5 O 4
B K

v A W S 2 U e 2 {1
HItERIHE o

WS S A SRR T A R S
TEABGEEEHE G
B R B B o Sl 2 AT E e 4
B o A REE S0 26 B A SR A B

differences arising are recognised in equity. i ©

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the equity holders
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced parts is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial
year in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation
on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Leasehold land classified
as finance lease

Shorter of remaining
lease term or
useful life

Buildings Lesser of the unexpired
lease term or 20 to
50 years

Equipment (including 3 to 10 years or over
the lease term

3 to 15 years

4 to 5 years

leasehold improvements)
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note (2h)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FTESHBERME (/)
(Continued)
(2 Intangible assets (@ EBREE
(i) Goodwill (i) P

TR A S R S D W

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of

(i)

subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group's interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the
fair value of the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount,
which is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.

Trademarks

Trademarks have an indefinite useful life and
the carrying amount brought forward are not
amortised but tested annually for impairment.
Trademarks are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation up to 31 March 2005 and
accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

@

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events and changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Available-for-sale financial assets

The classification of financial assets depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
from the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value.

The translation differences on non-monetary securities
are recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of
non-monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the
case of equity securities classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is an evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the
profit or loss is removed from equity and recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(k)

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes the cost of direct labour, materials
and appropriate proportion of production overhead
expenditure, and is calculated on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the anticipated
sales proceeds less selling expenses in the ordinary
course of business.

Debtors

Debtors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of debtors
is established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When a trade receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for
debtors. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited in the consolidated income
statement.

If collection of debtors is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

2

FTESHEEREE 4

0

(Y

#H

B A M T 538 B (L T 4 AR
FAM - MAEEFHEETE - )
b RLAS B 8 ) A B S A%
JIVHEY- 2 HEHE 5 o a5 BLEHE 9%
TE S B Wi aR WAL R B 2T R

FE U R R

JE R SR 2 42 0 B RD, - AR fi
JTVEL BRI S0 o B A > I B
BUE M o EA F B REUR AL
AR BEMRAR BB SCER 2 R el ol BT A
FHAFRIA - Rl 1 b O 2 R E
B o fRBS AN B R BB IR 8 > W]
REM 2 B AT A B AL B 4 R I
EAEE > AR 2 RSO AR
YRG0 15 < R b Y R T L B T
W RRBR R E B EM 228 %
JEUAT 0 B PR R A B o R 2 R T
O AR > T 4R R
W 4t 2 Tl RO o I WA RO AT i ml
MR o I A IR WS 0 A R A B
5 AT RS T FLAR M ] 2 S B aE A
Wi F o

i BB WA R T 506 A — 4 B L A i ]
(5 SR e SE 5 1R o A I )
IR BN ERE - BRI > (IR s E
B -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

(0)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Creditors

Creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Creditors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

(p)

Borrowings (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group can be
converted to share capital at the option of the holder,
and the number of shares to be issued does not vary
with changes in their fair value.

Liability component of a convertible instrument
is classified as current unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

(i)  Issue of convertible bonds as compound
financial instruments

The liability component of a compound
financial instrument is recognised initially at
the fair value of a similar liability that does
not have an equity conversion option. The
equity component is recognised initially at
the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole and
the fair value of the liability component, which
is included in shareholders’ equity in other
reserves. Any directly attributable transaction
costs are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to their initial
carrying amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p Convertible bonds (Continued)

()

(i)

Issue of convertible bonds as compound
financial instruments (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of a compound financial instrument
is measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The equity component of
a compound financial instrument is not re-
measured subsequent to initial recognition.

Issue of convertible bonds as share-based
payment transactions

If the identifiable consideration received by the
Group appears to be less than the fair value
of the convertible bonds issued, the Group
measures the unidentifiable services received (to
be received) as the difference between the fair
value of the convertible bonds issued and that
of the identifiable consideration received, and
the difference is recognised in the profit or loss
immediately unless qualified for capitalisation.

The liability component (i.e. the bondholder’s
right to demand payment in cash) of the
convertible bonds will be accounted for
as a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction while the equity component (i.e.
the bondholder’s right to demand settlement
in the Company’s shares) of the convertible
bonds will be accounted for as an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction. The
entity first measures the fair value of the liability
component, and then measure the fair value of
the equity component by taking into account
that the bondholder must forfeit the right to
receive cash in order to receive the equity
instrument.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of the convertible bonds is stated
at fair value, with changes recorded in the
consolidated income statement. The equity
component is not re-measured subsequent to
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

(r)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, its subsidiaries and its associate
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and law) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits
(i) Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension
schemes. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds. The Group mainly
has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R R Y RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

(u)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Restructuring
provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses. Provision for an
onerous contract is recognised when the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Recognition of revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied and services
rendered, stated net of discounts returns and value
added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met
for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.
The Group bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R R Y RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)  Recognition of revenue (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Sales of goods — retail

Sales of goods are recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer. Retail
sales are usually in cash or by credit card.

Sales of goods — wholesale and trading

Sales of goods are recognised when the Group
has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the product and
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Building management fee income

Building management fee income is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other long-term payables. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
Company’s financial statements in the year in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Financial guarantee

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. The Group does
not recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at
inception, but perform a liability adequacy test at each
reporting date by comparing the carrying amount of
the net liability regarding the financial guarantee with
its present legal or constructive obligation amount. If
the carrying amount of the net liability is less than its
present legal or constructive obligation amount, the
entire difference is recognised in the income statement
immediately.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREEA
(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HHEEREBEZE G
(i) Foreign exchange risk (i) ArEEEAE

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
China and a number of countries in South
East Asia. Retail sales transactions are mostly
denominated in the functional currencies of
the group entities. The Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risk mainly arise from future
purchase transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate. The Group considers its
foreign currency exposure as mainly arising
from the exposure of the Singapore dollar,
Malaysian ringgit, Thai baht, Renminbi and
British pound against the Hong Kong dollar.
The Group regularly monitors its exposures
to foreign currency transactions and use
foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge
such exposure occasionally depending on
management’s risk assessment.

The details of the currencies in which the
Group’s bank loans are denominated are set
out in Note 29 to the financial statements. The
Group's bank loans are principally denominated
in the functional currency of the relevant group
entity. Management does not anticipate any
significant foreign exchange risk associated with
the Group’s borrowings.

The approximate impact to the Group’s profit
before tax that might be resulted from the
reasonable possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates against the Hong Kong dollar to
which the Group has significant exposure at 31
March 2014 is summarised below. The analysis
includes balances between group companies
where the balances are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of
the lending or the borrowing entities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R R R

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@ Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(i)

3 HRERER )

(@ MHEBEZE A

Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) ShEEmR G ()
2014 2013
Increase/ Increase/
Increase  (decrease) Increase  (decrease)
in foreign in profit  in foreign in profit
exchange before  exchange before
rate income tax rate income tax
BRBE A3 R Al i
SMEER R, SERER Ay,
#9348 o0 (R2) f 3 (I8 D)
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Singapore dollar oo 5% 6,728 5% 6,280
Malaysian ringgit FEARPY R4 5% 4,037 5% 3,220
Thai baht BSOS 5% 304 5% 711
Renminbi NG 5% 3,277 5% 1,643
British pound HEgE 5% (1,008) 5% (2,272)
Decrease in the above foreign exchange rates bt A1 B B 382 5% (2013
by 5% (2013: 5%) would affect the profit before A 5%) % 3B % B A s A A AR
income tax by the same amount but in the AH ] <3 BEAEAR 52 77 1] 1R 2 2 o
opposite direction.
Interest rate risk (i) FIFmpE

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets other than
bank balances, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 25. The Group's exposure to
changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
to its bank loans. Bank loans at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. Details of the Group’s bank borrowings
are disclosed in Note 29(a) to the financial
statements. The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk arising from the convertible
bonds bearing interest at fixed rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEBREEA
(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HH¥EBEE G
(ii)  Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FFME S (5E)

(iii)

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk.

At 31 March 2014, if interest rates had been 50
basis points (2013: 50) higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the profit before
income tax would have been HK$2,571,000
(2013: HK$2,505,000) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets (mainly include deposits with banks and
debtors) as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Bank balances are deposited in banks with
sound credit ratings to mitigate the risk arising
from banks. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk with any single
counterparty or group of counterparties. The
Group also has policies in place to assess
the credit worthiness of customers to ensure
that sales of products are made to wholesale
customers with an appropriate credit history.
Besides, management of the Group monitors its
credit risk on an ongoing basis by reviewing the
debtors” aging to minimise its exposure to credit
risk.

Sales to retail customers are made in cash or via
major credit cards.

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBRERE A
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HBEBEZEE)
(iii) ~ Credit risk (Continued) (iii) 1 B (A
Rental deposits are mainly placed with various MHatke TG TARELEHA KL

landlords in countries where the Group operates
and are due to refund upon the expiry of the
tenancy agreements and handover of the leased
premises. During the year, the Group did not
experience any defaults by the landlords.

BEBWEEXNZHET > I
R FEL o o i S SR T B W
HWFA] TR o AFN > AL
N7 M 2 B R S A S

(iv)  Liquidity risk (iv) BB L
Prudent liquidity risk management implies FEE U ) A R
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability HEFE R 2 BLE SOB B E
of funding through an adequate amount ) 2 B R SR S 2
of committed credit facilities. Due to the ZEE - MRMRBIED SRS
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, 5 WU BLE B AR MR TSR
management aims to maintain flexibility in BERE - DUOREE B 2 T
funding by keeping credit lines available. P o
The table below analyses the Group’s and the N RBURAGE M S A\ 2 W
Company’s financial liabilities into relevant A - i AR B B AR R
maturity groupings based on the remaining WRERAEHHEEH3MAN
period at the balance sheet to the contractual T % IR [ HEEAT 0 A o TR SR A 3%
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table PR B ARITBI B -
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Between Between
Within 1and 2 2and3 Over
1 year Years years 3 years

T80T 122K 2E3FR 3ENL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT
Group &8
At31 March 2014 201453 A31 1
Bank borrowings FATE 473,299 18,255 16,378 39,278
Finance lease ey iik=y 124 - - -
Convertible bonds A 12,986 12,986 12,986 380,308
Creditors and accruals AT IR K e R4 A 595,603 - - -
At31 March 2013 201343 A31H
Bank borrowings SATR 362,829 26,204 23,381 106,249
Finance lease [Eis=vitl=y 552 127 - -
Convertible bonds AR E S 12,986 12,986 12,986 393,294
Creditors and accruals — METHEZ M RERTH 2 i) 509,642 - - -
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ISR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3 HRRBREREE)

(b)

(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HH¥EBEE G
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) B &L ()
Between Between
Within 1and 2 2and 3 Over
1 year Years years 3 years
10T 1228k 2E3FR 3FLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BEAR BT
Company NF
At 31 March 2014 201443 A31H
Convertible bonds k3 12,986 12,986 12,986 380,308
Creditors and accruals  JEFTHER L w4 1) 2,234 - - -
At 31 March 2013 #20134E3 A31H
Convertible bonds TR A S 12,986 12,986 12,986 393,294
Creditors and accruals — JEAT R R ESH 2 3,199 - - -
Capital risk management b)) EBEXERER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current borrowings and
convertible bonds as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less bank balances and cash. Total
capital is calculated as ‘shareholders’ funds’ as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet.

AR ) A A B R IR R A A
FE AR A 7 90 DA FBCSRCHR 3 3 A0 7 L
e g A AR AR i > (R IR AR
B A 45 R DL BUIR A 2 fiE
K

Py T HERF B A A SR T
FE B o B ST IR A9 JBB IR - i i
FURMR G~ BTN BRI 1 A L
AR o

SLSE N HA 2w A ik — 2> AR
ERE LA ARy B E A L E o (54
BE S % RO B DL AR B - 3
EHEERAE (Bl EERAM
TR 2 DB K I i B 8wk A B ml 4
JBAR S5 ) BUSRAT &5 88 MR Bt - &
ARBER R MG EEARERIURN
(R E ] -

B () A RA A
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A RS R R B o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 SR RERE ()
(b) Capital risk management (Continued) b)) EXREBEEH)
The gearing ratios at 31 March 2013 and 2014 were as A 20134F K% 20144:3 31 H Z B8
follows: EHSI T
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Total borrowings (Note 29) FEARHARE (MHE29) 534,587 494,644
Convertible bonds (Note 30) AR AR S (B RE 30) 331,456 316,419
Less: Bank balances and cash ¥k : $RAT&ER KB4 (P51 25)

(Note 25) (457,683) (388,330)
Net debt S 408,360 422,733
Shareholders’ funds JBHRE & 1,458,338 1,396,992
Gearing ratio fER R 28% 30%

() Fair value estimation (00 2AFEFME

The table below analyses the Group’s financial AEEE RN EFT RS T E > Hi

instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. E VLT I AE 5 2R M3 55 N

The different levels have been defined as follows: EHEEK

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o MEIEESRABEERTE -
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). PR A CRECTREE) (35 —#R) -

e Inputs other than quoted prices included o BRE—MITRIFERMMES > E
within level 1 that are observable for the asset o BB R T B R (RPEAS ) 3R
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or M4 (RIS A5 ) BEE s
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). i AME (55 8% o

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based o M IEARIE I T S MU 1
on observable market data (that is, unobservable B & B A A (RIS B8
inputs) (level 3). £ AME) (55 =8)) o

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets AR [ ) R 4G B AR S R ] 4

and liability components of convertible bonds are 55 BAEE A T ¥ N E R A B AL 5T

measured at fair value by discounting the estimated KRB G ET R o AT EHRE#RE

future cash flows. Their fair value measurement is R o B E 201443 H 31 HIEAS

classified as level 3. Changes in level 3 instruments for =4 T E A Eh 40 R R R 22 A B

the year ended 31 March 2014 are set out in Note 22 230 o

and Note 30 respectively.
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g s e

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

There was no transfer of financial instruments into or
out of level 3 during the year.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
including cash and cash equivalents, deposits in
approved financial institutions and debtors and
financial liabilities including creditors and short-term
borrowings, approximate their fair values due to their
short maturities.

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purpose is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The following financial assets are subject to certain
netting and similar arrangements.

3 BEERERE )

(]

(d)

Gross amount of financial liabilities
recognised

DERHE (4)

A A ST 08 A SO L B = S
ATH -

PR E 0 H > AR BB R
(BBl kB EEEY - Rl i
Bt 2 A7 IBUURA) R B85 B
R (CE43 A MR B A 1 R < AR T
(EEL O F{EARA o

BT 48 e A 5 B AR V(B S AR R B
5 AR F S < 5L 78 A A B T
1 T 35 M AT LR A B B
AR Al

BEHEMBEERMBEE

AT A5 0 O 2 O LA B B %
P e

Gross amount of
recognised  Net amount of
financial assets

setoffin the  presented in the

financial assets balance sheet balance sheet
REESREX REEEER
BRR  PEHEZCER FHIRE
B EEAE BREEAE BREERE
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000
BT BT BT
As at 31 March 2014 201443 H31H
Trade receivables JENRER 225,410 30 225,380
As at 31 March 2013 201343 A31H
Trade receivables WK 171,605 25 171,580

B () A AW
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AR ER AR B o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 B EMRERE (A7)
(d) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (d) EHEUBEERVYBEE ()
(Continued)
The following financial liabilities are subject to certain DLTF BAHS B A B i AR A T R &
netting and similar arrangements. PE o

Gross amount of
recognised  Net amount of
Gross amount of  financial assets financial liabilities

recognised set off in the  presented in the
financial liabilities balance sheet balance sheet
REESERYT  REESEX
EHR  EHERI HFIRE
BHAGAE - UBEELE 2 UKEEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
As at 31 March 2014 201443 A 31 H
Trade payables HEATHRR 314,691 1,131 313,560
As at 31 March 2013 201343 A 31 H
Trade payables JRE A5} AR K 242,860 507 242,356
For the financial assets and liabilities subject to certain At 2t 52 R R A O TR 22 R B A
netting arrangements, it allows for the Group and the SABEE AEINT E o AR EELAE S
counterparty to net settlement of the relevant financial ST 07 BEAT 00 4% TE o A B U7 R R Y
assets and liabilities when both elect to settle on a net TR RHAL MR AN Y > 2% R R R AS S A B
basis. B R
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 HRESTEITRAE
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and i it S A W A I 4 e 7 A8 R A TR 3K R
are based on historical experience and other factors, 3l D o S e 6 455 TE VAR A5 A A B A
including expectations of future events that are believed to LB G MR HAZ I o

be reasonable under the circumstances.
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PR ER AR B

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.

@

(ii)

(iii)

Net realisable value of stocks

Net realisable value of stocks is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of manufacturing and
selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will reassess the estimations at
the balance sheet date.

Impairment of debtors

The Group’s management determines the provision
for impairment of debtors receivable. This estimate is
based on the credit history of its customers and the
current market condition. Management reassesses the
provision at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses at least annually whether
property, plant and equipment exhibit any indications
of impairment. The recoverable amounts are
determined based on value-in-use calculation.
The value-in-use calculation involves estimating
the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived
from continuing use of the asset and applying the
appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows.
The estimation of future cash flows and selection
of discount rate require the use of judgements and
estimates. Management believes that any reasonably
foreseeable change in any of the above key elements
in the value-in-use calculation would not result in
material additional impairment charges.

4

RS hET R A (A7)

S Bt B AR AR AT SR B R
H 2 A R A R K 2 A A A B B A
o A7 E R P B T — (A AR
N e B R T (B E R R 2 A B
st Reflik 2 st i R

@

(i)

(iii)

FENREFE

Fr B AT S BLIFHE TS B W SE85 R AG
R 1 BBl 25 5 AU 9 i R AR B B 6
BHSC o s 55 ARt J9 SR E Rl - DA
T A R [ ¢ 9 AR T KB
A AT RER % P A Mo T E)
AT T A T A R W A o L A Y
R B R R AR AR o

P& BR SRR

7 A L T R SR B (L 2 488
i o BLIAAE RS R AL & S 1015
FERC Bk LR IR T DL A i o A B
AR S5 H TR AL A o

M - BBRRREZRE

AL & 2 DAY - R
SR AFTEAT AT BB B < W] i lm]
BT MR (R (E R SR o
A RT3 LA S R AR o 1 % R R R
AP 2 Bl WA R LA Rl
BRI BBl - B EE 2
Bani - JOBERE M WG 5 A
B T B A o AR
AT AT S AR A A AT B AT R
SEE) o I EEEE RSN R -

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and
trademarks have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2(h). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 21).

Deferred income tax

The Group’s management determines the amount
of deferred tax asset to be recognised by estimating
the amount of future profit available to utilise the
tax losses in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
The estimate is based on the projected profit in
respective jurisdiction and entity and the Group uses
its judgement to make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing on balance sheet
date. It could change as a result of the uncertainties in
the market conditions.

Fair value of convertible bonds

The fair value of convertible bonds are determined
using valuation techniques including reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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RS hEt R A (A7)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

BILEENRE

FRPE R 5 2(h) BTl 1 & HBUR > A SR
V9] A 0 T B AR M B
8 o B4 e A B 2 Wi ] 4 %8 4 1R
A EEF S R E - SR AT E
FIFAAGE (BftgE21) -

ESEFTS B

A T L e 1 AR S B T
B HAREE A AR AT B A B BURS Rk
HRE L8 e 2% mI RS i 1R A0 Tk PR, - %
AT T AR A A ) M T T ) L
i AR o T A S I B AR B e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR MR

5 REVENUES ON
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Turnover e
Sales of goods B 3,891,572 3,646,027
Gross rental income FH4SEIE A - 1,170
3,891,572 3,647,197
6  OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET Hft (B518), Wi F8
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Loss on disposal of property, plant WY - M S
and equipment, net e > T (794) (1,276)
Fair value gain of an investment BB SE A TE R
property - 30,000
Exchange (loss)/gain, net 5 (B548) Wieas - 198 (3,606) 9,665
(4,400) 38,389

B () A AW
2014 4F4FH
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81

OTHER INCOME 7 HftlgA
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Building management fee income EN-EIE {IUN 2,340 2,142
Dividend income from investments S 3,175 4,509
Interest income FIEWA 1,123 1,020
Sundries HETH 19,079 17,777
25,717 25,448

SEGMENT INFORMATION 8 SHEHER

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the executive directors. The executive directors review
the Group’s financial information mainly from product
and geographical perspectives. From a geographical
perspective, management assesses the performance of
watch and optical operations in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China and the rest of Asia.

Sales between operating segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those prevailing in arm’s length transactions.
The executive directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of adjusted earnings
before interest and tax (EBIT) and share of results of an
associate. This measurement basis excludes unallocated
income and net corporate expenses.

Net corporate expenses mainly represent staff costs and
provision for senior management bonus. Unallocated
assets represent equipment and debtors at corporate level,
investment in an associate, available-for-sale financial
assets, deferred tax assets and bank balances and cash.
Unallocated liabilities represent creditors and accruals at
corporate level, borrowings, convertible bonds, deferred tax
liabilities and income tax payable.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

8  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8 aoEERHE)

At 43 3 B RS ) — SR B LN W)U
FEEHEIWA - B E 201343 A31 HIL4E
JE > HAb A TR AR E Y N 4
A o

Other segment primarily relates to service income from a
related company. For the year ended 31 March 2013, it also
included the rental income received from the investment
property in Macau.

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BEWNUFIASIALEE
Watch retail Optical retail
BHTE REZE
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macau and Macau and
Mainland Restof ~ Mainland Restof ~ Wholesale Other Group
China Asia China Asia trading segment Total
£ E#
RAR L) AR )] HE &8
PEAE  HBRE  hEAE  HHBHE % Hta ¥ wsr
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BRfrn  ARfr AW E%fR EMffr BN BEfx
Revenues A
Gross segment ik 1,604,493 515,720 967,513 300,514 874,072 18,049 4,340,361
Inter-segment gl - - - - (430,740)  (18,049)  (448,789)
1,604,493 515,720 967,513 300,514 443,332 - 3,891,572
Segment results PHES 232,797 (1739) 25,778 5,149 94,042 (6,956) 333414
Unallocated income FATIA 3,175
Net corporate expenses % FI{TBF 3 i (74,259)
Operating profit A 262,330
Finance costs RAH LA (37,139)
Share of profit of TN A i A
an associate 1,267
Profit before income tax BRI fBE i A 226,458
Income tax expense P8 i (54,285)
Profit for the year SRR 172,173

B () A RA A
2014 4F4FHR
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PR ER AR B

8  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8 IoHER )

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HENUEIANALEE
Watch retail Optical retail
ERIE REZE

Hong Kong, Hong Kong,

Macau and Macau and
Mainland ~ Restof Mainland  Restof Wholesale  Other Group
China Asia China Asia  trading  segmentUnallocated Total
RFIR o RMR L) ik &8

TEAE HHME hEAE HEME 0 XK ReA¥  A9E A5
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR ERfR BB BRfr BRfr BRfx BRffn BRffz

Capital expenditures BAMERL (26172) (154100 (44,472 (11,345 (3,127) - (20947) (121,473)
Investment in an associate FABE A 4 - - - - - - (51,493 (51,493)
Depreciation ¥ (30,744)  (27,869) (32,9400 (17,726)  (1,797)  (6,742)  (2,574) (120,392)
Amortisation of H A B

prepayment of

lease premium - (3,817) - (3,307) - - - (7,124)
Write back of provision/ ~ #£ &l / (4t

(provision) for stocks 234 (2,823)  (1,263) (1,297 4,854 - - (295)
Impairment of property,  ¥13 ~ #i )t

plantand equipment  FfH{E (16200 (1,062 (564 (214 - - - (3,460)
Write back of provision for 4 k&R A4)

onerous contracts fry e 1,930 - 2,703 - - - - 4,633
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g s b

8  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8 aoEERHE)

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE20134F3 731 HILFE

Watch retail Optical retail
BT REFE
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest  Mainland Rest ~ Wholesale Other Group
China of Asia China of Asia trading segment Total
PR A R Ll ik &

EKE  HERE vEKE e o K st
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
wRET BW WP EREr W B W

Revenues /ON
Gross segment i 1,446,474 561,936 864,105 320,776 867,910 17,581 4,078,782
Inter-segment il - - - - (415174) (Te411)  (431,585)
1446474 561,936 864,105 320776 452,736 1,170 3,647,197
Segment results MR 192,115 20,795 29,144 17,794 96,791 24,877 381,516
Unallocated income R 4509
Net corporate expenses 4 BI{TBUF 3 it (67,823)
Operating profit el 318,202
Finance costs BB A (17,670)
Share of profit of TEil e
an associate N -
Profit before income tax B {36t i 1 300,532
Income tax expense Bl (67,034)
Profit for the year R 233,498

B () A RA A
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8  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8 IoHER )

For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE20135F3 431 HILFE
Watch retail Optical retail
s RETE

Hong Kong, Hong Kong,

Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest  Mainland Rest Wholesale Other Group
China  of Asia China  ofAsia  trading  segment Unallocated Total
3D o AR i ikt &

EOKEE JURME  CREKE URRE RE R AR A
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B AT BT W BT BWf R BN

Capital expenditures BARMER (34,532) (75297) (27211) (19851)  (4,127) (9 (2,104) (163,131)
Depreciation i (36,222) (24,894  (29,290) (18,374)  (1,165)  (5301) (993) (116,239)
Amortisation of BN B

prepayment of

lease premium - (4,009) - (3,404) - - - (7,473)
Fair value gain of an /B 6

investment property - - - - - 30,000 - 30,000
Provision for stocks frEf (7,283)  (5074) (4168  (2,066) (4480 - - @307
Impairment of property, ¥ ~ B4 Rk (A

plant and equipment (1,190) (2,168) (4,262) (1,904) - - - (9,524)
Write back of provision/ kB EH A4

(provision) for onerous [/ (Bff)

contracts 1,242 - (3,074) - - - - (1,832)
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g s b

8  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8 aoEERHE)

As at 31 March 2014

R201453A31H
Watch retail Optical retail
EREE REZTE

Hong Kong, Hong Kong,

Macau and Macau and
Mainland Restof  Mainland Restof ~ Wholesale Other Group
China Asia China Asia trading segment Total
RAR L)) AR L) ik &8

TEAR  HEME  PEAR  HHBME X% Aaw st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARffn  EWffr  BRffr  BRfx  BRfx  BRffn BRfn

Segment asses G 827,255 333,769 360,866 172,357 421230 203870 2,319,347
Unallocated assets ROTGE 646,403
Total assets BEE 2,965,750
Segment liabilities g 5= 252,075 53,280 151,737 33,131 86,924 M 577,588
Unallocated liabilities /& (& 922,341
Total liabilities BAfE 1,499,929

As at 31 March 2013
201343 H31H

Watch retail Optical retail
HETE RETE
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest  Mainland Rest  Wholesale Other Group
China of Asia China of Asia trading segment Total
/PR Lkl BPR Lxh] i %M

TR EERME  PERE ERME X Ko it
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
L DTV 1 DTV L - DTV -1 - DTV 1 - DIV 1 - DIV 1 A (Vv

Segment asses NHEE 704,677 429,935 331,289 210,007 369,527 210,729 2,256,164
Unallocated assets R B 505,365
Total assets B 2,761,529
Segment liabilities MPALRE 205,451 56,056 134,606 43,862 43,940 655 484,570
Unallocated liabilities £ AR 871,788
Total liabilities aafk 1,356,358

B () A RA A
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ISR MR

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s revenues by geographical area

DEER (4)

F 3 5 7 AT 4R B O G245 oAt 73-35) 4n

(excluding Other segment) is as follows: T
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEATT AT
Hong Kong ik 2,231,728 2,022,557
Macau AR 284,913 229,931
Mainland China H K [ 334,445 281,743
Taiwan B 7,687 7,995
Rest of Asia U LR R 1,031,735 1,103,273
Europe BRI 1,064 528
3,891,572 3,646,027
Other segment HoAb 370 - 1,170
3,891,572 3,647,197

An analysis of the Group’s segment results by geographical

223t 18870 A7 A 4R [ ) 0 B S AR (A B4 HoAth

area (excluding Other segment) is as follows: AAEB) IR
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT AT
Hong Kong ik 341,093 306,421
Macau M 87,069 65,340
Mainland China H K (102,725) (93,211)
Taiwan a (2,439) (3,022)
Rest of Asia N LR [ 19,766 81,841
Europe el (2,394) (730)
340,370 356,639
Other segment HoAb 7370 (6,956) 24,877
333,414 381,516
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g s b

8  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8 DEER (4F)

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other iz b i 3 A7 4 1 U B (< TR R R

than financial instruments and deferred tax assets) by

geographical area is as follows:

IEBLIEE FERRAN) IF

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Hong Kong ik 272,673 293,290
Macau e 165,667 165,396
Mainland China Hp R 61,386 46,452
Rest of Asia CHEIRER 75011 220,613 275,389
Europe B 91,097 35,045
811,436 815,572
EXPENSES BY NATURE MBI RNER
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Cost of stocks sold and B K
raw materials consumed JEM RHH FE 1,512,885 1,361,894
Amortisation of prepayment of i FEAAH B A
lease premium 7,124 7,473
Depreciation of property, plant ER T Sr ik
and equipment
— Owned —BE 120,045 115,999
— Leased — & 347 240
Impairment of property, plant LERR T ST Y4
and equipment A 3,460 9,524
(Write back of provision)/provision A EEB AN
for onerous contracts (HEI)) st (4,633) 1,832
Auditors’ remuneration 3 GRS
— Audit services — B 5,536 6,574
— Non-audit services — IEAZ RS 1,867 1,869
Operating leases on buildings T EEHE 686,057 634,216
Provision for stocks 175 e 295 23,071
Impairment of debtors JRE ST T 44 215
Write back of bad debts provision T3% [0 S AR HE g (197) (18)
Donations B 10,256 6,498
Employee benefit expenses (Note 10) 1§ BAaFIS i (Fi3E10) 693,155 629,501
Others HAth, 614,318 593,944
Total cost of sales, selling expenses, 8B A - S8~ — K&
general and administrative expenses 17U ) B A 48
and other operating expenses AR 3,650,559 3,392,832
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10

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 10 EEEFXZH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT T
Salaries and allowances M B R 633,231 576,231
Pension contributions less RS HEEK (FNBRE BiE
forfeiture utilised (Note a) W) (it a) 31,804 34,171
Termination benefits # AR A 1,191 1,528
Unutilised annual leave I 1 AR (595) (644)
Social security costs g PR IR S 24,427 16,168
Other allowances HoAth A 3,097 2,047
693,155 629,501
(@ Pensions — defined contribution plans (@ EBHRE- TS

The Group operated a retirement scheme under
Occupation Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO
scheme”) up to 30 November 2000 for employees
in Hong Kong. With effect from 1 December 2000,
a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme is set
up which is available to eligible employees of the
Group, including executive directors. Contributions
to the MPF scheme by the Group and employees
are calculated at rates specified in the rules of
the MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

For subsidiaries outside Hong Kong, contributions to
the local pension schemes are made by the Group and
employee, which are calculated at rates specified in
the rules of the local pension schemes. The assets of
the pension schemes are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered funds.

Forfeited contributions totalling HK$1,830,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$1,324,000)
arising from employees leaving the ORSO scheme,
were utilised to offset contributions during the year.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 10 EERANZEH A
(b) Emoluments of directors b)) EEESE
The remuneration of each director of the Company is ARAREER LT

set out below:

Basic salaries,
allowances, and Contributions o Discretionary
Name Fees benefitsinkind  pension plans honus | Total
EA%e 2N Eike

#E ik RENRIE st BsRAL ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RBR AR RBAR BT REAR

For the year ended BE2014E

31 March 2014 3A3ELERE

Joseph C. C. Wong (i) HAH i) 100 2,808 105 12,412 15,425
Vincent Lau Tak Bui Bl pR 80 2,378 91 6,334 8,883
Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (iii) B (i) 60 1,440 15 1,089 2,604
Anthony Chu Kai Wah (iv) K% iv) 20 678 25 4,136 4,859
Sakorn Kanjanapas HAIL 80 - - - 80
Mary Ma Xuezheng (v) BEEW - - - - -
Alex Wong Yu Tsang (v) HTHW) - - - - -
Agnes Kwong Yi Hang Wt 135 - - - 135
Nelson Wu Chun Sang HEE 135 - - - 135
Lawrence Wu Chi Man i 135 - - - 135
745 7,304 236 23971 32,256

For the year ended BZ2013F

31 March 2013 3A3ALEE

Joseph C. C. Wong (ii) A (i) 100 2,886 100 9,333 12,419
Vincent Lau Tak Bui Bl 80 2,114 34 4,148 6,376
Anthony Chu Kai Wah (iv) R (iv) 80 2,004 76 4,148 6,368
Sakom Kanjanapas HANT 80 - - - 80
Mary Ma Xuezheng (v) BEEW) - - - - -
Alex Wong Yu Tsang (v) HFH W) - - - - -
Agnes Kwong Yi Hang LT 135 - - - 135
Nelson Wu Chun Sang ik 135 - - - 135
Lawrence Wu Chi Man X 135 - - - 135
745 7,004 210 17,629 25,048
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10  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 10 REEERXH &)
(b) Emoluments of directors (Continued) by EEBE ()

i Discretionary bonus represents the amount paid i T FEALSEAFE N E AT Y B
during the year.

ii Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is also the chief executive of ii. ARG S A TR AR AT A o
the Group.

i Appointment effective from 2 July 2013. iii.  HA20134F7 H2 HRER -

iv Resignation effective from 2 July 2013. iv.  BERERE - iR20134E7 A2 HARAERL

v Appointed on 18 December 2012. v.  fR20124E12 H 18 HHEZAT -

During the year, none of the directors waived their AEIA o WE AT o] 3 SN 4 0 BRI

emoluments, except Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng and TAE AV S B AR A R A

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang waived emoluments of #580,000 JCAb o Hh A 4 B AR 4 ) AR

HK$80,000 each. No emoluments were paid by the s T AR 28 = STV B 4 18 B i

Group to any of the directors of the Company as an T R A A I A AR O A7 ) A A T

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as ol

compensation of loss of office.

(c) Five highest paid individuals (0 HUBBFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the A i A AE 8] A4 B B A
highest in the Group for the year include three (2013: =4 (20134« =4) > HIMREE
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the THE R ik Rk -

analysis presented above.

The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2013: AR EAT T Hoflk 4% (2013 4F : —
two) individuals during the year are as follows: Z) NEZBEmT
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T T

Basic salaries, allowance and ARG BT A

benefits in kind 2,497 2,263
Performance bonus RIALAL 3,844 4,146
Contributions to pension plans 3B {k4 51 #IA{HLk 149 111
6,490 6,520
91 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 10 EEEAZE A
(c) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (0 HEUBSHFMAL A
There are two (2013: two) highest paid individuals RN 4 (20134« Z4) I=
who are not directors and whose remuneration fell M IEEE S N 09 & r B AR R an

(d)

within the following bands is as follows:

Number of individuals

A

2014 2013
Emolument bands S A A
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 #5 2,500,001 G % #%¢ 3,000,000 It - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 ?%ﬁﬁnk3,000,001 ﬁi%%?ﬁ,SO0,000TD 2 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 %%3,500,001 ﬁ§§%%4,000,000ﬁ - 1

2 2

Senior management emoluments d EREEBAESHE
The emoluments of the individual fell within the o AT e B NG o ([ N

following bands:

Number of individuals

N
2014 2013
Emolument bands ST AE A
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 #5% 2,000,001 JuZ #5¥ 2,500,000 JC - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 #% 2,500,001 Jo & #¥ 3,000,000 JC 1 -
1 1
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11 FINANCE COSTS 11 BI#ERA

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT T

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 5 4 RZE 2T E R 18R4T

wholly repayable within five years BRI SR B 6,748 9,435
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts — RZEJA 5 4F A 2B 1 4R1 T

not wholly repayable within five years 23K 3% S FIlLE 2,059 2,691
Borrowing cost on convertible bonds  AJ # Ik i 515 5 2 ) 28,180 5,393
Interest on other financial liabilities A A% & TR S 121 120
Interest on finance leases Rl AR &0 S 31 31

37,139 17,670
12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 FSBii

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BWHE 201443 H31 HIEFEEHSBRIHEBLY
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits for the year ended AR © ol 8 T B B S R B A B R
31 March 2014 (2013: 16.5%) less relief for available tax Ui MFEBLH16.5% (20134F : 16.5%) 7t -
losses. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated Y S RSB T AR 55 A7 TR0 A0k et IR R i ) 4
on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates A e T A8 el e ) 708 R B R R
of taxation prevailing in the territories in which the Group
operates.
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated Rt SRS W R A FT B ELAS

income statement represents:

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Current income tax AW PTRH

— Hong Kong profits tax — AR EL 39,601 35,226
— Overseas profits tax AT 21,198 29,110

— (Oven)/under provisions in SRR O ) D
respect of prior years (1,058) 1,256
59,741 65,592
Deferred income tax (Note 31) RAEFT 3B (BFRE31) (5,456) 1,442
Income tax expense FRABISZ 54,285 67,034
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g s b

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12 FRSBIKH (47)
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs A% A ] 2 FC B BT A5 B A A TR 5 A0 A
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the TE L7 A 45 b I 1 8 B R (e
applicable tax rate, being the weighted average of tax rates -2y 1A PR B IR A 22 - R
prevailing in the territories in which the Group operates, is e
as follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT

Profit before income tax W BT B i Ve A 226,458 300,532
Less: share of profit of an associate - REAG A 2 W) i A (1,267) -
225,191 300,532

Theoretical tax at weighted average ~ FZIIHEF-H43 11.55% (2013 4F -

rate of 11.55% (2013: 13.82%) 13.82%) T4 0y FEm Rl I 26,017 41,525
Income not subject to tax LS SRR A (9,560) (10,289)
Expenses not deductible for AR OB BA 3

tax purpose 16,216 18,057
Recognition of temporary differences — FERRFEAF A B AERR 10 B IRF M 26 38

not previously recognised 598 496
Utilisation of previously i PR AL AR SR TR R 0 B JE R 1

unrecognised tax losses (6,913) (7,872)
Tax losses not recognised AT B B T e 18 30,621 21,175
Effect of change in tax rates T 256 5 ) ) S 28 - 1,636
(Over)/under provisions in WA G %) b

respect of prior years (1,058) 1,256
Others HAth, (1,636) 1,050
Income tax expense PRI 54,285 67,034
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 11.55% TN HE Y- 25 38 1 B % £ 11.55% (2013 4F -
(2013: 13.82%). The decrease is caused by a change in the 13.82%) o WD TG i A7 4 B 4541 B R 1Y
distribution of profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the W g 2 ) ) i ) 0 S B I B o

respective countries.

13 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS OF 13 ARATEREEAEGERE

THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company is AN mIRE SR 45 A N B AL s 181 AR 28 =] A Bs
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the R 2B A 20,713,000 70 (2013 4F ¢
extent of HK$20,713,000 (2013: HK$3,582,000). Wi 3,582,000 70) °
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14

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

14

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

BREF

=28

i JBE AR 8 A DA I A B R £ A B
i A DA A 3 AT 3 208 s - 2

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during Mt o
the year.
2014 2013

Weighted average number of ordinary £ 547 3% 48 BN HET- 35 8

shares in issue (thousands) (LT HERT) 1,046,474 1,046,474
Profit attributable to equity holders AN FIRE AR 35 A BB A i )

of the Company (HK$'000) (WA D) 171,712 232,900
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) B IBBEA T (AL 16.41 22.26
Diluted e

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Group’s dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence
represent convertible bonds. The convertible bonds are
assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares, and
the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the expense relating to

the convertible bonds less the tax effect.

5 0 ) M e L TR A R
1 200 B S M AR B R UL T > HR SRR R AT
TE I 468 B 1) n e - 2 R B o AR AR B
A7 22 T AE SN0 2 S % AT MR R o R
T R A o AR 0 o S L R R A
DA A7 B T BB 2 2 P B s R 2

2014 2013

Number of ordinary shares in issue RN E AT

throughout the year (thousands) (LT HERT) 1,046,474 1,046,474
Effect of conversion of convertible SO T A AR S5 2

bonds (thousands) (DA RET) 190,268 63,596
Weighted average number of TR R 2B R

ordinary shares adjusted for 8 B HE T 24

effect of dilution (thousands) (DA RERT) 1,236,742 1,110,070
Profit attributable to equity holders AN FIRERE A N TEAG

of the Company (HK$'000) Ui A1 (A HEAT o) 171,712 232,900
Borrowing cost on convertible AT AR 1 B

bonds (HK$’000) (HEHEAT o) 28,180 5,393
Tax relief thereon (HK$’000) HABIEHC A (U HAFoT) (2,233) (613)
Adjusted profit attributable to AL FIRERS B AL

equity holders of the SR I A (s AT oT)

Company (HK$'000) 197,659 237,680
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) B 2 F1 (A1) 15.98 21.41
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PR ER AR B

15 DIVIDENDS 15 KRE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Interim, paid, of HK$0.036 CIREE R 78 I HK$0.036
(2013: HK$0.036) per (2013 : HK$0.036) [
ordinary share TS 37,673 37,673
Final, proposed, of HK$0.037 A RRIR B I 4 i HK$0.037
(2013: HK$0.032) per (2013 : HK$0.032) [
ordinary share RIS 38,719 33,487
Special, proposed, of HK$Nil R IR RO A ) HKS %
(2013: HK$0.005) per (2013 : HK$0.005) [
ordinary share Epillids) - 5,232
76,392 76,392
16  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 16 Y. gEpRE_£E
Equipment
Land and and
buildings others Total
B}
B Je HoAt okl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T AT AT
Year ended 31 March 2013 EZE2013F3 A31 RILFE
Opening net book amount ¥ Hk I 1F 48 208,978 167,750 376,728
Additions E 34,059 129,072 163,131
Transfer from investment WE Y ERA 96,000 - 96,000
property
Disposals/write off HEHE - (2,304) (2,304)
Depreciation e (7,206) (109,033) (116,239)
Impairment (note c) WA (st c) - (9,524) (9,524)
Exchange differences i 50 2= %A 1,765 1,859 3,624
Closing net book amount 44 R TH 5 48 333,596 177,820 511,416
At 31 March 2013 R2013%F3 /831 H
Cost A 464,074 714,994 1,179,068
Accumulated depreciation 2 FHT# K i (H
and impairment (130,478) (537,174) (667,652)
Net book amount MR 7 333,596 177,820 511,416
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16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP

16 ¥I%¥ > HSERRE-KE )

(Continued)
Equipment
Land and and
buildings others Total
=B
T REF R HAith Fob )
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$’000
BT BT T BT
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE2014F3 A31 HILFE
Opening net book amount  4F- ] H [ {F 48 333,596 177,820 511,416
Additions wE - 118,193 118,193
Disposals/write off R - 2,517) (2,517)
Depreciation gy (9,246) (111,146) (120,392)
Impairment (note c) WRAE (B 5L c) - (3,460) (3,460)
Exchange differences EE 58, 75 %5 (5,113) (4,654) (9,767)
Closing net book amount  AF 4R If {5 4 319,237 174,236 493,473
At 31 March 2014 M2014F3A31H
Cost A 456,859 739,603 1,196,462
Accumulated depreciation  RFHTE K IE
and impairment (137,622) (565,367) (702,989)
Net book amount M THT 4R 319,237 174,236 493,473
Notes: [z

(a)

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group have
been pledged for bank borrowings. The carrying value
of these property, plant and equipment as at 31 March
2014 were approximately HK$306,944,000 (2013:
HK$284,683,000).

At 31 March 2014, the net book value of motor vehicles
held under finance leases amounted to HK$813,000 (2013:
HK$1,175,000).

An impairment provision of HK$3,460,000 (2013:
HK$9,524,000) was made for certain properties and
equipment with reference to their value-in-use since their
carrying values are not expected to be fully recoverable by
this amount. Impairment loss was included in other operating
expenses in the consolidated income statement.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

16  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP 16 W% WERRE-KE ()
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) 5T : (AF)
(d)  The Group’s interest in land and buildings at their net book (d) AR MR RS A R 2 4 B T VR A
values are analysed as follows: BT -
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Freehold land and buildings AT HESE AP K A ERE -t M
outside Hong Kong 115,438 119,823
Land and buildings outside AT IS L3 AR
Hong Kong, held on:
— Unlimited leases — AN B IR 97,315 99,715
Land and buildings in AU 1 L Rt
Hong Kong, held on:
— Leases between 10 to 50 years AT 10 2 504F 106,484 114,058
319,237 333,596
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTY - GROUP 17 BREYEX-£8
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
At 1 April R4H1H - 66,000
Fair value gains ASEIELIE - 30,000
Transfer to property, plant AL ~ & B
and equipment - (96,000)
At 31 March K3H31H - -
The investment property was revalued by independent G AN 20124512 A 31 H il B2
professionally qualified valuer as at 31 December 2012 and LERASERTERY > MW 20134F1 A 1 HiE
was transferred to property, plant and equipment for own- AW BB R EEEA o

use on 1 January 2013.
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18 PREPAYMENT OF LEASE PREMIUM - GROUP 18 FENHEHE-FE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
At 1 April ®4H1H 60,079 64,477
Amortisation (note b) s (B D) (7,124) (7,473)
Exchange differences e b8, 26 %6 (5,699) 3,075
At 31 March W3H31H 47,256 60,079
The Group’s interests in prepayment of lease premium for A A [ ) S T A L M 1) RE 2 e R
premises at their net book amounts are analysed as follows: EASPIR
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T T

Prepayment of lease premium for iSRS r A/ E SN

premises outside Hong Kong, FHE A -
held on:
— Leases between 10 to 50 years — AT 10 £ 50 4F 5,010 10,443
— Leases under 10 years — DR 104 42,246 49,636
47,256 60,079
Notes: Mzt
(@)  Certain prepayment of lease premium for premises of the (@)  AEEET YRS ED RIS
Group have been pledged for bank borrowings. The carrying LRI o 3% A AT AL HUE Y 2014 4E 3
amount of these prepayment of lease premium as at 31 A 31 HBRE(E 5,624,000 782013
March 2014 was HK$5,624,000 (2013: HK$9,602,000). 4 1 {1 9,602,000 7T) ©
(b)  Amortisation of prepayment of lease premium for premises (b) W ETE AR b A A I 4 S s RN
was included in selling expenses in the consolidated income G E T H A o
statement.
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19 SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNT DUE FROM AND TO

SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

19 HEARREURESHERRTE-QF

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT

Investment in a subsidiary i) VARSI DE S ¥ - —
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WAz o JB /2 1 578,630 655,936
Amount due to a subsidiary JREAST o 2 ) T 5,500 5,500

The receivables and payables from subsidiaries are

unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand,

except for amounts due from subsidiaries amounted to
HK$371,023,000 are interest bearing at 3.5% per annum for

five years.

Details of principal subsidiaries are shown on Note 36.

20 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP

JRE WA J AT FF Jo > W) JE 2 IR B B
T METESR (% - WS A 371,023,000
TG 1) JRE VAT B 5 3 W) R S A R 6 3.5 % R TR

T4 -

AR = B A R RERE AU M EE 36 -

20 REEQATRE-£E

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT WA

At 1 April mh4H1H - -
Initial investment WG E 51,493 -
Share of profit JREA i ) 1,267 -
Exchange differences [ifE 50 2= %A 2,229 -
At 31 March W3H31TH 54,989 -

B () A RA A
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20

101

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP (Continued)
Details of the associate as at 31 March 2014 is as follows:

Place of
business/country of

Name of entity incorporation

20

% of

ownership interest

R ARIIRE - K@ (4)

;‘i‘ll{:

s AT 201443 H31 HRYFRET -

Principal activities

BEREn EEWYFMRIEAR JiiEez Xl TEEHK
CATENA SA Switzerland 30% Manufacture of
Fi 1 watch movements

On 6 April 2013, the Group acquired 30% equity interest
in CATENA SA (“CATENA”) for a consideration of
CHF3,000,000. Additional consideration of CHF3,000,000
is payable upon completion of certain performance
obligations by the seller and CATENA before the stipulated
dates. As at 31 March 2014, all performance obligation
has been fulfilled by the seller and CATENA. The
consideration of CHF4,500,000 (HK$37,287,000) and
transaction costs of HK$1,081,000 has been paid during
the year, and the remaining consideration of CHF1,500,000
(HK$13,125,000) has been included in creditors and
accruals as at 31 March 2014.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
associate is set out below:

JA20134FE4H 6 H > A4ERLL3,000,000%; 1+
BER I AE I CATENA SA (TCATENA)
30% BeHE - %84 3,000,000 Fif 35 BR A ACAE
JHINE T L CATENATETR & H BARTEATA T
BATE A o R 201443 A31H > H K&
CATENACJBATHTA AT - 184 4,500,000
Fi 92 B (#E#5 37,287,000 7C) K3 5
#5 %5 1,081,000 JCE FAME N AT > TifR AL
181,500,000 Ft 35 B (5% 13,125,000 G
EFFARE 2014453 A 31 HIWHERT IR
MEFTE A o

B B N R BB R B S I T

2014

HK$’000

BT

Assets B 58,801
Liabilities =N (14,840)
Income A 37,847
Profit after tax o 0 A% Vi A1) 4,222

The associate has a December year-end and the above
unaudited financial information has been adjusted to
conform to the Group’s financial year-end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

21

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 21 EBREE-£8
Goodwill Trademarks Total
e B “zEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Year ended 31 March 2013 BZ 201353 A31 HILFE
Opening net book amount 4] iR TH 1 {H 9,706 50,617 60,323
Additions NE - 496 496
Exchange differences [ 50,7257 476 (798) (322)
Closing net book amount  4F# AR T 15 4 10,182 50,315 60,497
At 31 March 2013 A2013F3A31H
Cost A 10,182 80,057 90,239
Accumulated amortisation 251 - (29,742) (29,742)
Net book amount W T VAR 10,182 50,315 60,497
Year ended 31 March 2014 HZE2014E3A31 HILEE
Opening net book amount  F Il [ {F{E 10,182 50,315 60,497
Additions wE - 1,553 1,553
Exchange differences [ifE 50, 25 HH 84 1,063 1,147
Closing net book amount 44 B[ {44 10,266 52,931 63,197
At 31 March 2014 R201453 8318
Cost A 10,266 82,564 92,830
Accumulated amortisation 2 FHEESS - (29,633) (29,633)
Net book amount R TH VA 10,266 52,931 63,197
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21

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP (Continued)
Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUs") identified according to business segment. The
goodwill is attributable to the watch wholesale trading
operations.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets performed
by management covering a five-year period. Management
determined the financial budgets based on past performance
and its expectations for the market development. Cash
flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rate stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are
as follows:

1. Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the budget period of 0% (2013: 0%) which does not
exceed historical growth rate.

2. Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flows projections
of 8% (2013: 8%). The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflects specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there was no
impairment on the CGUs containing goodwill with
indefinite useful lives (2013: Nil).

Impairment test for trademarks

The valuation of the trademarks is determined by estimating
the value of royalties which the Group is exempted from
by virtue of the fact that it owns the trademarks. A net
sales royalty rate is multiplied by the net sales expected to
be generated by the trademarks and then capitalised at a
discount rate at which the trademarks operate.

No impairment provision on trademarks was made during
the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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22 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - GROUP 22 TAHEENMBEE-£E
2014 2013
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT AT T
At 1 April w4H1H 15,617 15,590
Revaluation (deficit)/surplus transfer to A #E 4 19 E Al (54H)
equity (Note 27) Bk (EE27) (286) 27

At 31 March W3H31TH 15,331 15,617

201443 H 31 H » Al {85 BHEs &
T4 DL EG sk BRRT A A 7 — I 91 3+
B AT A R IE BT E -

Available-for-sale financial assets as at 31 March
2014 represent unlisted equity investment in an entity
incorporated in Liechtenstein and are denominated in Swiss
Francs.

ATt G B S A (2 A D U BB
G R TP ROE o IR R R = A T E S
AR A o E R AN W B A (R B 4
B (B AR o [m] e A MR > ATk 4R B
B AT EBGE

The valuation of available-for-sale financial assets was
determined using discounted cash flow projections and
are within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The more
significant unobservable input is the rate of return on the
investment. The lower the rate of return, the higher the fair
value of the available-for-sale financial assets.

23 STOCKS - GROUP 23 KFE-£KH
2014 2013
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT AT IT
Raw materials JE A 86,454 58,481
Work-in-progress 13 i 3,926 634
Finished goods AL 1,103,651 1,107,914
1,194,031 1,167,029

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$1,512,885,000 (2013:
HK$1,361,894,000).

O T 52 5 BH 3030 st A B 68 RS T A 77 B A
7 Bk 1,512,885,000 7T (2013 4F ¢ #E
1,361,894,000 7C) °

B () A RA A
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24

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

24 FEWERR - B REFNRE

Group Company
&E AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT BT eGP
Trade debtors, gross TEWE 5l B 225,380 171,580 - -
Less: provision for impairment B R SR
of trade debtors ict (445) (630) - -
Trade debtors, net (note a) PEMCE 5 ek W (it a) 224,935 170,950 - -
Deposits, prepayments and i BEER
other debtors (notes ¢ and €) HABGEIE (M3 c Ke) 351,080 327,195 20,653 26,379
576,015 498,145 20,653 26,379
Less: non-current portion W R
Deposits and prepayments e REMOR (152,521) (183,580) (20,511) (26,114)
Current portion B 423,494 314,565 142 265
Trade debtors analysed A H A
by invoice date: TEICRE SRk -
Below 60 days 60 HLAT 73,930 63,393 - -
Over 60 days 60 HRL L 151,450 108,187 - -
225,380 171,580 - -
Notes: Fff &3

The Group engages designated import and export agents for
the importation of products from the subsidiaries in Hong
Kong to the subsidiaries in the Mainland China. The balances
due from and due to the import and export agents are settled
on a back-to-back basis, and hence, there are no fixed terms
of settlement for such balances. The Group’s trade debtors
and trade creditors include balances due from and due to
the import and export agents of HK$115,541,000 (2013:
HK$72,694,000).

Other than the balances due from the import and export
agents, the Group allows an average credit period of 60 days
from the invoice date to its trade debtors.

Balances that are neither past due nor impaired relate to
a number of independent customers whom there was no
relevant history of default.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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24 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) 24 FEWERXR - BRERENRE (H)
Notes (Continued): Mt st (42) -
(@) (Continued) (@) (#5)

Included in the Group’s trade debtors were debtors with a
carrying amount of HK$42,916,000 (2013: HK$30,452,000)
which were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of
these trade debtors based on due dates is as follows:

AR A T 4 R S 2 M 46 W T L 7 98 T
42,916,000 7C (2013 4F : ¥ #30,452,000
JG) B RENCRIE - AT el O B A {H i o
WA o %A SR B R B 2 R
PAiE U

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT

Overdue: i
Within 1 year 14N 42,577 30,237
1-2 years 1-24 287 191
2-3 years 2-34F 42 18
Over 3 years e 3 4 10 6
42,916 30,452

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers for whom there
is no recent history of default. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully receivable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

As at 31 March 2014, debtors of HK$445,000 (2013:

HK$630,000) aged over 3 years were fully impaired.

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade debtors
are as follows:

8 HAEL S () TR A B2 9 MR ok L 22 42 M8 57
HEA T > 05 T S 0 A R AR B
MR ALES - AT B HE ORI A £ 4%
BRI A E SR > SGRAIH A AT bl 4
SOl 5 DRI T A £ 5 11 L e (i 9
Hi o A SR T N0 M 0 R A O HCRE A AT TR
eI

201443 H31H > BREHE B Z4F W
JRE Wi B K T M 445,000 T (2013 4F ©
630,000 70) B\ 2 FFIAE -

JRESCEE 5y HRAR A S (LA R B B A R

Group
&=
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T WA
At 1 April waH1H 630 692
Provision for impairment A 44 215
Receivables written off during the — FA4F RS 75 A v]
year as uncollectible Wiz 1] 1 R A T T (10) (262)
Provision written back JRAEL138 i 438 1] 197) (18)
Exchange differences [iFE 5, 25 %5 (22) 3
At 31 March W3H31H 445 630

B () A RA A
2014 4F4FHR
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24 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes (Continued):
(b) (Continued)

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in ‘other operating expenses’
in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged to
the allowance account are generally written off when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

() The balance included amounts due from related companies
of HK$3,974,000 (2013: HK$3,423,000).

The balances due from related companies are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

24 YRR - BERFEMKE &)

MtE (AF) -

VLS IR e EE TR
AR AL | P - FEARR
ORI RO TELII AN T 15 51 5
S -

I T A WA R A D A O s O
3,974,0007C(20134F : #:¥#3,423,0007¢) °

MRS B 20 W) 19 45 B 240 70 SR AT ~ B
Lo EBR A8

(d  An analysis of debtors, deposits and prepayments by () FEMCRRR ~ e SFEAT T % B 43 A
currency is as follows: T
Group Company
£8 A
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB AT BT T
Hong Kong dollars i s 358,855 276,003 20,653 26,379
Renminbi UNLi 80,418 59,201 - -
Singapore dollars EDIIE O 42,396 47,082 - -
Malaysian ringgit FEACTY i 47 57,620 60,026 - -
Thai bahts B3 24,246 23,781 - -
Swiss Francs i - 1E B 833 5,175 - -
Others oAt 11,647 26,877 - -
576,015 498,145 20,653 26,379
(e)  As at 31 March 2014, the balance included prepayment (e) JR20144E3 A31H » b 4 3K JE £ 5 2%

for services arising from the issue of convertible bonds of
HK$20,510,000, (2013: HK$26,114,000) (Note 30).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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25 BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25 SRITHEBREREE
An analysis of bank balances and cash by currency is as RAITHE R KB SR BT R
follows:
Group Company
£ AT
2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
BRI BT BT BT

Hong Kong dollars i 128,600 150,250 27 28
Renminbi N 69,703 67,981 - -
Singapore dollars HrmgoT 62,888 49,416 - -
Malaysian ringgit R AR PG EE AT 84,177 40,515 - -
Thai bahts B 73 64,637 52,037 - -
Swiss Francs Fiy 135 BB 854 803 - -
Others HAth 46,824 27,328 - -

457,683 388,330 27 28
The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies and e\ B 58 Mk AN TR I 6t A RS T 1 o [
remittance of Renminbi out of the PRC is subject to the rules S - v ] T R A M % 1 R 2 0 ) % A 15
and regulations of exchange controls promulgated by the PR o

PRC government.

B () A RA A
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26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 B
Number of
shares of
HK$0.1
Each
BREE
BE0.1 7T HK$’000
KB 3 8B BT
Authorised: TEERA
At 31 March 2013 and 2014 2013 4F % 2014 4F
3H31H 1,600,000,000 160,000
Issued and fully paid: CEAT R A
At 31 March 2012 H20124E3 A31 H 951,340,023 95,134
Issue of bonus shares BEATALK 95,134,002 9,513
At 31 March 2013 and 2014 A 2013 4F % 2014 4F
3A31H 1,046,474,025 104,647

Bonus shares were issued during the year ended 31 March
2013 on the basis of one bonus share for every ten existing
shares held by the shareholders of the Company whose
name appeared on its register of members on 31 August
2012.

On 9 March 2005, the share option scheme for the
employees, officers and directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved and
adopted by the shareholders pursuant to which the Board
was authorised to grant options to the employees, officers
and directors of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe
for shares of the Company for a fixed period.

No share option was granted during the year and no share
options were outstanding as at 31 March 2013 and 2014.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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27  RESERVES 27 f#fE
Group 5
Convertible
Share Revaluation  Exchange bonds  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
Gk

RtvaE  EftRt  EiEE GFEE  REERN 2
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Bt B%fn  ARHx BN BB BEfR

At 1 April 2012 R2012F4H1H 1,977 13,339 45,189 - 1,017,146 1,077,651
Exchange differences [ S5 - - 3,739 - - 3,739
Revaluation of A R BTES B E

available-for-sale financial A (FffE22)

assets (Note 22) - 27 - - - 27
Profit for the year SRR - - - - 232,900 232,900
Special dividends paid as ~ fER AL HEF

bonus shares 1358 - - - - (9,513) (9,513)
Acquisition of additional ~ FSMFEER

non-controlling interest e A

shares - - - - 447 447
Issue of convertible bonds ~ B§f7 ATk &% - - - 77,090 - 77,090
Dividends paid EATRE - - - - (89,996 (89,996)
At31 March 2013 20133 H31H 1,977 13,366 48,928 77,090 1,150,984 1,292,345
Representing: A
2013 proposed final dividend 2013 F4HR KIS 33,487
2013 proposed 2013 FEIRAEAIIER

special dividend 5,232
Reserves itk 1,112,265

1,150,984

At1 April 2013 20134481 H 1977 13366 48928 77,000 1,150,984 1,292,345
Exchange differences T 5% - - (33,688) - - (33,688)
Revaluation of T B

available-for-sale financial ~ Zff (H3E22)

assets (Note 22) - (286) - - - (286)
Profit for the year AE i A - - - - 72 171,712
Dividends paid EARAE - - - - (76,392)  (76,392)
At 31 March 2014 #20144E3 A31H 1,977 13,080 15,240 77,090 1,246,304 1,353,691
Representing: AR
2014 proposed final dividend 2014 4F4EIRA MRS, 38,719
Reserves fik i 1,207,585

1,246,304

B () A RA A
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27  RESERVES (Continued) 27 fEE(E)
Company NG
Convertible
Share bonds Retained
premium reserve  earnings Total
AR
BREBRE BEFEHEE RKRERA wzEE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2012 20124F4 1 H 1,977 - 276,602 278,579
Loss for the year A R - - (3,582) (3,582)
Dividends paid e R - - (89,996)  (89,996)
Special dividends paid B AT B (4 45 7
as bonus shares [ii95} - - (9,513) (9,513)
Issue of convertible bonds AT A A A - 77,090 - 77,090
At 31 March 2013 201343 H31H 1,977 77,090 173,511 252,578
Representing: AR -
2013 proposed final 2013 A HEIR AR WIS
dividend 33,487
2013 proposed special 2013 AFEEIRFF IR,
dividend 5,232
Reserves fitf 134,792
173,511
At 1 April 2013 JA20134F4H1H 1,977 77,090 173,511 252,578
Loss for the year AENEETH - - (20,713)  (20,713)
Dividends paid SR E - - (76,392)  (76,392)
At 31 March 2014 *20144E3 H31H 1,977 77,090 76,406 155,473
Representing: AL -
2014 proposed final 2014 FHEEIR AR IS,
dividend 38,719
Reserves s 37,687
76,406
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28 CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS 28 ENRIRESER
Group Company
%8 A%
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BEffrT BT BEfFx
Trade creditors analysed FHHEEE H AT
by invoice date: JEEAT B2 5 K
Below 60 days 60 H AT 264,563 194,783 - -
Over 60 days 60 HELE 48,997 47,573 - -
313,560 242,356 - -
Other creditors FAth e AT IR K
and accruals (note a) REFTE H (Bsta) 282,279 275,791 2,234 3,199
595,839 518,147 2,234 3,199
Notes: B3
(@ Included in other creditors and accruals are amounts due to (@) B Al BE AT HE 2 K R E T B SR A

related companies of HK$1,648,000 (2013: HK$2,265,000),
which are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

3l M AST BB L 2 ) 1 U JE S ¥ 1,648,000 7T
(2013 4F : #H2,265,0007C) > KA F JE
FEA B R R -

(b)  An analysis of creditors and accruals by currency is as (b)y  MEATHEZK M REST 2% Fs STt -
follows:
Group Company
£H AF]
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT LT
Hong Kong dollars i 355,766 329,178 2,234 3,199
Renminbi NV 72,149 59,966 - -
Singapore dollars GBS 27,082 32,872 - -
Malaysian ringgit AP 4 30,733 29,872 - -
Thai bahts Tk 34,219 44,167 - -
Swiss Francs Hii - BB 13,493 1,499 - -
United States dollars ESSH 44,961 3,326 - -
Others HoAth 17,436 17,267 - -
595,839 518,147 2,234 3,199

B () A RA A
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29 BORROWINGS - GROUP 29 EXR-5H

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Bank borrowings (note a) AT (Mt a) 534,463 493,965

Obligations under Fﬂﬁ’?ﬂﬁ?@% FiEED)
finance leases (note b) 124 679
534,587 494,644

Amount repayable within one year R — RN R

included in current liabilities TR B A (464,123) (351,280
70,464 143,364

(@ Bank borrowings

The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as

@@ SRITER

AR SRAT B H AR DL T

follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BB AT
Within 1 year THZ A 463,999 350,727
Between 1 and 2 years 1224 17,029 22,696
Between 2 and 5 years 2 F 54 40,865 52,908
Over 5 years 54U E 12,570 67,634
534,463 493,965
The Group’s bank borrowings are wholly repayable $%.E’J§E 5 I T AR B T 4E
within and over five years, ignoring the effect of any % R T*U}B/‘E"kﬁ%i%?ﬂ i
repayment on demand clauses, as follows: ) gﬂﬁ mF :
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Wholly repayable within 5 years ZEF 5 4F A 7 B fif 35 488,938 421,700
Not wholly repayable within RZER 5 4R R R R R
5 years 45,525 72,265
534,463 493,965
Included in bank borrowings as at 31 March 2014 are M20144E3 H31 B 2 TSR kA4

secured borrowings amounted to HK$374,239,000
(2013: HK$300,795,000), which are secured by land
and buildings and prepayment of lease premium of the
Group (Notes 16 and 18).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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29 BORROWINGS - GROUP (Continued) 29 EXR-KE )

(€]

Bank borrowings (Continued)

An analysis of the carrying amount of the Group’s
bank borrowings by currency is as follows:

(@

RITER ()

7 A [ RAT 8 SR T (B 4 B2 8 40
o

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT

Hong Kong dollars I 508,128 451,157
Malaysian ringgit FEARPGREAH 25,737 36,099
Renminbi NG - 3,750
Thai bahts ek 598 2,959
534,463 493,965

The weighted average effective interest rate per
annum for bank borrowings was 1.74% (2013:
2.45%).

As at 31 March 2014, the carrying amounts of bank
borrowings approximate their fair values.

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had given
guarantees to various banks to secure general banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries amounting
to HK$1,391,770,000 (2013: HK$1,183,799,000).
As at 31 March 2014, the utilised amount of such
facilities covered by the Company’s guarantees was
HK$534,463,000 (2013: HK$493,965,000).

SRAT BB A ST 2 BT BB AR R R
1.74 8 (2013 4F : 2.45JH) o

A20144E3 A31 H » S4TSR 0 IR
(B BLATEARZ -

201443 A31H » AN ABZT
A7 T B a8 2N 7 ) — SR SR AT Rl 1) AT
SRATAE B 48 AR 3L 3 5 1,391,770,000
JEQ0134F : #%1,183,799,0007T) °
R20144E3 A31H > 3% % B A 4
AEENBECE N o@mbE
#534,463,000 G (2013 4F :  # #
493,965,000 7C) °

B () A RA A
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29 BORROWINGS - GROUP (Continued) 29 EBX-£E (4
(b)  Obligations under finance leases (b) BEHEEEE

The obligations under finance leases are payable as

Al R R I 2R A

EIFWAT

follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Within 1 year THZR 132 584
Between 1 and 2 years 1E 24 - 134
132 718
Future finance charges Fl S RH B 1) AR A B S S
on finance leases 3) (39)
Present value of finance lease Rl E A A HUE
liabilities 124 679

The present value of finance lease liabilities is
analysed as follows:

AE B A AR BUED ST

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT AT

Within 1 year T4EZ A 124 553
Between 1 and 2 years 1224 - 126
124 679

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the obligations

il L R 3 AR T (L % B A

under finance lease by currency is as follows: T
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT
Hong Kong dollars T - 45
Singapore dollars oo 124 634
124 679

1 1 5 STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS — GROUP AND COMPANY

On 29 November 2012, the Company issued unlisted and
unsecured convertible bonds with a principal amount of
HK$371,022,600 to Sapphire llluminatus Holdings Limited
(“Sapphire”), an independent third party.

The terms of the convertible bonds are summarised below:

—  the bonds bear interest at 3.5% per annum if the
bonds are held by Sapphire or its affiliates, or 2.75%
per annum if otherwise, on the principal amounts of
the convertible bonds outstanding from time to time,
payable semi-annually in arrears;

—  the bonds are convertible at the option of the
bondholders into fully paid ordinary shares 18 months
after the issue of bonds up to fifth anniversary of
the issue date of the bonds at a conversion price of
HK$1.95 per share, subject to certain adjustments
pursuant to the terms of the agreement entered with
the bondholders;

- 190,268,000 conversion shares will be issued upon
full conversion of the bonds based on the initial
conversion price of HK$1.95 per share;

- Sapphire has the option to require the Company to
early redeem 30% of the outstanding principal (the
“Option”) if i) the consolidated net income of the
Company (without taking into account any expenses
arising from accounting treatment of the bonds) is
less than HK$400 million in more than one out of the
three financial years ending 31 March 2015 to 2017;
or ii) the aggregate consolidated net income of the
Company (without taking into account any expenses
arising from accounting treatment of the bonds) is less
than HK$1 billion for three financial years ending 31
March 2015 to 2017. The remainder of the bonds shall
remain to be convertible, and such the bonds which
have not been previously converted, redeemed, or
purchased and cancelled and remain outstanding on
the maturity shall be redeemed. The Company shall
also pay an amount in cash to Sapphire equal to three-
seventh of the outstanding principal amount of such
remaining bonds held by Sapphire upon maturity; and

AR ES -SERAF

JA20124E11 A 29 H » AR Rl — 285
=75 Sapphire llluminatus HoldingsLimited
([Sapphirel) # 47 A& & # #H & W
371,022,600 JCHY I 17 K SEAE AT AT $66 i
7 o

BRI I T

— IR I AR AT Y AR R O A
S8 WiEFR B Sapphire S @ A
TR A3 5%FHE > sl
HA AN LHER - WRER] 2 2.75% &1
B BRI

- EHEHRESR A AW SR INME S0t
17188 A A M5 T H R SE A
HE AT S0 A B B T 1.95 T S
EY Y e GRSl B e
MR B S 1 N HT 7 sl ny e ot
T T

— 190,268,000 B 5 4 B 173 16 A 1 5 4R

AN SR BT 1.95 TR UL
AR AT

—  Sapphire A LT H LA EORAL Rl

FLIE ) 30% A A 4 (T HARE ) »
il i) A2 T S5 A IR IR CR B B
Fer vl M E A AT AT B ) =
20154 F 201743 A 31 H 1L = {8
A v — 1R T 22 B B4 LA s
#% 400,000,000 7T 5 = ii) B % 2015 4F
£ 20174F3 A 31 H 1k =R BUAE AR
IS A B A T U B R B
Erat g P A AT AR B ) I i
1,000,000,000 G ° fif & 55 M 25 7]
SO s TR R A ek B 5T
B L 1) IR i R AR 09 525 T T LA
HE[E] o AN HJRIE ] Sapphire SCATAH
O R B B R R 10 M R BRI R
TMEHEASE L2 WA s &

B () A RA A
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30

CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(Continued)

- Sapphire would be compensated by the difference
between the accrued interest and cash dividend
(calculated on as-converted basis) (the “Additional
Interest”), if the former is less than the latter.

The convertible bonds consist of a liability component,
comprising the 5-year 3.5% straight debt, other redemption
features and additional interest liabilities, and an equity
component, representing the convertible option of HK$1.95
per share. At the issuance of the bonds, the liability
component and the equity component were recognised at
fair value, determined based on the valuations performed
by an independent professional valuer using the binominal
model.

The liability component and equity component of the
convertible bonds recognised at initial recognition as at 29
November 2012 are as follows:

ARRES -KERAF (4)

- HEERHALE AR B E BE (K C ik

IEIEFTSE) - Sapphire it
BB G0 2 9 2 A1
%) o

AR SR AR BRI (J34% 54 3.5% &t
SR L 20 R S A [ % o LA R AN R
RE ) ML (B 1.95 T8 L iR
HE) o WA ERATARIRRY > BRI S HE aR HR Ay
A ERE > AR 7 2 S Al (e Y i
AR A —HARR -

AT 1R 75 1 B BB 4 B RE 75 5049 i 2012
11 H 29 B MERRIRFERR AN R ¢

HK$'000
AT T
Fair value of convertible bonds issued B #5417 AJ # A& 75 19 A T-H 396,772
Less: Liability component W BEEY (319,682)
Equity component HE i #803 77,090

The convertible bonds were issued with fair value higher
than the principal amount and were accounted for as share-
based payment transactions. The excess of the fair value of
the convertible bonds over the consideration received of
HK$28,018,000 were recorded as a prepayment for service
and are amortised on a straight line basis over the term of
contract (Note 24). Amortisation expense of HK$5,604,000
has been recognised in the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$1,904,000)
and included in other operating expenses.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014

A6 AR 5 T A% = A AR T B
15 Sl DA 5 FE R AG A5) 358 5 A ©
A 5 B 5 014 2 ST (ED B T i ) A6 A 7
#528,018,000 7T J7 7T Bk £ M 75 (1 78 17 3K
TH > 3l 4 F A0 AR M A G A 30 R O 4 A (B
FE24) o S B 25 1 5,604,000 76 2 A R
E20144E3 H31 H ILE 455 ik %8 %
R At A S R 2013 4F ¢ M
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

30 CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND COMPANY 30 WRRES-KERAQTF )
(Continued)
The liability component of the bonds is stated at fair value. BRI B BB AT E 251 o #4500
The equity component is presented in equity as “convertible A TRERE R 290 2 [ 4R sttt -

bonds reserve”.

Transaction costs of HK$2,269,000 has incurred in relations HE201343 31 HIL4ERE » N5
to the issuance of the bonds for the year ended 31 March T 28 AE 6 5 2,269,000 JE I 3L 55 A -
2013.
The movement of the liability component of the convertible RN AR 2 AR 0 1 S B B 0
bonds for the year is set out below: T
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Liability component at 1 April 4 A1 HEAEGEERY 316,419 -
Fair value of liability component T e RR IR R 23 1) A P{H
on initial recognition - 319,682
Changes in fair value included FEA R A B 2 TE 5 H)
in finance costs 27,976 3,587
Interest paid B FILE (12,939) (6,850)
Liability component at 31 March 3 H 31 HREEH S 331,456 316,419
As at 31 March 2013 and 2014, the liability component of R20134E K 2014463 A31 H » il
the convertible bonds were valued by independent qualified 2085 00 43 KM ST K A (R B S T T S A
valuers, AVISTA Valuation Advisory Limited, who hold a A PR TG > o SR AT R ke
recognised relevant professional qualification and have B AR T ELAR T S s T e A 2 AT AL
recent experience in valuation of convertible bonds. e R

B () A RA A
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30 CONVERTIBLE BONDS —- GROUP AND COMPANY 30 THRRESF-FERQAP ()
(Continued)
The more significant input used in the valuation of the 3 AT I R B GRS A A AT A (B BT T Y B
liability component of the convertible bonds is as follows: HERMEAMNT
2013
and at
inception
2014 MJRRRATI
Risk-free interest rate LIRS 0.748% 0.261%
Volatility P 24.13% 25.07%
Borrowing rate Ee RS 8.25% 8.29%
Dividend yield B % 6.0% 6.0%
Probability of the Option AT HE R T RETE
being exercised 10% 5%
As at 31 March 2014, if the probability of the Option being A20144E3 31 H - i 47 1 9 HE 19 7T fiE
exercised increased by 10%, with other parameters remain PEHE R 10% > H At 5 oA 5 A 5 > Jij T
unchanged, the fair value of the liability component of i A 75 AR 0 40 18 2 ST 18 348 o 400 7 s
the convertible bonds would increase approximately by 9,000,000 JC °
HK$9,000,000.
During the year ended 31 March 2014, none of the bonds R E201453 A31 H IR > AR -
were redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled SO R MG SR (2013 4F ¢ HE) o
(2013: Nil).
31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP 31 EEREH-KE
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities PR AR IE o MO IE B T B E AT R
is as follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T WA
Deferred tax assets S A T 63,775 60,416
Deferred tax liabilities R ALl T A (2,126) (2,337)
61,649 58,079
1 .l 9 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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31

DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (Continued) 31 EEFRSH —RE (4)
The gross movement on the deferred tax accounts is as IRIERIEAR H BB IR
follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
As at 1 April w4aH1H 58,079 59,245
Credited to income statement EPANEES 5,456 194
Change in tax rates Bl A5 ) - (1,636)
Exchange differences BEE 52, 2= 58 (1,886) 276
As at 31 March MW3H31H 61,649 58,079
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during AE RB TE R TE A B RIS (R R
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of R RIS F) e I N BR A8 R
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:
Deferred tax assets — Group BEBIEESE -£8
Accelerated
accounting/
(tax)  Provision for Other
depreciation  unrealised Other  temporary
allowances profitinstock ~ Taxlosses  provisions differences Total
mEgs,/ BE%
(HEHE  RERER St
2 WEE  HEFR  AMRE  EEMER ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR i i AR AR AR
At T April 2012 12012484 A1 6,312 31,208 4,632 14971 5,647 64,720
Credited/(charged) to A/ (IR A gk
income statement 775 (6,969) 3,887 829 1,034 (444)
Effect of change in tax rate GRS $ilih% - (754) - (450) (727) (1,91)
Exchange differences BHER (12) (86) - 122 309 333
At31 March 2013 201343 31 H 9,075 23,399 8519 15,422 6,263 62,678
At Apil 2013 R20134 /11 0075 23399 8519 15422 6263 62678
Credited to income statement AR 1,941 2,251 1,858 1,320 446 7,816
Exchange differences £ (1,089) (392) - (351) (175) (2,007)
At31 March 2014 201443 A31H 9,927 25,258 10,377 16,391 6,534 68,487

B () A RA A
2014 4F4FHR
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31  DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (Continued) 31 EEFBH-£8(F)

Deferred tax liabilities—Group

EEHEEE -5

Accelerated

tax/
(accounting) Other
depreciation temporary
allowances differences Total
hnEBiE, Hith
(B IEER ERFER e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2012 201244 1 H 5,012 463 5,475
Credited to income statement FhA AR R (446) (192) (638)
Effect of change in tax rate o 24 55 88 1) 5 28 (295) - (295)
Exchange differences i i) 62 (5) 57
At 31 March 2013 201343 731 H 4,333 266 4,599
At 1 April 2013 W20134F4H1H 4,333 266 4,599
Charged to income statement FIBR H Uit & 2,351 9 2,360
Exchange differences [ifE 5,25 %8 111 (10) (121)
At 31 March 2014 201443 H31H 6,573 265 6,838
Out of the total unrecognised tax losses of HK$671,702,000 JIT it i D G B S A RE BB 7 R e R B TE
(2013: HK$552,488,000) carried forward, an amount of B B 671,702,000 7 (2013 4F © #
HK$172,486,000 (2013: HK$148,706,000) can be carried 552 488,000 7C) » H 172,486,000
forward indefinitely. The remaining HK$499,216,000 JG(20134E : ##5 148,706,000 7T) AJ I [R 41
(2013: HK$403,782,000) will expire in the following years: g H R % 499,216,000 7T (2013 4 -

¥ 403,782,000 J0) #47E T B HIBR JE T -

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
In the first year AR 56,679 44,344
In the second year 5524 70,851 66,681
In the third year H34 87,240 67,399
In the fourth year 544 61,444 80,108
In the fifth to tenth years inclusive H5ERE 1044 (BIFEREMF) 223,002 145,250
499,216 403,782

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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32

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 32 HFRRERER
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated Wik i 4550 Wiy i 1) BEL 7 2 0 ) T A5 B 4
from operations IR
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT
Profit before income tax W BT 583 il i ) 226,458 300,532
Depreciation Irgg 120,392 116,239
Amortisation of prepayment of S TR AE 5 A3
lease premium 7,124 7,473
Loss on disposal of property, YIS ~ HAs LSt s 1R
plant and equipment 794 1,276
Fair value gain of an investment i v/ EUNSEI- L€
property - (30,000)
Provision for stocks 7B Ay 295 23,071
Impairment of debtors JRE SR T 44 215
Write back of bad debts provision 135 1] SR HRYE (197) (18)
Impairment of property, W2k - W A I
plant and equipment 3,460 9,524
Expenses on convertible bonds BT AT AR 75 2 5,604 1,904
Interest income B A (1,123) (1,020)
Interest expense Sz 37,139 17,670
Dividend income S (3,175) (4,509)
Share of profit of an associate JREAG B 5 ) ¥k ) (1,267) -
Operating profit before working I 7R Y < A T 19 Ve )
capital changes 395,548 442,357
Increase in stocks &N (47,909) (172,969)
Increase in debtors, deposits JENT AR R ~ 54 M T A 3R EHE N
and prepayments (89,621) (14,581)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors JREAT B R e JRE 512 R 98 (i)
and accruals 70,340 (73,755)
Cash generated from operations B TS BE 328,358 181,052

B () A RA A
2014 4F4FHR
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33 COMMITMENTS 33 &IE
(@) Capital commitments of the Group for property, (@ ATEEBRYE - BBERJENERE
plant and equipment =
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Contracted but not provided for & 5T #{H AR 21,066 22,256
Authorised but not contracted for E4ZHEH R FT 4 - 24,420
21,066 46,676
(b) Commitments under operating leases (where the b)) HEBEETHWARE(NEE{ESEAE
Group is the lessee) A)
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease A B TE R AT 2T E T aY sk
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as R4 AR -
follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T AT T
Buildings B
Not later than one year 14K 633,404 587,205
Later than one year but not 1HZES5 R
later than five years 567,485 608,075
Later than five years S54RI 11,919 14,900
1,212,808 1,210,180
The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses AT EA ARFLY - TSGR
and renewal rights. The operating lease rentals of To SEFARER o 25 1 i 1 % 48 A 5
certain outlets are based on the higher of a minimum ST REGSHA N EEN S
guaranteed rental or a sales level based rental. The (DA S 35 ) 3448 o ol AR I Th 4
minimum guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at ARSI E -

the above commitments.

1 23 STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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34

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2014, the Company is controlled by the
Kanjanapas family (including Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas), which collectively controlled
approximately 57.87% of the Company’s issued shares. The
remaining shares are widely held.

Yee Hing Company Limited (“Yee Hing”), directly and
indirectly through its subsidiary held 0.24% of the
Company’s issued shares as at 31 March 2014. 55% of the
total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing is held by Klayze
Holdings Limited, which is the trustee of a discretionary
trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn
Kanjanapas are the beneficiaries of the Trust.

Save as disclosed in Notes 24 and 28, the following is a
summary of the significant related party transactions carried

out in the normal course of the Group’s business:

(i)  Sales of goods and services to related companies

34

BFREALRS

A20144F3 A 31 B » AN A & KK iR
il CEL 3% A B S AR MR BT o) > 3L
PERIAN R E AT A 49 57.87% © B T
HEREIZ H A -

8201443 H31H » REAFRA R ([ 5 )
T % [ 4 088 EC R R 2 ) A A A i
##30.24% ° Klayze Holdings Limited 25—
AR RE (TMEE D) ZFEE A - difrf B
T4 T 4 IR M B 2 55% o AR\ F 3 it
ARG e e s ANT e A BEREZ Z R A -

R Wi 5k 24 M 28 BT B 5% b > T AR AR
V) B 2\ - 2 [ AT B TR A2 5 MR
B AR L SRS H R RS AT

() BEREARKEEEMRRERS

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT AT
Building management fee income [i]— <47 BHEL 2\ ]
from a related company W B € B A 2,340 2,142

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group entered into
agreement with Mengiwa Property Investment Limited
(“MPIL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yee Hing, for
the provision of the following services for the period
from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2016:

(@)  contract administration with respect to contracts
entered into between MPIL and third parties
from time to time;

(b)  property agency liaison and tenancy management;

(c)  management of the property manager of Stelux
House; and

(d)  other miscellaneous administrative services.

The fee for the provision of the above services was
agreed at HK$195,000 per calendar month during the
duration of the agreement.

ASE [ 2 B 4 ) B S I A T
Iy FI R EEY) SERCE A PR | (B EE |)
MR 201344 H1 HZE201643 A 31
F A AT HE DL IR 3T 7 ik

(@ W = AR LA A
TZERATEL

(b) WA LA EEE

() EHEXMEPOLWEEHA
CIRS3

(d)  HABATBURES -

RS T sk A 30T A > 4R b ol ARES 11
H B2 A RS H#%195,0000C ©

B () A RA A
2014 4F4FHR
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 3 FBBEALRES ()
(i) Purchases of goods and services from related (i) MARELATNBEERERY
companies
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Purchase of goods from ] A7 B m B (RF T Q)
a related party (note a) 2,556 2,243
Purchase of goods from 1o B > ) M R R (B RE D)
an associate (note b) 21,794 -
Rental expense to related 1] A7 B 28 W) SRR B S (BT o)
companies (note c) 13,356 8,891
37,706 11,134

Notes:

During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Group
purchased optical products from International Optical
Manufacturing Company Limited and its subsidiary
(“IOM Group”), indirectly owned subsidiaries of
Yee Hing, in accordance with the terms of written
agreements for the Group’s retail and trading
operations.

Purchases of watch movements from an associate
are conducted in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The terms of transactions are determined
and agreed between the Group and the counterparty
and all balances due are repayable according to trade
terms.

During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Group have
entered into tenancy agreements with the following
related parties for office premises, warehouses,
showroom and car-parking spaces at mutually agreed
terms:

FFGE -

TRAEIA > ARSI T W) 2 il ) 28
L [H] 5 e 2 ) ] TR o e e
A BR 2w R H W E 2w (TToM 4
[ 1) A A 4 e D
TR o 2 R BB ER 7 i

2 7 B T A
S5 - 20 5h 2 ek A5 B8
P REE S TP B
SIS SUE

SEN > AR T W 2 7] ST 5
A BN AT SL A k> LI T
WA AR BRI E KA

fir

Rental expense for the year

FEHEEXH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT

Mengiwa Property Investment W) BB A B ]

Limited 11,485 7,299
Other related parties FAbA B A 1,871 1,592
13,356 8,891

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(iii) Year-end balances arising from service income,
purchases of goods and rental expenses are disclosed

in Note 24(c) and Note 28(a).

(ivy Key management compensation

34

BBREALRS (4)

(i) MRFSUCA - BB &5 A S A
A R BRI 3E24(C) B 3E28(a) 4
g -

(iv)y EEEEERH
2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT T

Salaries and other short-term W L HABSE IE B A

employee benefits
Other long-term benefits HoAt =4 A

35 POST BALANCE SHEET DATE EVENTS

Subsequent to the year end, the Group acquired a further
10% equity interest in CATENA SA for a consideration of
CHF2,000,000. After this transaction, the Group holds a
40% equity interest in CATENA SA.

35

20,550 25,518
236 210
20,786 25,728

HEHEKER

AR > AREFFIME CATENA SAT
10% B 4 > fC1E % 2,000,000 i £ % BE -
RIRIE G 1% > AEEFRAH CATENA SATH
40% %1% °

B () A RA A
2014 4F4FHR
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36

127

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

36

FRHWEBAT

Percentage of equity

attributable to the
Place of Share capital issued Group
incorporation/ BRTRE SEREERNAED L
operation Principal activities Number Par value 2014 2013
AMERY EEES k&  SKEE
Investment 12 &
Stelux Holdings International Group British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 US$1 100° 100°
(BVI) Limited SRR L HATER [ES
Stelux Holdings Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1,000 HK$1 100 100
EDREE (M) ARAF Fils BERR T
Stelux Investments and Properties  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 US$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited SRR L HATER [
Stelux Watch Holdings Limited (in - Singapore Investment holding 35,617,861 S$1 100 100
members” voluntary liquidation) i/ Bk AL
(B HE T e 178
Thong Sia (BVI) Company Limited  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 US$1 100 100
FRELHEE B 1%L
Property ¥1%
City Chain Properties Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
SR A R A R it IE S8 T
Fulani Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
i UESec T
Optical 88 Properties Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
R & 88 WA /A il IES8 A
Oswald Property Management Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$100 100 100
Company Limited i ESI8 < 100 7T
Prime Master Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
A R i IES a4 LA
Stelux Properties Agency Limited ~ Hong Kong Property agency and 2 HK$1 100 100
EobE AR AR ik management i
VEEY§ -3
Stelux Properties Limited Hong Kong Property management 500 HK$100 100 100
B E A RA i ES £ R 100 T

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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36

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

36

FEWBAT (4)

Percentage of equity

attributable to the
Place of Share capital issued Group
incorporation/ BRITRA SEFEEENE D
operation Principal activities Number Par value 2014 2013
MY IREH k&  SREE
Retailing and trading
ZERES
City Chain Company Limited Hong Kong Watch retailing 250,000 HK$100 100 100
i ] e e A PR 4 i AT E R 100 T
City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch retailing 3,333,333 RM1 100 100
Y L T E 14%
City Chain (Macau) Company Macau Watch retailing 2 MOP5,000 100 100
Limited 1M KT TR
I R () AR R 5,0007¢
City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited  Singapore Watch retailing 1,800,000 S$1 100 100
Hrhnsg L iR
17T
City Chain (Thailand) Company ~ Thailand Watch retailing 200,000 Baht100 100 100
Limited R KT 100 %5k
210,000 Baht100
100 6%
Optical 88 Limited Hong Kong Optical products 30,700,000 HK$1 100 100
R85 88 AR F il TEERE fi i
Optical 88 (Macau) Limited Macau Optical products 2 MOP5,000 100 100
R4 88 (") AR R Tar R AR
5,000 7C
Optical 88 (S) Pte Limited Singapore Optical products 500,000 S§1 100 100
B B Hrmyeh 1 e
Optical 88 (Thailand) Company ~ Thailand Optical products 245,000 Baht10 100 100
Limited RH B 1075k
255,000 Baht10
1045k
Optical 88 Eyecare (M) Sdn Bhd ~ Malaysia Optical products 1,428,572 RM1 100 100
Ji5¥ NiiEH JEERE dh 143

B () A RA A
2014 4F4FHR
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36  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36 EEMEBAF A
Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Place of Share capital issued Group
incorporation/ BRITRA SEREEENADI L
operation Principal activities Number Par value 2014 2013
AR, R IREK k&  SREE
Retailing and trading (Continued)
ZERES (R)
Pronto Watch S.A. Switzerland Watch distribution 100 SFr1,000 100 100
Bt Sk 1,000+
TS
Solvil et Titus S.A. Switzerland Watch distribution 300 SFr1,000 100 100
Hi L Sk 1,005+
L
Stelux International Licensing Bahamas Trademark holding and 2 Us$1 100 100
Limited (W{LEY:S licensing 1%
FREREA RFF PR
Stelux Watch Limited Hong Kong Watch supply chain 1,000,000 HK$1 100 100
A R i management T
P
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited Hong Kong Watch distribution 80,000 HK$10 100 100
G SEA R il B ) AT
Thong Tai Watch Company Limited Hong Kong Watch distribution 2,000 HK$1,000 100 100
EREEA RN il Sk 71,000 78
Thong Sia Company (Singapore) Pte Singapore Watch distribution 2,000,000 S$1 100 100
Limited A LGN Hrhmsgc s 1 7
Thong Sia Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch distribution 1,000,000 RM1 97.6 97.6
Y i S 9 14%
Thong Tai (Taiwan) Company Hong Kong/Taiwan Watch distribution 1,000 HK$10 100 100
Limited &/ 0l 0 A 10T
R (A8 ARATH
Thong Sia (Thailand) Limited Thailand Watch retailing and 20,000 Baht100 100 100
R distribution 100 %5k
BT R
Thong Sia Optics Hong Kong Optical distribution 5000  HK$1,000 100 100
(Hong Kong) Company Limited ~ % R85 73 5 1,000 78
EHOLEE (B i) AR A
Universal Geneve S.A. Switzerland Watch supply chain 5000  SFr1,000 100 100
It management and 1,000%i1:
distribution il
S o (MG T 0
1 29 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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36

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

36

FEWBAT (4)

Percentage of equity

attributable to the
Group
Place of incorporation/ EERERENE DL
operation Principal activities Paid-up capital 2014 2013
AMERY IREHR BRER
Retailing and trading
(Continued)
ZERES (B)
Baoshi (Guangdong) Company People” s Republic of China/ Retailing, tradingand ~ HK$168,890,000 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical # 168,890,000 7
B (B BOEIRBHIAT  invested commercial services
enterprise) WEERTE B
e KR (Sh R LGl o
FAH)
Baoshi (Shanghai) Company  People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, tradingand ~ RMB19,403,057 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical NERH519,403,057 7t
B (HE) R RAT invested commercial services
enterprise) WEmEE - 85
iR B (51 B R giilol e
F1H)
Stelux-Thong Sia (Beijing) People” s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, US$17,900,000 100 100
Trading Limited Mainland China (foreign- trading and 17,900,000 %€
B (50 BEAMAH  invested commercial related services
enterprise) HETE BN
B e B KB (SM R il e
£4%)
Stelux-Thong Sia (Guangdong) People’s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, HK$159,400,000 100 100
Trading Limited Mainland China (foreign- trading and 55 159,400,000 7G
EIm () P ARAR  invested commercial related services
enterprise) FEEE  HA R
R RE (SN il oo
E0%)
Stelux-Thong Sia (Shanghai)  People’s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, US$14,511,473 100 100

Trading Limited
L (L) B ARAR

Mainland China (foreign-
invested commercial

trading and
related services

enterprise) HETE - BHk
R/ K e (S B HRBAIRHS
£4%)

14,511,473 ¢

B () A RA A
2014 4F4FHR
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36  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36 FEMEBAT ()

Percentage of equity

attributable to the
Group
Place of incorporation/ SEFEEENADLL
operation Principal activities Paid-up capital 2014 2013
A S FEEK BREEX
Baoshi (Beijing) Company People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, tradingand ~ HK$17,000,000 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical #7%17,000,000 7

EOLEM (L) REEHRAR

invested commercial
enterprise)

T/ HEORRE (M
Ede

services
e REE - g5
il e

Baoging (Chongging) Trading  People’s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, HK$13,000,000 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- trading and #7%13,000,000 7
BHE(EE) TEARAF invested commercial related services
enterprise) HEEE HHR
I DN T d ] el
%4%)
Shibao (Chongqing) Trading  People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, tradingand ~ HK$18,000,000 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical 718,000,000 7T
HE (HE) W ARAH invested commercial services
enterprise) MEENEE 8BS
e,/ R B (AP S SRS
%4%)
a Directly held subsidiary a AT 0 B N 7
b Non-redeemable preference shares b R ] i ] S
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance so as to ensure better transparency
and protection of shareholders’ interests in general.
The Board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to making sure that effective self-regulatory
practices exist to protect the interests of its shareholders.
These include a Board comprising experienced and high
calibre members, board committees, and effective internal
audit and sound systems of internal controls.

This Corporate Governance Report (“Report”) describes the
Company’s corporate governance practices with specific
reference to the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix 14 (the “Corporate Governance Code”) of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the

EEERAERTA

$%@ﬁﬁ%%%m¥A¥%ﬁ’Uﬁﬁ
HRER T R A R DL R A T A RN R 4
$Aj§$ﬁT%$ﬁJﬁﬁﬁ%Eﬁﬁ
SR H IR E S DU R A A 25
HORALRE R L B AR RE R A B AL
€~ WHZE G E A S N
T 5835 1) IR R 4T

AR 2R WA (TS D M AR A A
WEEIBEH > BRI 2 BE B A
5 i RS ml a2 L v A (T i s Al D)
B Bk 14 7 3 A S IA SF AT A 2248 IR 5F
D) B ZE 201453 31 H I MBUEERE > A&
N TFI RS RS AR SC > AR
ST 3t e 2 TR R BR A o fm S B2 R

Company complied with the provisions of the Corporate TEASTR G IR Rk -
Governance Code except for certain deviations. These

deviations with considered reasons are set out in this Report.

DIRECTORS” AND EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES EEREESETESRS

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has also made specific enquiry of all its
directors to ascertain whether they have complied with
or whether there has been any non-compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code.

In addition, the Board has established written guidelines
on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for relevant
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) in respect of these employees’ dealings in the
securities of the Company.

Ay ) B R AR TR RIBR Bk 10 BT By
ST R 25 5 G W AR HE ST [ (T AR e
) A B s A TR 57 28 oy Z TSP A

AN AR E ) A R A o R A
il S A5 A5 2 75 9 ST B *W%ﬁﬁmﬁ
e SRR DL o

PN i /N DN N ) /N
(T4 ) AR R B HEAN A E RS
(A T EGE GRS @ N A Sl
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising its
affairs. Every director is expected to discharge his or her
duties in good faith and up to the standard of prevailing
applicable laws and regulations, acting in the best interests
of the Group and the Company’s shareholders.

The Board embraces diversity with a policy of inclusiveness
based on meritocracy, irrespective of gender, ethnicity,
culture or generation. Appointments to the Board are based
on merit having regard to an appropriate balance of skills,
experience, independence and knowledge. The Board
currently consists of nine members. Among them, three
are executive directors and six are non-executive directors.
Three out of the six non-executive directors are independent
and two of the non-executive directors (including one
independent non-executive director) are female. The ages of
our directors range from 35 to 64 years. Several of the nine
either are originally not native to Hong Kong or now reside
outside of Hong Kong.

Mr. Anthony Chu Kai Wabh resigned as an executive director
of the Company on 2 July 2013 and Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi
Kin was appointed as an executive director of the Company
and Group Chief Financial Officer (“Group CFO”) on 2 July
2013.

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
(“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Under the current organisation
structure of the Group, Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is both
Chairman and CEO of the Group. The Board is of the
opinion that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group thus enabling more effective
and efficient strategic planning for the Group. The Board
also believes that the balance of power and authority is not
compromised and is adequately ensured by the composition
of the existing Board.
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The non-executive and independent non-executive directors
are highly experienced individuals with a broad range
of expertise and experience including in areas such as
accounting, finance, academia and healthcare consulting.
Together, they ensure that the Board maintains high standards
of financial and other mandatory reporting; providing
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
shareholders in general and the Group as a whole.

To assist the directors to discharge their duties, there are
established written procedures to enable the directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The term of office of the Company’s non-executive directors,
including the independent non-executive directors, is 3
years, subject to retirement by rotation (pursuant to Bye-law
110(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws), whichever is the earlier.

Under Code Provision A.4.2, every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Not all
directors of the Company retire strictly under Code Provision
A.4.2. The Company’s Bye-Laws 110(A) stipulates that,
one-third of the directors of the Company who have been
longest serving in office since their last election, except the
Chairman or CEO, shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting (“AGM”).

Both the Board and management have clearly defined
responsibilities under various internal controls and check and
balance mechanisms. The Board is ultimately responsible
for establishing the overall strategic direction of the Group,
setting objectives and business development plans, monitoring
the performance of senior management and assuming
responsibility for corporate governance. Management is
responsible for implementing strategies and plans, and
regular reports on the Group’s performance and operations
are submitted to the Board. All directors have access to
management, and enquiries, explanations, briefings or
informal discussions on the Group’s operations are welcome.
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The Board held a total of five board meetings and passed
three written resolutions during the financial year. At
these five board meetings, different issues and matters
were discussed and reviewed including, approval of the
Group’s FY12/13 final results and the FY13/14 interim
results; reviewing financial and operating performances of
the Group; approval of new and/or renewals of borrowing
facilities; approval of new and/or renewals of continuing
connected transactions; and conducting an annual review
of the effectiveness of the system of internal controls of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the purposes of Code
Provision C.2.1 and C.2.2. The executive director and
Group CFO; and the Company Secretary attended most
Board meetings to report on matters arising from corporate
governance, risk management, statutory compliance,
accounting and finance. Details of the directors” attendance
at the Board meetings during the financial year are set out
below. All businesses transacted at the Board meetings
are well-documented and the records are maintained in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

G AR B BUAE LR AT K
SR TR c EE IR E S
GeRLswm AT Z T EEE > S
R ASAE ] 12/13 WEBUAE B R 12645 1 13/14
WA T AR 3 R A 2645 5 Mot A 4R [ A RS R S
B MR B A B Mt
HEBT b,/ SRS AR A R AR S 5 B RS
B SCER C.2. 1 R X C.2.206 » BIARN 7 L H:
W Jo 2 ] 4 T B ) R ) BRI AT 4E B
fwt o ATHUEE I SR S &
NEENARFERHONEREe®
AAEZERA - R E - e g5t
T P B A S A R o A AR B AR
25N e G R 2 R R A
T o RERG GRS EH YA
FO Bk > N7 4 BRI T L) ROk AT A B R
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Total no. of No. of Directors
Date of Directors present
board meeting EExgegTAY = UN HEEEAY
25 June 2013 201346 H25H 9 7
23 July 2013 201347 H23 H 9 8
9 October 2013 20134F10H9H 9 8
28 November 2013 20134F11 H28H 9 7
20 January 2014 20144E1 20 H 9 8
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No. of board meetings
attended/held in FY13/14

Director RI3M4BTREE
= HE BHZESSERHE
Executive Directors THES

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman and WA A (R MATEAEER)

Chief Executive Officer) 5/5
Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui (Chief Operating Officer) BITEMSEAE (A s D) 5/5
Mr. Anthony Chu Kai Wah (resignation as a director of RBEHESCIE (B2 AR 4 A IR

the Company effective from 2 July 2013) E 20134 7 H 2 H#45%) 0/1
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin B B A

(appointment as a director of the Company (VEZS (T 1328 Al d R LE [ B

and Group Chief Financial Officer effective from 2 July 2013) HE##E - H20134F7 H 2 HEAERC) 4/4
Non-executive Directors FITHES
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas HANL A 0/5
Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng BEEL+ 4/5%
Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang TR 5/5
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang (independent) A SR () 5/5
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (independent) BRSSO (F ) 5/5
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang (independent) BB 24T Wit (# ) 5/5
*  Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng appointed Mr. Alex Wong Yu * REEL LREEHF R BIEET

Tsang as alternate director to act on her behalf in her PR A E S AR -
absence at the one board meeting she was unable to
attend.
During the financial year, the Company held its AGM on 9 A BFBUAERE » AN F]R20134E8 H 9 H &L
August 2013. No other general meetings were held during AT R SR A R o A AR S WS 3 OE i S A T
the financial year. Details of the directors’ attendance at the HABE R K € - #Ea TR EERG 2
AGM are set out below: FEREHEIIE
9 August 2013 201358 A9H
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong BRI e
Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui BITEMSEE
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin HERSEE
Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng AL+
Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang W
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang AR SR
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man R SR
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang T 53 A 1k 1
The Board is supplied with relevant information by senior REUCE M E e a R A SARE R
management pertaining to matters to be brought before the N B gy 1) g PR A B4R 2 R R
Board for decision as well as reports relating to operational HIAA B 2 R T A BR A B T T W
and financial performance of the Group before each regular BREAZ WL - REMNERGTRETE
board meeting. At least 14 day’s notice of a regular board DI4ARATI A E R LRSS EERE

B () A RA A
2014 4F4FHR 136



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

137

meeting is given to all directors giving them the opportunity
to attend. Board papers are despatched to directors generally
at least 3 days before the meeting and in any event as soon
as practicable, in all instances, ensuring that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meeting.

The proceedings of the Board at its meetings are generally
conducted by the Chairman of the Company who ensures that
sufficient time is allocated for discussion and consideration
of each item on the agenda and also equal opportunities are
given to directors to speak, express their views and share their
concerns. The Chairman held one meeting on 9 April 2014
with the non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) without the executive directors present.

Under Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development. All directors received on average 5 hours of
training during the financial year through reading various
materials like “Guidelines for Directors”.

BOARD DIVERSITY
(1)  Policy on Board Diversity

a.  We embrace diversity by being inclusive.

b.  We believe in meritocracy irrespective of
gender, ethnicity, culture, generation or

geography.

c.  We believe that an optimal and balanced
board should comprise of individuals with
an appropriate balance of different skills,
educational and industry background,
experience, independence and knowledge.

(2) Objective and Benefits of Board Diversity
To remain competitive in a globalised world, board

diversity is at the forefront of the Group’s agenda. We
believe in diversity and inclusiveness as these bring
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to the boardroom a spectrum of perspectives and
opinions, necessary as we navigate our businesses
through a more complex market place and as our
customers’ aspirations grow in sophistication.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day to day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. She
reports to the Chairman and CEO. The Board has access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure
that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations, are followed.

The Company Secretary attended the following professional
development seminars receiving over 10 hours of training
during the financial year:-

(i) HKICS Annual Corporate and Regulatory Update
2013;

(i) ESG Reporting and Corporate Sustainability; and

(iii)  Eversheds Knowledge Sharing Workshop.
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
preparation of the Group’s accounts and has delegated
this responsibility to the Group CFO. The Group CFO
and his team are responsible for preparing interim and
annual financial statements based on generally accepted
accounting principles in Hong Kong ensuring that the
financial statements present a fair and true view of the
results and the financial position of the Group and that
they comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Group CFO maintains
regular communications with the external auditors. He also
plays a role in reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on the Group’s financial risk management. The
Group CFO is also responsible for overseeing the Group's
investor relations activities.

A statement by the Group’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers about their reporting
responsibilities on the Group's financial statements are set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 32.
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The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company and its subsidiaries ability to continue as a
going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the external auditor of the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries at the 2013 Annual General Meeting until
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.
During the year, HK$4,830,000 was paid or payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers for the provision of audit services.
Details of nature for non-audit related services provided by
and the fee paid or payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers are
set out as below:

30 R T T B AT Ay B AR % ] R H
I S 2 ) R A6 A RE T IR K B B 2 R
TFEAE UL B 2 R AFEE R R -

BB ET &

AR A 201 3 47 RS AT K 6 24T 2t 12
R WL T NN D S e W o 5
NCIPIN Y3 R AR CE S N S R ]
EREEERIE o F AN > A A58 IS
K HE & Rl =R S T A 46 2 A R S 1 S
15T BREAT HE 5 4,830,000 TG © £ RUKE &
s = T B Ak 2 I A A B RS R
) S AT el AT 2 FEG AR

Description HK$
IGEDN BT
Taxation compliance BLB R 864,000
Advisory and other services Jo ] B oAt i 5 496,000

The Group also engaged other auditors in Hong Kong and
overseas for auditing and miscellaneous services and total
fees paid amounted to HK$1,213,000.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the discharge of its duties, the Board
is supported by five board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on
matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

(1) Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee comprises of three executive
directors, namely, Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman
of the Strategy Committee, Group Chairman and
CEO), Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui (Group Chief
Operating Officer) and Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
(appointment effective from 2 July 2013) and two non-
executive directors, namely, Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng
and Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang. The Strategy Committee
meets regularly and its terms of reference includes
providing recommendations to the Board on changes
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to the Group’s organisational structure; formulation T EE R BEAE . RolaR A
of key performance indicators for the Group’s B T IR e P 4 % T 008 B b Y 3R
businesses, annual budgets; and to advise the Board s =R [ B e R L o

on strategic matters as thought fit and necessary for the
expansion and future development of the Group.

The Committee met nine times during the financial % BRI BUE N R AR
year and up to the date of this Report. HEC BAT LR &k -

Attendance of directors at the Strategy Committee HRERR T HRITHRREZE S
Meetings held on: AR L

30 April 2013 and 11 June 2013 20134 A30HK2013F6A11H
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong HAE SR

Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui Bl

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng HEME L

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang W

2 August 2013, 2013F8H2H >

30 September 2013, 201359H308 -

22 November 2013, 201311 8228 -

17 January 2014, 20141 H178 >

28 February 2014, 2014524288 -

25 April 2014 and 201454258 K

10 June 2014 20146 A 10H

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong AR

Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui B

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng BRI+

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang T

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin PR B E

B () A RA A
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2)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Nelson Wu
Chun Sang (Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man and Dr. Agnes
Kwong Yi Hang and two non-executive directors,
namely, Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng and Mr. Alex Wong
Yu Tsang.

The terms of reference of the Committee are aligned
with the recommendations set out in the Listing Rules
and the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code. The Committee provides advice
and recommendations to the Board and oversees all
matters relating to the external auditors, thus playing
an important role in monitoring and safeguarding the
independence of the external auditors.

The Committee met four times during the financial
year and up to the date of this Report together with
the external auditors in three meetings to discuss
matters, including, the Group’s audit service plan,
the review of accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and other financial reporting
matters; to ensure the completeness, accuracy and
fairness of the financial statements of the Company;
to discuss the effectiveness of the systems of internal
control throughout the Group including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget;
to review all significant business affairs managed by
the executive directors in particular on continuing
connected transactions and to review the Group’s
results for FY12/13 and FY13/14 and interim results for
FY13/14 before they were presented to the Board for
approval.
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Attendance of directors at the Audit Committee
Meetings held on:

19 June 2013

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang

25 November 2013

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang

9 April 2014

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang

23 June 2014

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng appointed Mr. Alex Wong
Yu Tsang as alternate director to act on her behalf in
her absence at the Committee meetings held on 25
November 2013 and 9 April 2014.

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration Committee comprises
of Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Nelson Wu Chun
Sang, Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang (all independent
non-executive directors of the Company, Ms. Mary
Ma Xuezheng (non-executive director) and Mr. Joseph
C. C. Wong (Group Chairman and CEO).

Code Provision B.1.2 deals with the terms of reference
of the remuneration committee. The Company has
adopted the terms of reference under Code Provision
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B.1.2 except that the terms of reference do not
include reviewing and determining the remuneration
packages of senior management. The Company
believes that the remuneration packages of senior
management should be the responsibility of the
executive directors as they are in a better position to
appraise the performance of senior management. The
Remuneration Committee determines with delegated
responsibility the remuneration packages of its
individual executive directors. The basic salaries of its
executive directors are reviewed annually, and unless
there are exceptional circumstances, increases if any,
generally align with the average annual increment for
the Group's office staff in Hong Kong.

The Committee met two times during the financial
year and up to the date of this Report. At these
meetings, the Committee conducted annual reviews
of the basic salaries of its executive directors and
determined the annual bonus scheme for FY14/15 for
its executive directors.

Attendance of directors at the Remuneration
Committee Meetings held on:

19 June 2013

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng

23 June 2014

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of Mr. Joseph
C. C. Wong (Chairman of the Nomination Committee,
Group Chairman and CEO), three independent non-
executive directors, namely, Mr. Nelson Wu Chun
Sang, Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man, Dr. Agnes
Kwong Yi Hang and a non-executive director, Mr.
Alex Wong Yu Tsang.

Code Provision A.5.3 deals with the terms of
reference of a nomination committee. The Company
has adopted the terms of reference under Code
Provision A.5.3. During the financial year, and up
to the date of this Report, the Committee met two
times. At these meetings, the Committee reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board
and considered the independence of Professor
Lawrence Wu Chi Man; having served 9 years by the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The Committee
nominated Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man for re-
election as an independent non-executive director
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. In the
nomination process, the Committee proposes the most
appropriate individual with the right balance of skills,
experience, and industry background for the position
based on merit irrespective of gender, ethnicity,
culture, generation or geography.

Attendance of directors at the Nomination Committee
Meetings held on:

19 June 2013

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Dr. Kwong Yi Hang, Agnes

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang

9 April 2014

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang
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Corporate Governance Committee

Stelux recognises that adopting proper systems, running
our businesses within a strong legal framework of rules
and procedures, underpinned by sound business ethics
are essential to safeguarding the economic performance
of the Group and our shareholders’ interests in a
sustainable manner. The Corporate Governance
Committee comprises of Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui
(Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
and Group Chief Operating Officer), three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Nelson Wu Chun
Sang, Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man, Dr. Agnes
Kwong Yi Hang and two non-executive directors,
namely, Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng and Mr. Alex Wong
Yu Tsang.

Code Provision D.3.1 deals with the terms of
reference of a corporate governance committee. The
Company has adopted the terms of reference under
Code Provision D.3.1. The Corporate Governance
Committee held one meeting during the financial
year. At this meeting, the Committee amongst other
things, reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the Code Provisions and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report. Quarterly sales turnover
updates are voluntarily issued by the Company
and a whistleblowing policy is in place. With the
implementation of the statutory disclosure regime for
inside information under the Securities and Futures
(Amendment) Ordinance 2012 on 1 January 2013,
systems are in place on reporting and dissemination of
inside information.

Attendance of directors at the Corporate Governance
Committee Meeting held on:

9 April 2014

Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang
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The above board committees report to the Board on
a regular basis. All businesses transacted at the board
committee meetings are recorded and minuted. The terms
of reference of four of the above board committees are
available on the Company’s website at www.stelux.com.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The internal controls and accounting systems of the Group
are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets
are safeguarded against unauthorised use or disposition,
transactions are executed in accordance with management’s
authorisation and the accounting records are reliable for
preparing financial information used within the business or
for publication and reflecting accountability for assets and
liabilities.

The key responsibilities of the Group’s Compliance and
Internal Controls Department, include:

e to review cost control and performance efficiency of
all business units;

o to identify areas for improvement in the Group’s
system of internal controls and to propose necessary
recommendations to the Board; and

o to carry out internal audit work at business units.

Under Code Provision C.2.1, the directors should at least
annually conduct a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal controls system reporting to the Company’s
shareholders in the Corporate Governance Report. The
review should cover all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

Under Code Provision C.2.2, the Board’s annual review
should, in particular, consider the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function.
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The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal controls and accounting systems of
the Company and its subsidiaries and a board meeting was
held on 9 April 2014 for such a review for the period from
21 March 2013 up to and including 9 April 2014. The Board
reported that there were no changes in the nature and extent
of significant risks and there were no material changes in
the control environment during the period under review.
According to the opinion of the Board, the Company and
its subsidiaries have established sound internal control
systems so that our shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets are safeguarded. Moreover, in the opinion
of the Board, the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function was adequately resourced with staff
holding appropriate qualifications and experience and with
sufficient training and budget provided by the Company.

The effectiveness of the system of internal controls and the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget will be
reviewed annually.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group values frequent dialogue with existing and
prospective investors, and press meetings, roadshows, and
meetings with the investment community are held regularly.
We will continue to promote and enhance investor relations
so as to increase understanding of the Group’s business
models and the way we conduct our businesses.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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11.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

m

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Shareholders may request to convene an extraordinary
general meeting in accordance with section 74 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981:

i. The directors of a company, notwithstanding
anything in its bye-laws shall, on the requisition
of members of the company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital
of the company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the company, or, in the case of a company
not having a share capital, members of the
company representing not less than one-tenth
of the total voting rights of all the members
having at the said date a right to vote at general
meetings of the company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene a special general meeting of the
company.

ii. The requisition must state the purposes of
the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the company, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists.

iii.  If the directors do not within twenty-one days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the said
date.

11.
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iv. A meeting convened under this section by the
requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by directors.

v.  Any reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionists by reason of the failure of the
directors duly to convene a meeting shall be
repaid to the requisitionists by the company,
and any sum so repaid shall be retained by the
company out of any sums due or to become
due from the company by way of fees or other
remuneration in respect of their services to such
directors as were in default.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the
board and sufficient contact details to enable these
enquiries to be properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board by
addressing them to the Company Secretary in writing
to:

(i) the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong; or (i) by email to shareholdersenquiries@stelux.com.

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders may, subject to (1) above, by way of
request in writing request a shareholders’ meeting
to be convened for the purpose of considering a
certain matter, addressing the request to the Company
Secretary at:

the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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12.

13.

14.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great importance to communication
with its shareholders and investors. To foster effective
communications, the Company provides extensive information
in its annual report, interim report and also disseminates
information relating to the Group and its businesses
electronically through its website: www.stelux.com.

The Company regards the AGM as a platform to provide an
important opportunity for direct communications between
the Board and the Company’s shareholders. All directors
and senior management will make an effort to attend.
External auditors will also attend the AGM. The chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration,
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committees were
present at the Company’s AGM held in 2013. Shareholders
are given at least 20 clear business days or 21 days’ notice
of the AGM (whichever is the longer) and are encouraged
to attend the AGM and other shareholders’” meetings.
The Company supports the Corporate Governance Code
principle to encourage shareholders’ participation.

Shareholders may send any enquiries they have by
addressing them to the Company Secretary in writing to:

(i) the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong; (ii) or by email to shareholdersenquiries@stelux.com.

CODE OF CONDUCT

To enhance the ethical standards of employees, the
Company has an employee handbook, setting out the
Group's requisite standards and an ethical code of conduct
for all employees of the Group. Employees at all levels are
expected to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and
responsible manner.

CONCLUSION

The Company recognises that adopting good corporate
governance principles and practices are important for
the success of the Group and as such we will continue to
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the
Group’s corporate governance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
(“ESG REPORT")

Scope of reporting

The Group's vision is to “Beautify and enrich lives through our
products and services”. In setting out to achieve this, there are
certain core principles which underpin the way we work and
engage with others.

. We look to deliver sustainable results to our shareholders

J We engage our business partners and treat our employees in
a responsible, fair and honest manner

. We contribute and serve in the communities where we
operate our businesses

In a nutshell, we care about how we conduct our businesses and
the way we interact with others.

The Group has chosen to report on ESG issues for FY13/14 on a
voluntary but limited basis adopting Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules as a standard. This ESG Report only focuses on certain
aspects of the Group’s watch and optical retail operations in Hong
Kong for FY13/14. This segment has been selected as Hong Kong
is both our home and a key market.

The Board of directors (the “Board”) is ultimately responsible for
ESG reporting but the preparation of this ESG Report has been
delegated to the Company Secretary and her team.

The Board is of the opinion that two ESG subject areas, Operating
Practices and Community Involvement are relevant to the Group's
businesses. Within these two subject areas, some aspects and KPIs
will be more important than others. We will only be reporting on
those aspects which we consider to be relevant and material to the
Group's objectives.
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WORKPLACE QUALITY

Aspect A1 Working Conditions

Policies on compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity and other benefits and welfare

The Group has established employment policies and

guidelines that are compliant with the Hong Kong

Employment laws.

These policies and guidelines are:-

Recruitment and Promotion

1. We are an equal opportunities employer.

2. We hire and promote based on merit.

3. We hire and promote those who share our values
and work ethics; those who demonstrate initiative,
responsibility and integrity.

Compensation

1. Remuneration and benefits are benchmarked against
prevailing local industry norms and commensurate

with experience and qualifications.

2. Dependent on staff category, KPIs are adopted as part
of staff packages to incentivise.

Dismissal

This is based on the Hong Kong Employment laws.
Working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare
Working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare
are in line with local industry practice and/or where
applicable commensurate with experience, qualification

and seniority.

During FY13/14, there was no material non-compliance
with applicable legislation and/or regulations.
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KPI A1.1 For the purposes of disclosure under KPI A1.1 and B S SR AR ALY S0 T R B S A AR AR
KPI A1.2, the Group has divided its Hong Kong workforce AT B BSBSEAR A 2| FEIN S > A%
into 3 age groups; ages 33 or below, 34-49 and 50 or above. B A vk AR B2 S =R AE B A A 5 33 ER
Workforce refers to both office and store employees. The IR~ 34 £ 4955 LKL 50588 2L | o fE B8
average ages of our workforce by employment type in Hong WA G BE B o 74 13/14 W BUF B2 1R
Kong during the FY13/14 is shown below: PR 23 10 A B ARl

Hong Kong Workforce by employment type and age group
AR B (R (RS Y S AR B AL 300 )

900
800
- 700
g z 600
5B 500
S = 400
300
200
100
0 .
Ages 33 or below Ages 34 to 49 Ages 50 or above
33T 342495 505 L E
Part time staff 56 9 5
el B T
Temporary staff 1 1 2
i
m Contract staff 0 0 3
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KPI A1.2 The average monthly employee turnover rate by PSRRI 1 A2 FRAF B AL 30 00 1) B s IR B
age group for our workforce in Hong Kong is shown below: AFHmA RN

50 or above,
5083 L E
1.77%

1 5 3 STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”)
RIE - HERERRE (RR - dEREB/HED

Aspect A2 Health and Safety A2fBH REEZR

Policies on Health and Safety [EFEILL 2

One of our foremost priorities is to provide employees with AL BRI — R n R B iRt 27 E

a safe and conducive working environment. B _LAEBRES -

1. Office employees are assigned individual work 1.
stations unless due to the nature of work, this is
considered unnecessary.

2. Offices and stores are properly lit and ventilated, 2.
kept clean and tidy with ample space between work
stations (applicable to offices only).

3. Offices and stores are smoke-free. 3.

4. Office furniture and fittings are well maintained and 4.
replaced where necessary.

5. Security measures are in place at our offices to restrict 5.
entry and exit only to staff and permitted visitors.

6. We follow the Government’s work guidelines on 6.
typhoon and rainstorm warnings.

7. Free yearly influenza vaccinations are offered to staff 7.
(and to their families at discounted rates).

8. Managerial staff and above are offered free yearly 8.
basic body check-ups.

KPI A2.1 In FY13/14 there were no work-related fatalities.

KPI A2.2 There were 254 lost days due to 11 incidents of
work related injuries involving 9 employees. Out of the 254
days, 209 days were related to 1 employee.

KPI A2.3 “Occupational Safety and Health” seminars are
provided to relevant employees according to the nature of
their work.

BrJE TARVER T > 75 e 2 1R B 370
e VEX MR EE

N = B Gl B 23 R RE R R A
TR ISR s & TAEHLEE 7 WA o4 22
(AR A ) »

I 5 B S AR

N S IR S =S SO AR S
CiE

e A R - IR B T K FF AT )
FHEH, -

FAM 2 1R A ] I L B 2 T A 1 LA
55 -

PR A I?Eﬁ?ﬁ%(mrﬁf;t MR (B THR
JB=AH )

CEEUNCV R ¢SSR R R 8 2=
Mt o

B SAETEAL 1 13/14 A BUAEJE > A MEfE
Al Rl CAEAHBRSE T Sk -

BASEAT AR IEA2 292 R B 11 2 TG =
SMETC H 35 254 K 0 254 KE A 209
KELF—% 18 5 AR -

BHSERUMAREE A2.3 MRS BH AR B /Y TAF
B 1) HAR I T 20 4 L M e ) o e
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Leaflets, videos and guidelines are made available on
the intranet for employees to understand the importance
of occupational safety and health and for department
heads to be made aware of the responsibilities they have
in monitoring the safety and health of employees in their
department.

Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and regulations
are provided to specific staff, such as stock keepers and
logistic assistants.

Our offices at Stelux House undergo annual air quality
inspections under the IAQ Certification Scheme launched

WA IR BT - R g 5] - IR R
B B S 20 4 Qe f R EE A P
EHERHARMERELME RN L2
B AR

1) 45 A T A I S 4 2 L f ek 91 2 AL
SE (BN B e Wi By Ee) o

Tl B B B3 o L A A I
e AT I B 5 2 UL 2R

by the HKSAR Government and have achieved Good Class B2 R > 2 [ R 38 -

certification.

Aspect A3 Development and Training A3EE R RIE
Policies on Employee development and training 1 5 FEE R 55 B

As the owner of retail chains, “CITY CHAIN",
“OPTICAL 88” and “eGG Optical Boutique” (launched in
2011), we differentiate ourselves by offering professional
quality services and a good product mix of house brands and

SR TR T IR$%88] & [eGG Optical
Boutique] (2011 44t HSUERIBEA A > T
DA A B S 00 RO B A 1 5 ot e R o it
SZoufbiEdh - AT BB -

international brands.

%5 B I Sl e 2000 A R NS RS o i
A RS K- LA 5 e K B LSS AR B - B e
RAEHETE R IERN - Beoh > BEIEAI R A T
PRALFT R R B RE o ER(E A B TR HE L
PEfckr & > JRATERTH AR -

Our customers enjoy and have come to expect a personal
shopping experience when they visit our stores. As there is a
direct correlation between service standards and employee
development and training, we ensure that adequate
emphasis is given to training. Moreover, proper training and
development imparts necessary knowledge and skills upon
staff. This not only allows our staff to stay relevant but also
imbues self-confidence.

1 55 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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The Group has policies concerning employee development AL BR AN A T B A IR B T S Bl Y B

and training and these are set out below:— IR - —

1. Store staff receive both regular and ad hoc training. 1. JEHEE TEW RARHEZ I

2. New store staff undergo orientation. 2. HUEEHE TAHMNE

3. Training is conducted by internal and external 3. Bl dy AR S AR BRI BEAT
trainers.

4. Training and development is given in relevant areas 4. FRAMAH B AR 0 55 I S B R o A0 E N

like, product knowledge, visual merchandising, o BURBRS - FPRE  IEfEEE T
customer servicing, correct sales techniques and new T3 S5 RE8 T e s B A 1) B
laws and regulations that may impact on our business

operations.

5.  Follow-up evaluation is carried out after training and 5. SRR BRI AR HEAT A ST Al DARE ORISR -

development to ensure effectiveness.

KPI' A3.1 In FY 13/14, over 70% of operations staff in all RS BB HE AS .1 13/14 BABUAE TS > /USRI =
three retail chains in Hong Kong received training and AR 38 B 2 T AL 70% 7E Bk B T8 12 52 15 9l K
development. JE o

KPI A3.2 For those who attended training, each employee BRSEATHEIE A2 5% S BRI A s g B 71
received on average around 24 hours of training and ez 924 /NREEE R BB S o
development.

B () A RA A
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C.  OPERATING PRACTICES C.

Aspect C1 Supply Chain Management

The Group’s house brands are exclusively available at
our stores and form a strategic component of our business
model.

Policies on supply chain management

1. The Group outsources the manufacturing process of
its house brand products endeavouring to partner
suppliers who share our principles to conduct
business in a fair, honest and responsible manner.

2. Our suppliers are contractually obliged to ensure that
they do not employ bonded or underaged labour.

3. Our suppliers are contractually obliged to supply
products that are free from toxic materials.

4. Our suppliers are encouraged to align their values
with the Group by agreeing to adopt certain Standards
of Engagement which form part of the contracts they
sign. These Standards include the following:—

(i)  No compulsion to work through force or
intimidation of any form.

(i) Employment to be based solely on the ability to
perform the job and without any discrimination
due to ethnicity, gender, age, disability or
marital status.

(iii)  Fair wages and all other legally mandated
benefits should be paid.

(iv)  Provision of a safe and hygienic working
environment which complies with local laws or

practices.

(v) Integration of sustainability principles into
business decisions.

(vi)  Community involvement.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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KPI C1.1 The majority of our suppliers are Hong
Kong companies or individuals with manufacturing
or assembling functions in Mainland China.
The remaining suppliers have manufacturing or
assembling functions in Europe and other Asian
countries.

KPI C1.2 Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers

(i) Suppliers are engaged based on their ability to
deliver products within Group specifications,
like price, quantity and delivery time.

(i) Suppliers are engaged based on a set of
standardised criteria, like, factory environment,
quality control, employee policies, compliance
with international standards like CE, RoHS and
REACH.

(iii)  Suppliers must adopt the Group’s standard
manufacturing contract.

The above practices (i) to (iii) are already adopted by
our watch supply chain and under implementation by
our optical supply chain.

Contracts are valid for 12 months only and renewals
are not automatic. Supplier appraisals are conducted
annually based on the practices in KPI C1.2.

Aspect C2 Product Responsibility

As a responsible product and service provider, we take all
customer complaints seriously.

1. We target to resolve customer complaints within 3
working days from the date we are notified or the
product is returned, whichever occurs later.

2. Complaints are addressed and resolved by telephone
or through the internet, wherever possible by our team
of customer service representatives.

3. Serious complaints are escalated up to the operations
team.

B S SRR R C1 R (I RE 7 4
s A ml SO A R Bk R
TP A HH B A 4 o LR AR 7 1 SR
7 R T R K B A 5 9

puns

K o

PSSR B C 1.2 BRI P L i A R
AR i

() WL - fRIE AR 4
5 7 B 7 0 5K (e
He - ORI -

(i) TE LR B - kiR
e pF > 0 TR BR BE R
il R BEOR > WA A BN &
1 SR (CE) ~ f& 5 M4 8L BR 1l
§4 (RoHS) M AL 5301 ~ &7
i ~ PR PR 75 28 (REACH) 5%
2] PR AR AE o

(i) 3k 7R 20 ZE B T A 4 [ A A

BEK -

DA AR (i) 2 (i) B K8 TSR s g 4%
o SR IR ST E AT o
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) o AR AR T 4 A i TR R A9 AR
C1.2 st i (R P A T T A% o

CQEHE EmE(E
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KPI C2.1 In FY13/14, the percentage of total products sold
or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons is
zero.

KPI C2.2 In FY13/14, complaints received were within
industry norms. All complaints were handled by our
customer services departments through a system which
records the details of the complaint; monitors the handling
and progress of the complaint; the time taken on the
handling of the complaint and records the results of the
resolution. In general our customer service departments
reply within 3 working days of receiving the complaint and
the product (if any).

KPI. C2.2 Policies relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights

The Group’s intellectual property comprises principally of
our brands that are by and large registered in the regions
where we operate our businesses.

Our brands identify the Group and its businesses. As
such our brands are highly material to the success of
our businesses. Therefore, resources are allocated to the
maintenance and protection of our rights to these brands.

BB AE IS EC2.1 13/14 A BAESE » B
L 06 2\ A b TR 2 4 B ft R L i [
W E A -

BRASEATAREC2.2 13/14 LA > AR
PR RAT BT R - ITABRR R K
R i s B PR BRI IR RN B
P e P RO T~ R IR AR R - 3
FUBR IR DA o — N T > BT MBS
TERE R S i (AN 4R =8 TAE H R el 7 -

BRI IR C2.2 A B L 5 S R B Rk
RERY B

A AR R R R A T S T i [
AEME B S A o

FAM 9 i R AC R A SR B S HL 26 R
FRAM 19 i RSB SE 5 TN 2 T o AR
[R] T 515 5 U T 22 A o e A 9 5% 568 it WL )
R -

1. We value our intellectual property rights and 1. FAMEVLRGAERE > 3wk SR R0 kA HE
recognise their paramount importance to our B ZEHS AT Bk
businesses.

2. We manage and protect the Group's intellectual 2. FRAMEE R - AR R T R A R

property rights through registration, maintenance and
enforcement measures.

3. We respect the intellectual property rights of others

(i) we will not use third party intellectual rights
without authorisation;

(i) our ODM suppliers warrant the originality of
their designs and indemnify us in event of a
breach.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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KPI. C2.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights

] The Group’s brand portfolio is managed centrally
from Hong Kong and where necessary external service
providers are instructed.

J Procedures are in place to docket renewals.

. Subscription to a worldwide trademark watching
service alerts us to third party applications that are
similar to the Group’s core brands.

o Keeping a record in Hong Kong of important
copyrightable work created by Group employees or
commissioned external parties.

KPI C2.4 The quality assurance process for house brand

watches, including, component parts is well defined and

structured.

. Evaluation and standardisation of the acceptance of
products (both the structure and functions).

. Monitoring suppliers’ quality inspection process to
check if instructions given are followed.

J Inspection of completed watch in accordance with
relevant industry standards.

As for house brand eyeglasses, the quality assurance process
is similar to that for watches above.

. Evaluation and standardisation of the acceptance of
products.

J Inspections of the complete product in accordance
with relevant industry and brand standards.

Description of recall procedures
J Contact customer who has purchased the product.
J Arrange for returning the product to us.

J Removal of the product in question from shelves (if
displayed) and return them to the relevant supplier.
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KPI C2.5 The Group’s Policy on consumer data protection
explains the meaning of personal data, and the general
principles relating to its collection, use, retention and
disposal. The Group follows the six general principles
relating to data protection as set down by the Hong Kong
Privacy Commission.

The Group's Policy is set out so that employees are aware of
their rights and obligations. Customers are informed through
Privacy Policy Statements.

The Group’s Policies

1. Personal Data should be treated as confidential and
the Group's policies on the “Handling of Confidential
Information” where applicable also applies.

2. Employees have to comply with local data protection
laws, including the six general principles on data
protection.

3. The Group will only collect personal data on a lawful,
fair and open basis.

4. The Group takes the confidentiality and handling
of personal data very seriously and employees who
breach this Policy or the Group’s related guidelines
may face disciplinary action.

Employees who handle personal data, in particular our
front line staff have to undergo training. Further, guidelines
and workflow systems have been implemented and these
must be strictly followed. Staff are evaluated after training
to ensure they understand and are able to implement these
guidelines and systems.

Moreover, a certification system where relevant managers
certify that staff under their supervision are compliant with
this Policy is now in place.

The Group is in the process of enhancing its data protection
governance systems by modifying existing controls and
systems.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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Aspect C3 Anti-corruption

Our operations in Hong Kong have established anti-
corruption policies and all employees are expected to
discharge their duties with integrity and to follow relevant
local laws. Our anti-corruption policies are set out in our
Employee Handbook and Operations Manuals.

KPI' C3.1 During the reporting period, there were no legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against our
companies or employees (in the course of their employment)
in Hong Kong.

KPI C3.2 Through the work of the ICAC and the existence
of a sound legal system, our Hong Kong staff are aware of
the standards imposed on them by prevailing anti-corruption
laws. This is reinforced by the adoption of clear guidelines
concerning the accepting and giving of advantages.

The Group has implemented a whistle blowing policy which
is disseminated through various means within its businesses
in Hong Kong, including through the Company intranet.

Whistleblowing reporting procedure

1. Employees report verbally or in writing (anonymous
reporting is accepted but not encouraged) to the
Head of Group Compliance and Internal Controls
with full details and supporting evidence of suspected
misconduct or malpractice.

2. The Company conducts an internal investigation.
Where criminality is suspected, a report is made to the
relevant authorities.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Aspect D1. Community Investment

Our Policies

In respect of Community Investment, Stelux’ mission is
to strive to be a part of our communities, to serve and
contribute by promoting corporate social responsibility. Our
motto is to “Connect through Love”, and, through this we

hope to:-

1.  show love, to give hope and to support the
disadvantaged;

2. encourage compassion and empathy in our
employees;

3.  foster a sense of community within Stelux; and
4. empower through education.

KPI D1.1 As we engage with our community, Stelux’
principal areas of contribution are:—

1. interaction and integration with the wider community,
like the underprivileged and those with disabilities;
and

2. education.

KPI' D1.2 During the year, we continued to interact with the
local community in many different ways.

In FY13/14, nearly 25% of our office employees in Hong
Kong were involved in some form of charitable work,
whether during or outside office hours.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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As part of Stelux” 50th anniversary celebrations, in FY 13/14, the Group
contributed to the establishment of an endowed Professorship at the University of
Hong Kong. The endowment, named “The Stelux Professorship in Finance” was
bestowed on Professor Lin Chen. We hope that the work undertaken through the
creation of this endowment will inspire, challenge and equip our next generation
of leaders in finance.

B AR BELIE B g — T > WU AR EA 13/14 B BCAE BE R D A vk K 2R
ISR « 25 [ BDCRE BN (GRE) | BEE MR THREBR - &
A7 SR R ML ARt R~ U R T AR A

Other additional social activities
were organised in conjunction
with charities, like the Hong Fook
Church Bradbury Community
Health Development Centre and

St. Barnabas’ Society and Home.

These activities included visitations

to the elderly, the homeless and low-income families; sponsoring a day trip to the Science Museum and a Chinese New
Year lunch buffet party at a local hotel. Other sponsorships included free tutorial classes for underprivileged students; gift
packages of basic groceries, fresh fruits, vegetables and home appliances for low-income families; and the provision of
eyeglasses and eye examinations for underprivileged children. The total sum contributed to charities in conjunction with
our 50th anniversary celebrations was approximately HK$400,000.

TORTEHE (F) ATBRA
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FA™ LA 2y AR A 1 BRAT R R R O R B DR O g 2 RS S R AL RIS ) - AR
MR H MARUCA R EE 5 B BRI B — A 2 SR JEORT AR I A B R4 IR o Hofth B8 B IH H G247 7 B IR B 2R e (1 4 2 Tt
BAETE 5 SR ZRE S R AR~ R CR B R AR A 5 DA D i B IR A (A HR G S B R R B o BTt
AR BRI 2 2651 Bl BH S5 L4 HK$400,000 ©

Further, as part of our yearly ongoing charitable activities, we continued to participate in the following activities:

PO > BRSNS S BT

In FY13/14, Stelux supported the Hong Chi Association,
a local charity helping those with intellectual disabilities,
through participating in various activities, including the
“Hong Chi Climbathon — Hong Chi Charity Stair Run
2013"”; the “2014 Hong Chi Association New Territories
Flag Day”; and buying office floral displays arranged by
Hong Chi trainees on a weekly basis.

1314 BABCAE B > OGR4 B R A TG B S A A R b
AL RERBEWAMEEEAEEN G > QB EY
Wi DTS M R 2013 ) > 7E2014 ER G A
I B H AT R EEE EY 2B RIEZHA
EAEBR o

During the year, Optical 88 Hong Kong provided free eyeglasses to deprived primary school students in the “Grant-in-
aid” Brightens Children’s Lives Charity Project, organised by St. James’ Settlement. Further, Optical 88 Hong Kong also
organised eye care education programmes and provided free vision screening to primary school students.

RN A AR B 8.8 12 B HE A A A SRR R R AR | 2 R 1) IR /N ER R G AR IR o BeA) o RS 88
IR /N B RO R AR S B A

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”)
RIE - HERERRE (RR - dEREB/HED

During the year, Thong Sia Hong Kong, the sole distributor for
“SEIKO” watches and clocks volunteered its services, acting
as the official time keeper in various events, including “Joyful
Charity Run in Ocean Park” by the Joyful (Mental Health)
Foundation, “Outward Bound Adventure Race 2014” by
Outward Bound Hong Kong, “Police Dragon Boat Charity Race
2013” by the Hong Kong Police Dragon Boat Club, “Sowers
Action Challenging 12 Hours 2013” by Sowers Action, “UNICEF
Charity Run 2013” by UNICEF, “The 12th Care Action Charity
Run” by Care Action, “Sun Life Stanley International Dragon
Boat Championships 2013” by Stanley Dragon Boat Association,
“Hong Kong International Dragon Boat Races 2013” by Hong

Kong China Dragon Boat Association and Hong Kong Tourism

Board, “15th Hong Kong Dragon Boat Championships” by Hong Kong China Dragon Boat Association, “Summer Vigor
Mini Dragon Boat Race 2013” by Sai Kung Rural Committee and Hong Kong Amateur Dragon Boat Association Ltd.,
“The Salvation Army O! Day 2013” by The Salvation Army, “AVS Charity Walk & 10km Charity Run for Volunteering”
by Agency for Volunteer Service, “Oxfam Trailwalker 2013” by Oxfam Hong Kong, “AYP Rogaine6 2014” by The Hong
Kong Award for Young People, “MSF Orienteering Competition 2014” by Médecins Sans Frontieres and “Oxfam Towerrun
2014” by Oxfam Hong Kong.
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Furthermore, Thong Sia Hong Kong supports the conservation work
of WWEF-Hong Kong as a Corporate Member. Thong Sia Hong Kong
has also sponsored many charitable events including “The 9th LLCS
Charity Walkathon” by A Drop of Life Ltd., “Pink Walk for Breast
Health 2013” by the Hong Kong Breast Cancer Foundation, “Walk
For Nature 2013” by WWF, “2014 JCKSC New Year Paris Trophy”
by Kowloon Watch Company, “30-Hour Famine Camp 2013” by
World Vision Hong Kong, “Pok Oi Hospital Grand Raffle 2013”
by Pok Oi Hospital, “Ancient Teahouse Route Walkathon 2013”
by Sowers Action, “Pink Ball 2013 - ‘Embrace’” by Hong Kong
Hereditary Breast Cancer Family Registry and “Stride for a Cure
2013” by Hong Kong Cancer Fund.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”)
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We continue to promote and adopt a policy of equal opportunities to eliminate any discrimination in sex, family status

and disability in employment and the workplace. City Chain Hong Kong, for example, employs persons with disabilities
as watch repairers.
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Caring Company
SRR EMR

In recognition for the Group’s services and
support to the wider local community, Stelux
and its subsidiaries, City Chain Hong Kong,
Optical 88 Hong Kong, and Thong Sia Watch,
the Hong Kong distributor for ”SEIKO” watches ki | —— o
and clocks were again respectively awarded
Caring Company Awards by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service.

|

Thong Sia Watch Go, Ltd
BERTARLE

R KL B 2 A B S R TLR ~ iR 88 L1 L B R
B T 75 4 0 S 6 T 40 9
S RS AR 1 5 R BB
Fh 3 12 S B I 52 8 0 I B e
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Family-Friendly Employers 2013/14
2013/ 14 FEKERERE

Stelux was honoured with the “Family-Friendly Employers 2013/14” award by the Family Council of Hong Kong, for
adopting family-friendly employment policies and practices to help employees balance their work and family lives.

B OGARME TRBE e AR BE [ 2013/14 4R JE GRBE A5 R 5 I IR - DASRE FLRR AN G BE A5 IR AR BOR B it - A8 LY TAE R K

JEE P T AT o

Outstanding QTS Merchant Merit Award 2013 -

2013 (E HOERR S B 1B B S B S 2 » I\
City Chain Hong Kong won the “Outstanding QTS Merchant Merit Award 2013” presented by {

the Hong Kong Tourism Board. This award is to recognise accredited merchants in retail and
restaurant sectors who have sustained outstanding performance for three consecutive years
in the annual QTS Scheme Assessment undertaken by Hong Kong Productivity Council, the ;
professional consultant commissioned by the Hong Kong Tourism Board. x

S T R 45 7 W M B8 o B8 [ 2013 B B A e BB 1 5 % | - I 5 7
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— Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards 2013
2013 FER R B IE

City Chain Hong Kong won the “Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards 2013” presented by the Hong
Kong Brand Development Council and The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, for its
brand reputation in Hong Kong, Mainland China and overseas; the distinctiveness, innovation, quality
and image of the brand; and its environmental performance and social responsibility.
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Excellence in Advertising, Marketing Magazine’s Marketing Excellence Awards 2013

—_— 2013 SRR TSR RELESR

Solvil et Titus was awarded the “Excellence in Advertising, Marketing Magazine’s Marketing
Excellence Awards 2013” by Marketing Magazine because of its strong and innovative use of creative
thinking and media use in marketing.
HOE IR Marketing Magazine (T 554f5%) £ Marketing Magazine’s Marketing Excellence Awards
2013 (2013 TG MEREAEHE TIT A5 5 B148) b > %8 “Excellence in Advertising” ([ E#48 ]) » I
P ARG T SR 2 ELA T Y S8 A R R o

Silver Award, My Favourite TVC, MTR Advertising, The Best of the Best Awards 2013 |

013 RKREZBEABTREESARER

Solvil et Titus’ television commercial “Time Tree” won the Silver Awards in the “My Favourite TVC, e

MTR Advertising,” by online voting in the Best of the Best Awards 2013 organised by JCDecaux = |

Transport and MTR. L |

B AR RS [ | 7% JCDecaux Transport S S#ER1T Y 2013 F i AR BN 5 K48 > 1B

A B [ 3

The Best 10 Wallpaper Award, TVB New Media Awards 2013
2013 TVB MR R IE + AR ERE M RE

Our Solvil et Titus “Time Tree” television commercial was awarded the “Best 10 Wallpaper Award”
in the TVB New Media Awards 2013.

B F S SRR A R i BB RS | IRAE o

TVB Most Popular TV Commercial Awards 2014
2014 TVB R ZEVDEHRREE A

Solvil et Titus television commercial, “Time Tree” won the “Best of the Best Awards” in the TVB Most

Popular TV Commercial Awards 2014.

ARy ) BE R FE AU [RF IR | 7E 2014 TVB S s BOM TEAR B B8 rh 50608 [ R 4088 | o A
DNy BB -3 v L R S o

FRAM B0 S I AR 5 [ IRF A8 ) 72 TVB New Media Awards 2013 (2013 TVB i BEHE 42 TH) rhi2%
% “Best 10 Wallpaper Award” ([ + KR MM 588 ]) o
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Gold Award, Outstanding QTS Merchant Service Staff 2013
013 EHEEHFETRKEE

Lawrence Hui of Optical 88 Hong Kong has won the Gold Award in the Other Specialty Stores
category in “Outstanding QTS Merchant Service Staff 2013” organised by the Hong Kong

Tourism Board.

A IR B 88 B TP 7 s ik A0E 5 Jm) BRI [ 201 3 BBk M s 4 oy BB e 5 B TS
B | B AR o S5 PR SR S 8

.._-.
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Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards 2013
2013 BBMRBE B

Optical 88 Hong Kong was awarded “Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards 2013” by
Hong Kong Brand Development Council and The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of
Hong Kong, for its originality and efforts in sustaining and enhancing the local brand.

s AR 857 88 A A i R 2 Sy B At i PP R R P 5 AR [ 201 3 A B MBS 44 b I kA€
AR AT L IEURI I B 3 A BRLER TH AR S R 2 55 )

Organisation with Second Most Participants

E-ABRZBERABKE

Top Fund Raising Organisation — 4th runner-up

RESNEEREELS

Stelux and Optical 88 Hong Kong helped to
raise donations for “ORBIS World Sight Day
2013”. Optical 88 Hong Kong received the
“Organisation with Second Most Participants”
award from ORBIS for the 5th time this year, and was awarded the “Top Fund Raising
Organisation — 4th runner-up” in recognition of its efforts.

B R A s R 85 88 1 By [ B LI tH A58 H 2013 | AR LA o A HEHREE 88 A A4 AR 1L
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2013 Service and Courtesy Awards

2013 £ H RS 88

At the “2013 Service and Courtesy Awards” organised by the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association, Frank Cheng of eGG Optical Boutique was the winner of the award in the
“Specialty Stores — Eyewear Category — Junior Frontline Level”.
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Gold Trusted Brand 2013
EERESEE2013

“SEIKO” was named “Gold Trusted Brand” for the watches category in Hong Kong in the
Reader’s Digest Asia’s Trusted Brands 2013 survey. The Reader’s Digest Trusted Brands
Survey has a well-established reputation as the premier consumer based and international
measure of brand preference. Thong Sia Hong Kong has been presented with this award
consecutively for many years. =

(RS it WRAE R S ) B U5 8 1R 201 3 8 2 PP S 5 Mk S BR AL [ 3 8 i W 2 8 o T
FE A SO (5B A R A A RAFAME T > Jy B0 23 R R B R AR - @A i DA S
ZAFMEILAETH o

Asia Excellence Brand 2013
M= mE2013

Another award garnered by Thong Sia Hong Kong for the “SEIKO” brand was the “Asia Excellence Brand
2013” presented by Yazhou Zhoukan, the only Chinese language international affairs newsweekly in the
world.

S U (O T ] R 2 o — [ B P v SRS 2 o 08 ) DR [ o A i 2013 ] K8

Prime Awards for Brand Excellence 2013

il g K8 2013

The “SEIKO” brand of Thong Sia Hong Kong was awarded the “Prime Awards for Brand
Excellence 2013” by metroBOX, a magazine targeting the high-income group, the management
level in companies and entrepreneurs.

IR TR T M AE S us AR T At > — AR DAl AN~ A RV HLRG KA SER L B aE
FEAOMERS > EHRAY [2013 AR08 oo s o R | PP s 70y T il 8 2 A it | -

Best Classic Watch, Spiral Awards 2013
FEHR F#HT X - 2EFOXR

Grand Seiko 44GS Limited Edition, distributed by Thong Sia Hong Kong, was honoured with
the “Best Classic Watch” award in the “Spiral Awards 2013” by Spiral magazine.

WA 85 1Y Grand Seiko 44GS Limited Edition R4 3EsE 880 T4E T8 skt
K AR TR AR 36 | A8TE o
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Joseph C. C. WONG, aged 54, was appointed executive director
of the Company in 1986. Mr. Wong undertook his tertiary
studies in the United Kingdom. He graduated from the University
of Bradford with a B.Sc. in Industrial Engineering (First Class
Honours). Mr. Wong also holds a M.Sc. (with Distinction) in
Operational Research from the University of Southampton. Mr.
Wong is the Founding Honorary Patron of the HKU Foundation
for Education Development and Research and has been serving
the Board of Directors of the Foundation for over 15 years. He is
also a member of the Court of the University of Hong Kong. He
was awarded an Honorary Fellowship by the University of Hong
Kong in 2013. He is a brother of Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas, a non-
executive director of the Company.

Directors

Vincent LAU Tak Bui, aged 56, was appointed executive director
of the Company in 2006. Mr. Lau was CEO of the Thong Sia
Group of Companies (“Thong Sia Group”) (acquired by the
Company in September 2005) between 2002 and 2012. He was
appointed Vice-Chairman of Thong Sia Group in 2012. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is currently Group Chief Operating Officer.

Wallace KWAN Chi Kin, aged 44, joined the Group in November
2011 as Group Finance Director and was appointed an executive
director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company in July
2013. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Social Science Degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He also holds a
Master of Business Administration Degree from the University of
Manchester and a Master of Laws in Corporate & Financial Law
from The University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwan
has over 20 years of experience in financial management having
worked at an international audit firm and listed companies.

Sakorn KANJANAPAS, aged 64, was appointed a non-executive
director of the Company in 1987. He is a director of publicly listed
Bangkok Land Public Company Limited (Thailand). He is a brother
of the Chairman.
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Mary MA Xuezheng, aged 62, was appointed a non-executive
director of the Company in December 2012. Ms. Ma graduated
from Capital Normal University. She was appointed a non-
executive director of the Securities and Futures Commission
on 15 November 2013. She is a Managing Partner of Boyu
Capital Advisory Co. Ltd., the adviser to the investment fund
which ultimately owns Sapphire llluminatus Holdings Limited.
Prior to Boyu Capital, Ms. Ma was a Partner of TPG Capital and
co-Chairman of TPG China where she primarily focused on
investments in the Greater China region. Before joining TPG,
Ms. Ma was a Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of Lenovo Group Ltd. Ms. Ma has been a member of the Lenovo
board since 1997 and currently serves as non-executive Vice
Chairman, a role she has served since 2007. She is also a non-
executive director of Wumart Stores, Inc. and a non-executive
director of Unilever N.V. and Unilever PLC. Between 2009
and 2011, Ms. Ma was a non-executive director of Daphne
International Holdings Ltd. Between 2009 and 2013, Ms. Ma
was a member of the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and between 2004 and 2013, was an independent
non-executive director of Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited. Ms. Ma has been a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors since 2000. Ms. Ma worked for The Chinese Academy
of Sciences before joining Lenovo.

Alex WONG Yu Tsang, aged 36, was appointed a non-executive
director of the Company in December 2012. Mr. Wong holds
a Bachelor of Business Administration degree (First Class
Honours) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong
is an executive director of Boyu Capital Advisory Co. Ltd., the
adviser to the investment fund which ultimately owns Sapphire
[lluminatus Holdings Limited. Prior to Boyu Capital, Mr. Wong
was an executive director at Goldman Sachs’ Principal Investment
Area. Prior to this, Mr. Wong was a consultant in McKinsey &
Company’s Corporate Finance Practice.

WU Chun Sang, aged 57, was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2004. He is a Macau
Registered Auditor. He is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Lawrence WU Chi Man, aged 56, was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 2005. He graduated
from Bristol University, UK with a BSc(Eng) and PhD in
Aeronautical Engineering. He is a Professor at the Department of
Physics and Material Science at the City University of Hong Kong.
He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (HKIE). He
is also a Council Member of the HKIE. He received the Taishan (%=
LLIE:35) Scholar award from the Shandong Provincial Government
in 2012.

Agnes KWONG Yi Hang, aged 55, holds a PhD in Molecular
Immunology from the University of Hong Kong. She was
appointed an independent non-executive director of the Company
in 2006. She is a director of TEMP Limited and Health Wisdom
Limited, both of these companies are health consultancies.

Chief Counsel and Company Secretary

Caroline CHONG, aged 52, joined the Group in 1997. She
graduated from the University of Kent, United Kingdom with a
Bachelor of Arts (Law) (Hons) degree. She is admitted as a Barrister
in England and Wales, and, Hong Kong. She is responsible for the
Group’s legal and corporate secretarial matters. Ms. Chong was
awarded with the “Managing IP In-House Award” organised by
the Euromoney Legal Media Group in 2012.
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Registered Office
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda

Principal Office

27th Floor, Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East
San Po Kong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Citibank, N. A.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Room 1712-1716

17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Strategy Committee

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang
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Audit Committee

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang (Chairman of Committee)
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang

Remuneration Committee

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng

Nomination Committee

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang
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STELUX HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEXAEX(ER)ERAR

WHOLESALE / TRADING
# E5

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
HEEEE

RETAIL
2&

WATCH
gk
Hong Kong Hong \Kong
CITY CHAIN* i i
T [ JR * Switzerland Mainland China
Hong Kong Fii -t o ok [
i (101) Taiwan
Mainland China a%
FEIREE (103) Thailand
Macau 75
I (10) Singapore
Thailand EIIE3
25 (93) Malaysia
Singapore R
BN (39) Switzerland
Malaysia it
FEAPER (57)
OPTICAL
(3374
OPTICAL
it
" Mainland China
Singapore
Hong Kong
it (86) I
. . Malaysia
Mainland China
A RE (45) fokE
Macau
W\ (1)
Thailand
R (42)
Singapore
N (20)
Malaysia
BRI (27)
Hong Kong
i (12)
Mainland China
hEKEE (19)

*  Number of shops as at 30 June 2014. Includes all concept shops.
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MAINLAND CHINA AND HONG KONG

Equity Investment, Property Investment, Retail, Trading,

Wholesale and Supply Chain Management
J Stelux Holdings International Ltd

J Stelux Holdings Ltd

o Stelux Properties Ltd

J Optical 88 Ltd

o City Chain Co Ltd

o Stelux Watch Ltd
27/F., Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

3/F., Kader Building
22 Kai Cheung Road, Kowloon Bay
Kowloon, HONG KONG

e Thong Sia Optics (Hong Kong) Company Limited
Unit 1905-06, Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

o Thong Sia Watch Company Limited
21/F., Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

e Thong Tai Watch Company Limited
21/F., Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

J Stelux-Thong Sia (Shanghai) Trading Limited
Rm 26-10S, No. 93 Huaihai Middle Road
Shanghai, PRC
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Rm 2611-2613, 2615-2618 Enterprise Square
228 Mei Yuan Road
Shanghai, PRC

Baoshi (Shanghai) Company Limited
Rm 2610, Enterprise Square

228 Mei Yuan Road

Shanghai, PRC

Stelux-Thong Sia (Guangdong) Trading Limited
Room 607A, Ronghui Building

302 Zhicheng Road

Guangzhou Economic & Technological
Development District, Guangzhou, PRC

Rooms 1801, 1805-1813, 1815-1816
Guangbai Xin Yi Building

18-28 Xihu Road, Yue Xiu District
Guangzhou, PRC

Baoshi (Guangdong) Company Limited

Room 607B, Ronghui Building

302 Zhicheng Road

Guangzhou Economic & Technological
Development District, Guangzhou, PRC

17/F West, Zhong Yue Building
No. 22 Ma Peng Gang, Zhong Shan Er Road
Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, PRC

Stelux-Thong Sia (Beijing) Trading Limited
Rooms 411 and 426, 4/F, Wang Fu Shi Ji Building
No. 55 Dong Anmen Street, Beijing, PRC

Baoshi (Beijing) Company Limited
Room 408, 4/F, Wang Fu Shi Ji Building
No. 55 Dong Anmen Street, Beijing, PRC
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COMPANY DIRECTORY
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J Shibao (Chongqing) Trading Limited
Rm 6-1, 6-2#, 23/F, No.50 Zou Rong Road
Yuzhong District
Chongging, PRC

J Baoqing (Chongging) Trading Limited
Rm H, 15/F, No.50 Zou Rong Road
Yuzhong District, Chongging, PRC

TAIWAN

Wholesale Trading
e Thong Tai (Taiwan) Company Limited
9/F., No. 102
Song Lung Road
Taipei (110)
TAIWAN

MACAU
Retail

e City Chain (Macau) Co Ltd

° Optical 88 (Macau) Ltd
Rua de S. Domingos,
n° 21-A, em Macau

o HE (HE) M ARAF
O RETITIf ARA % 50 9%
23 )& 6-1, 6-24

o HE(EHE) MEARAF
BT I P AR A 50 9%
15 @ H %

=)
LB 5 e

o  HEF(AE) AIRAH
B8 G L5 R F AN RS 102 58 9 1

1!

o Y
iji

IR [H] R S 6% (W) A IRAF
o HREE88 (WM) AIRAH

Rua de S. Domingos,
n° 21-A, em Macau
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COMPANY DIRECTORY
AFERRG

MALAYSIA

Retail and Wholesale Trading
¢ City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd

J Optical 88 Eyecare (M) Sdn Bhd
G8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A
Bandar Puteri
47100 Puchong
Selangor Darul Ehsan
MALAYSIA

. Thong Sia Sdn Bhd (87055-A)
CP 27, Suite 2601-04, 26th Floor, Central Plaza
34, Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA

J Thong Sia Optical (M) Sdn Bhd
CP27, Suite 2601-04
26th Floor, Central Plaza
34 Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA

THAILAND

Retail and Wholesale Trading
J City Chain (Thailand) Co Ltd

J Optical 88 (Thailand) Co Ltd

e Thong Sia (Thailand) Ltd
347, 349 Muang Thong Thani
Bondstreet Road
Bangpood Subdistrict
Pakkred District
Nonthaburi 11120
THAILAND
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COMPANY DIRECTORY
AFERRG

SINGAPORE

Retail and Wholesale Trading
o Stelux Watch Holdings Ltd
(in member’s voluntary liquidation)

o City Chain Stores (S) Pte Ltd

o Optical 88 (S) Pte Ltd
138 Joo Seng Road, #06-01
Singapore 368361
SINGAPORE

. Thong Sia Co (S) Pte Ltd

e Thong Sia Optical (S) Pte Ltd
50 Kallang Avenue, #06-03
Singapore 339505
SINGAPORE

SWITZERLAND

Watch Supply Chain Management and Trading
o Universal Geneve S.A.

° Solvil et Titus S.A.

o Pronto Watch S.A.
38, chemin du Grand Puits
Case Postale 128
1217 Meyrin 2
SWITZERLAND

b3
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*  Stelux Watch Holdings Ltd
(R E I )

e City Chain Stores (S) Pte Ltd

J Optical 88 (S) Pte Ltd
138 Joo Seng Road, #06-01
Singapore 368361
SINGAPORE

e Thong Sia Co (S) Pte Ltd

J Thong Sia Optical (S) Pte Ltd
50 Kallang Avenue, #06-03
Singapore 339505
SINGAPORE
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o Universal Geneve S.A.
o Solvil et Titus S.A.

o Pronto Watch S.A.
38, chemin du Grand Puits
Case Postale 128
1217 Meyrin 2
SWITZERLAND
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
g J ki

Latest time for lodging transfers of Shares for
registration in order to qualify for
attending and voting at the
Annual General Meeting
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 4 August 2014

Latest date and time for return of proxy
form for the Annual General Meeting
11:30 a.m. on Wednesday, 6 August 2014

Closure of the register of members of the
Company for determining the identity of
Shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting
Tuesday, 5 August 2014 to
Friday, 8 August 2014 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
11:30 a.m. on Friday, 8 August 2014

Latest time for lodging transfers of the
Shares for registration in order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 13 August 2014

Closure of the register of members of
the Company for determining the
identity of Shareholders who are
entitled to the proposed final dividend
Thursday, 14 August 2014 to
Monday, 18 August 2014 (both days inclusive)

Payment of the proposed final dividend
Friday, 5 September 2014

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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web site #3 i :
http://www.stelux.com
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